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THE CHINESE UNIVERSITY OF HONG KONG

HEEPXKXE
TREASURER’S REPORT

S E &

Overview

The University further strengthened its financial
position in the financial year 2013/14 with healthy
surplus and improved reserve, benefiting from the
increase in block grants, government supplementary
grants, fees income, and the improved investment
market sentiment. | am pleased to report that the
University achieved consolidated surplus of $1.5
billion in 2013/14 and consolidated net assets of
$16.6 billion as at 30 June 2014. The University
is also grateful to benefactors for their generous
donations of $1,428 million to enable us to reach
the Matching Grant ceiling of $600 million during
the sixth round of the Scheme from 1 August 2012
to 31 July 2014.

Financial Analysis

The financial statements reported total income
and total expenditure for both recurrent and non-
recurrent activities funded by government or
supported by other non-government funds. Tables
and charts on pages 6 to 8 provide additional
information and analyses of financial results of the
University by categories and sources of funding.
Comments and highlights in the following sections
refer to the operating results of the University
whereas consolidated financial statements provide
operating results and financial positions of the
University and all constituent Colleges.

Operating Results and Financial Position

Income

The University’s total income declined by $673
million or 7.8% to $7,960 million in the financial
year 2013/14. The reduction was mainly due to
the timing of recognition of matching grants and
donations. A large portion was accounted for in
the last financial year during the initial phase of
the Sixth Matching Grant Scheme. However, there
were increases in tuition fee income, investment
return and ancillary services and other income.
Government subventions, including block grants,
supplementary grants, earmarked grants and capital
grants, etc., fell slightly by $223 million to $4,200
million, mainly due to the reduction in matching
grants. Tuition, programmes and other fees grew
by $107 million to $1,965 million. Fee income from
non-UGC (University Grants Committee) funded
programmes accounted for 55% of the total as
these programmes charged a relatively higher tuition
fee than UGC funded programmes, reflecting their
different cost structures with no direct subsidy from
the government.
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Expenditure

Total expenditure rose by 7.5% or $452 million to
$6,512 million in 2013/14, mainly attributable to
annual pay-rise, and planned increase in teaching,
learning, research and support services for the new
academic structure.

Spending on learning and research amounted
to $5,184 million and accounted for 80% of total
expenditure, reaffirming the University’s mission to
enhance teaching, learning and research quality. On
the other hand, expenditure on institutional support
which comprises premises and related expenses,
student and general education services, and
management and general was kept at about 20%.

Operating Results

On balance, the University achieved a total surplus
of $1,448 million in 2013/14. There was a surplus
of $537 million from recurrent government funding
mainly due to additional block grants and fees
income from increased number of students. At the
closing months of the Sixth Matching Grant Scheme,
the University secured $81 million that contributed
$50 million to the surplus of UGC matching
grant fund. Non-government funds generated a
considerable surplus of $861 million resulting from
prudent financial management and favourable return
on investment.

Balance Sheet Position

The University’s net assets reported a growth of
10.6% or $1,448 million to $15.1 billion as at 30
June 2014. Investments slightly decreased by $86
million to $6,013 million due to the combined effect
of the maturity of held-to-maturity debt securities
during the year and appreciation in trading securities
resulting from the continuous recovery in the
global investment market. Cash and short-term
deposits rose from $6,650 million to $8,335 million
due to transitional placement of funds pending
reinvestment. The University has conducted a
consultancy study on the objectives, overall strategy,
asset allocation and payout of endowment fund, and
identified reinvestment targets for 2015.

Aggregate deferred income grew by 21.5% to
$757 million, mainly arising from the increase in
fund balance of earmarked grants designated for
research and capital projects.
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The net book value of fixed assets built up to $5,998
million, a slight increase of 0.5%, mainly due to the
construction of teaching buildings and Colleges, as
well as the acquisition of equipment, furniture and
fittings to cope with the new academic structure.
For assets acquired by funds from government or
government agencies with conditions attached,
the balance of their aggregate net book value was
treated as deferred capital fund. The total amount
set aside under this category slightly fell by 1.4%
to $3,588 million.

Taking into account the operating results achieved
for the financial year 2013/14, the general and
development reserve fund was further strengthened
to $2,195 million, the UGC matching grants fund
to $1,509 million, and the total restricted funds to
$11.4 billion.

Research Activities

In addition to recurrent grants from the UGC
covering maintenance costs of infrastructure for
general research activities, the University also
secured substantial funding through different
sources to support specific research projects. Inthe
financial year 2013/14, a total amount of $197 million
was recognized as designated research grants from
the UGC and its Research Grants Council. Another
$412 million of research funds came from the private
sector and other sources in the forms of sponsorship
and donation.

Donations and Benefactions

The University continued its fund-raising momentum
in the sequel of the Sixth Matching Grant Scheme.
While a large portion of donations was recognized
in the last financial year, the University raised
further donations of $464 million in 2013/14 and
reached the matching grants ceiling of $600 million
before closure of the Scheme on 31 July 2014.
The University is grateful to alumni, friends and
organizations for their generous financial support
for its academic development, research activities,
scholarships and capital development programmes.

Further to donation of $23.3 million received from
the Hong Kong Jockey Club Charities Trust in the
previous financial year, total donations of $29.4
million was received in this financial year 2013/14
to support scholarships for outstanding students
and other activities. The University is again most
appreciative of the continuous support from the
Hong Kong Jockey Club Charities Trust.
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Capital Developments

Amongst the addition to total fixed assets of $409
million during the year, $191 million was spent on
premises-related development projects.

Construction of the last two new Colleges, namely
Wu Yee Sun College and C. W. Chu College, was
completed in late 2013. The Jockey Club Museum
of Climate Change located at the Yasumoto
International Academic Park, the first of its kind in
Hong Kong, was also completed in 2013. Spatial
re-organization works for a number of buildings
awarded under the Alterations, Additions and
Improvements block allocation by the UGC are in
steady progress.

Self-financed Programmes

Dissemination of knowledge is one of the core
functions of the University. As a public institution
entrusted with such role, the University also
provides learning opportunities at sub-degree and
postgraduate levels, as well as lifelong learning
programmes, to complement the UGC funded
academic activities. The main purpose of the
University’s self-financed programmes is to meet
community and societal needs. As a result of the
improved operation and market demand for pursuing
learning opportunities, revenue from non-UGC
funded programmes continued to grow by 6.9% and
reached $1,075 million in the reporting year.

The Way Forward

The University has entered into the second
year of the triennium 2012-15 under the new
academic structure. The current triennium will be
rolled over to 2015/16 by the UGC with the aim
of offering institutions more time to revise the
existing operations and to be better prepared for
the next Academic Development Proposal. In face
of the greater competition introduced by UGC in
research and related funding allocation mechanism,
faculties and departments have been very cautious
and vigilant in their spending in order to build up
a reserve to bridge-over possible reduction in
research funding. On the other hand, the University
has taken proactive steps to boost research and
scholarship advancement including steering
capacity building, promoting high quality academic
research, supporting strategic areas of strengths
and promising research teams, and enhancing
teaching and learning activities.
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After years of planning and preparation, establishment
of a Shenzhen campus of the University received
formal approval from the State Ministry of Education
in March 2014. The establishment of The Chinese
University of Hong Kong, Shenzhen [CUHK (SZ)]
marks an important milestone in development of the
University. CUHK (SZ2) is a self-financed entity which
admitted the first batch of undergraduate students
in September 2014 from 17 provinces and cities.

The University has been actively planning the
development of a professionally managed, not-
for-profit Teaching Hospital of its own. This is
a pioneering initiative that aims at offering a
new healthcare model in Hong Kong as well as
enhancing the quality of teaching and research.
Surplus from the hospital’s services will be used to
support future development and meet the teaching
and research needs of the Faculty of Medicine of
the University. The University is pleased to receive
a generous donation of $1.3 billion from the Hong
Kong Jockey Club Charities Trust in support of this
mission, which is the largest single donation ever
made by the Trust to a medical project in Hong Kong.
Moreover, it is also the largest single donation ever
received by the University. The estimated capital
requirement of the Teaching Hospital is $6.33
billion. The University is making every effort to
raise sufficient fund for materializing this important,
meaningful and innovative project.

As the University marches into its sixth decade,
it is thankful for being well endowed. CUHK
owes its success and achievement over the past
five decades to the long-standing benefactors,
insightful community advisers, visionary leaders,
and dedicated and committed staff, alumni and
students. In a new era of educational and academic
endeavours, the University is striving to facilitate
teaching and learning, and promote high quality
academic research having both global and local
impacts with a strong and sound financial position.

Roger K. H. Luk
Treasurer
23 October 2014
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1.0%

Total #8%8 $7,960 million B&E T

Government Subventions
ERFERD
($4,119 millionB & JT)

7 Matching Grants
Festen e
($81 million & & JT)

. Tuition, Programmes and Other Fees
BE  FREREMNE
($1,965 million B&EJT)

B interest and Investment Income
FIB R AR B
($668 million HEJT)

[ Donations and Benefactions
b= SE=E
($464 million HEIT)

[ Ancillary Services Income
SHENARFEULA
($241 million B&7T)

[ other Income
HABTA
($422 million BEJT)

Expenditure Analysis ZH 9

1.9% 3.4%
4.5%

4.3%

0.5%

Total #2%8 $6,512 million B& T

[ Instruction and Research
BB R (84,548 million BEIT)

[ Library
BZ8E ($221 million B&ET)

Central Computing Facilities
PR ERSERHE ($123 million BEIT)

[ oOther Academic Services
EH RS (3291 milion BEIT)

. Management and General
BIE R —AREIA ($277 milion BHEIT)

. Premises and Related Expenses

BFERERSZH ($640 milion BEJT)

[ student and General Education Services
BER—MHERH ($377 milion BETT)

[l Other Activities
HtiZE#5 ($35 million BHEIT)
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Income Analysis It A 5 #

2013
Year Ended 30 June NB=TH(FE4R) _

(HK$'M) (%) (HK$'M) (%)
Government Subventions &R 4,119 51.8% 3,914 45.3%
Matching Grants [RER L 81 1.0% 509 5.9%
Tuition, Programmes and Other Fees 2% EREREMNE 1,965 24.7% 1,858 21.5%
Interest and Investment Income T BRI E IS 668 8.4% 576 6.7%
Donations and Benefactions Ei=EIYSESE 464 5.8% 1,156 13.4%
Ancillary Services Income EHRENARFSUTA 241 3.0% 216 2.5%
Other Income E A 422 5.3% 404 4.7%

Expenditure Analysis THH % #

Year Ended 30 June NA=1TH(E)
(HK$'M) (%) (HK$'M) (%)

Instruction and Research HBRHME 4,548 69.8% 4,469 73.7%
Library EE8E 221 3.4% 183 3.0%
Central Computing Facilities RO EAEY 123 1.9% 114 1.9%
Other Academic Services Hth# AR5 291 4.5% 131 2.2%
Management and General BER—MNEIR 277 4.3% 239 3.9%
Premises and Related Expenses BFERERSZH 640 9.8% 555 9.2%
Student and General Education Services 224 B —M#BES 377 5.8% 332 5.5%
Other Activities Hith=E7 35 0.5% 37 0.6%

Surplus attributable to the following funding sources EE:EIR THE &

201 ]
Year Ended 30 June NA=T+TH(E#H) _ 013 (restatedH51)

(HK$'M) (%) (HK$'M) (%)
General and Development Reserve Fund —i% & 2% R TR 537 37.1% 487 18.9%
Matching Grant Fund [RER L 50 3.4% 448 17.4%
Non-Government Fund 861 59.5% 1,638 63.7%
Capital Projects EiE1gH 219 15.1% 385 15.0%
University Development KEFRE 97 6.7% 335 13.0%
Research Activities 7 iEED 18 1.2% 123 4.8%
General Academic Use —MRH BT 179 12.4% 321 12.5%
New Colleges SR 62 4.3% 139 5.4%
Scholarships, Prizes and Bursaries RES BERPES 78 5.4% 97 3.7%
Other Activities Hith==7% 208 14.4% 238 9.3%
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Analysis on the financial position of the University as at 30 June of 2014 and 2013 are as follows:

REZ—MER—Z—=F/A=+0H » KBNMBARI T T:

(Expressed in millions of Hong Kong dollars LU # & BT F7T)

2014
—E-MEE
Government Funded BT E) Non-Government
- ; Total
Recurring Non Recurring Funded ya=
R RS FEBFERD "
Income YIA 4,488 784 2,688 7,960
Expenditure 3% 3,951 734 1,827 6,512
Surplus &R 537 50 861 1,448
2013 (Restated)
—E——FE (F)
Government Funded EIfF&EN Non-Government
; : Total
Recurring Non Recurring Funded q@=t
EEM FEAEEE IERUFEED e
Income YA 4,214 1,151 3,268 8,633
Expenditure Sz 3,727 703 1,630 6,060
Surplus B 487 448 1,638 2573
Government Funded Recurring Government Funded Non Recurring Non-government Funded
BUFE R &N BRI FFHAFE N
HK$'M B EE T
10,000
9,000
8,000
7000 2,688 3,268
6,000
1,827
1,630
>000 1 784 1,151
734 -
4,000
3,000 [
2,000 | 1,638
861
1,000 0 448
_ 1 1 1 1 - 1
(1,000) -
Income Income Expenditure Expenditure Surplus Surplus BEf /
YON A % s BEf 2013
2014 2013 2014 2013 2014 (Restated E71))

(Restated E71))



INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

B AR E
TO THE COUNCIL OF THE CHINESE UNIVERSITY OF H

HERAPXABRER

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of The Chinese
University of Hong Kong (the “University”) and the Trustees of the four
separately established constituent Colleges, namely The Trustees of
Chung Chi College, The Trustees of New Asia College, The Trustees
of United College and The Trustees of Shaw College (collectively
the “Group”) set out on pages 10 to 89, which comprise the consolidated
and University balance sheets as at 30 June 2014, and the consolidated
and University Statements of Comprehensive Income and Expenditure,
the consolidated and University Statements of Changes in Funds and
the consolidated and University Cash Flows Statements for the year
then ended, and a summary of significant accounting policies and other
explanatory information.

Council’s responsibility for the consolidated financial

statements

The Council of the University is responsible for the preparation of
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in
accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards issued by
the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and for such
internal control as the Council determines is necessary to enable the
preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditor’s responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated financial
statements based on our audit. This report is made solely to you, as
a body, in accordance with Statute 12(7) of The Chinese University of
Hong Kong Ordinance (Cap. 1109), and for no other purpose. We do
not assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person
for the contents of this report.

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on
Auditing issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants.
Those standards require that we comply with ethical requirements
and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the consolidated financial statements are free from material
misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about
the amounts and disclosures in the consolidated financial statements.
The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgement, including
the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated
financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk
assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity’s
preparation of the consolidated financial statements that give a true
and fair view in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in
the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on
the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. An audit also includes
evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates made by the Council, as well
as evaluating the overall presentation of the consolidated financial
statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

Opinion
In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair
view of the state of affairs of the University and of the Group as at 30

June 2014 and of their surplus and cash flows for the year then ended
in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards.

KPMG

Certified Public Accountants

8th Floor, Prince’s Building

10 Chater Road, Central, Hong Kong

23 October 2014
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THE CHINESE UNIVERSITY OF HONG KONG

BEREPxXB
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREH

HREZEBRZR
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2014

HE_FT-NFAA=THLFE

(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars) (M&4F7T5lR)

Note 2014 2013
FiEE (Restated)
(&%)
Income KA
Government Subventions BT E BN 3 4,200,437 4,422,592
Tuition, Programmes and Other Fees B . RENEMMINE 4 1,967,894 1,861,425
Interest and Net Investment Income F B MR EBINES 5 718,670 640,723
Donations and Benefactions =N R e 6 514,150 1,245,742
Ancillary Services Income EENARFSUT A 7 247,891 222,247
Other Income HAabU A 8 424,054 406,805
8,073,096 8,799,534
Expenditure -2 9
Learning and Research Siis R 5
Instruction and Research BENHARE 4,550,256 4,471,700
Library EES: 221,119 182,675
Central Computing Facilities th RE R 123,574 114,183
Other Academic Services HAth 2R 303,233 141,721
Institutional Support RNEBEHENBRTS
Management and General EEN—REEIE 276,882 239,316
Premises and Related Expenses EBFAEERH 651,797 568,185
Student and General Education Services BER—BBEEE 425,363 389,794
Other Activities HfthZE#% 37,810 40,171
6,590,034 6,147,745
Surplus for the year TEERER 1,483,062 2,651,789
Item that will not be classified to TEENMIRERNL
surplus or deficit B IEE
Remeasurement of Defined Benefit EHEtERENEHETE 604 6,430
Scheme
Item that may be reclassified subsequently HgaEHoEERR
to surplus or deficit giEia2IEE
Changes in Fair Value of It EmIRE (669) 21,167
Available-for-Sale Investments NP EEEE
Total comprehensive income for the year  AEEZ@NEET 1,482,997 2,679,386
Attributable to: BEn:
Surplus of Recurrent Government REMBAENERES 536,946 486,683
Funds transferred to General and EBEE-RAEERERES
Development Reserve Fund
Surplus of Non-recurrent Government IEREMBNENERER 49,635 448,077
Funds transferred to University Grants EHEHEGEHmIE
Committee (“UGC”) Matching Grant Fund
Surplus of Non-government Funds IEB T EENE R ER 896,416 1,744,626
transferred to Restricted Funds BESHRES

1,482,997 2,679,386

The notes set out on pages 22 to 89 form an integral part of these financial statements.
NERE_+—BENTNEZMEFARMHBERERZ B -



THE CHINESE UNIVERSITY OF HONG KONG

BREPxXB
CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET

KREBERRR
AS AT 30 JUNE 2014

—E-mEXA=1H

(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars) (JA#E#FT5lR)

2013
Note 2014 (Restated)
L (&5)

Non-Current Assets ERENEE
Fixed Assets BETE&EE 14 6,075,618 6,049,885
Investments BE 15 3,716,550 4,218,223
Employee Retirement Benefit Assets EERNEFNEE 16 10,628 10,080
Other Receivables HAthFEWFRIE 17 53,990 167,754
9,856,786 10,445,942

Current Assets MENEE
Investments BE 15 2,846,636 2,450,176
Inventories =& 361 432
Staff Loans BEEEM 25 211,213 231,547
Accounts Receivable, Prepayments and FEUWIRTR ~ TR FRIE R 17 442,220 375,385
Other Receivables HAthFEWFRIE

Cash and Short-term Deposits with Banks IREMERITRREAEM 18 9,157,055 7,442 418
Current Liabilities mEEE 12,657,485 10,499,958
Accounts Payable and Accruals FE(TIRFA N FERT & F 19 783,618 813,159
Provision for Employee Benefits & S18F % 20 413,653 382,227
Loans and Borrowings (EE 21 77,275 84,274
Deferred Income IEFEUL 5 22 395,345 323,728
1,669,891 1,603,388
Net Current Assets mEEERE 10,987,594 8,896,570
Total Assets Less Current Liabilities BEERRESHEE 20,844,380 19,342,512

Non-Current Liabilities ERENAE
Provision for Employee Benefits & S 185 S 20 211,434 198,237
Loans and Borrowings (EEN 21 38,822 45,098
Deferred Income IEFEYT 2R 22 361,999 299,678
612,255 543,013
Deferred Capital Funds BEESEREE 23 3,588,057 3,638,428
NET ASSETS HERE 16,644,068 15,161,071
Restricted Funds SEREE 10 12,940,283 12,043,867
Other Funds HitBEE 11 3,703,785 3,117,204
TOTAL FUNDS HEEE 16,644,068 15,161,071

Approved and authorised for issue by the Council on 23 October 2014
REER_F—MNF+HA+=A#tEREEZRILIITERE

Vincent H. C. Cheng Zf;8R
Chairman of the Council KX=2F[E

Roger K. H. Luk [E#i=
Treasurer )&

Joseph J. Y. Sung jitHZE

Vice-Chancellor &

Salome Chan EE# B
University Bursar Bf#§ &

The notes set out on pages 22 to 89 form an integral part of these financial statements.
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THE CHINESE UNIVERSITY OF HONG K

HEREPXXKER

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHAN

SEETEHR

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2014
BE_F-MFAA=THLEER

(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars) (MA#E#&F555lR)

Other Funds Hfth&E% (Note KizE 11)

General and uUGC Total Capital
Development  Matching Funds
Reserve Fund Grants
—MRNEE nEg
EiREE Bt fEnNE EEEE] BEEE
Balance - 1 July 2012 —E--FtRA—A&%8k 1,171,770 1,010,674 2,182,444 2,133,390
Effect of adoption of Revised RANHKAS 1 fERTHIRZEE - - - -
HKAS19
Restated balance - 1 July 2012 “S—_"FtHA—H#&%8 1,171,770 1,010,674 2,182,444 2,133,390
(&%)
Restated transfers from/(to) the HE/(E)2EIRE (E5) 486,683 448,077 934,760 278,068
Statement of Comprehensive
Income and Expenditure
Inter-fund Transfer EEMZER i i i i
Restated Balance - 30 June 2013 =—¥—-=%A=1+H®/ 1,658,453 1,458,751 3,117,204 2.411,458
and 1 July 2013 —E-=FtRA—H&H
(E5)
Transfers from/(to) the EHE/(B)ZEHERE 536,946 49,635 586,581 75,112
Statement of Comprehensive
Income and Expenditure
Inter-fund Transfer EEMZEIR - - - 992
Balance - 30 June 2014 —E-MERA=+H 2,195,399 1,508,386 3,703,785 2,487,562

£

The notes set out on pages 22 to 89 form an integral part of these financial statements.

NERE-TBEENTAEZKEERAMBHRRC 8% -



Restricted Funds ZHFRE#£ (Note [fizF10)

Endowment Other Building  Research Others Investments Total Total
Funds Restricted Funds Project (Note 10.1) Revaluation Funds
Funds Funds Reserve
Hith= A BEER WRIER Hith RES
BAXEE BEE B2E s (BFitEE 10.1) fefis ] BEEBH
2,820,493 2,180,908 48,757 559,606 2,407,664 167,314 10,318,132 12,500,576
- - - - (18,891) - (18,891) (18,891)
2,820,493 2,180,908 48,757 559,606 2,388,773 167,314 10,299,241 12,481,685
457,541 610,078 (189,626) 131,498 435,900 21,167 1,744,626 2,679,386
(93,325) 21,158 34,224 (10,618) 48,561 - - -
3,184,709 2,812,144 (106,645) 680,486 2,873,234 188,481 12,043,867 15,161,071
326,801 505,408 (145,784) 59,889 75,659 (669) 896,416 1,482,997
(13,996) (278,318) 373,148 (41,623) (40,203) - - -
3,497,514 3,039,234 120,719 698,752 2,908,690 187,812 12,940,283 16,644,068




THE CHINESE UNIVERSITY OF HONG KO
BEREPxXXE

CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW STATEMEN
HRERTRER

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2014
BE-F-MFAA=THLEERE

(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars) (MA&4F7T5lR)

Investing Activities

Increase in Time Deposits with

Original Maturity over Three Months
Payment for Capital Expenditure
Proceeds from Disposal of Fixed Assets
Payment for Purchase of Investments
Proceeds from Sales of Investments
Dividend Received
Interest Received
Loans Granted to Staff
Loans Repaid by Staff

Net Cash Used in Investing Activities

REE

FREEE = AMERTER
RZIEm

BRI
HEBEEEMSNE
IBRRE
HEREFREMIE
EWER
ERFIR
HEEEMR
IS E™M

KA EREFREA R ERE

2014 2013
(Restated)
(E2)
Operating Activities Q&R
Surplus for the Year KEEZRER 1,483,062 2,651,789
Adjustments for: ARIER -
Depreciation e 382,986 364,504
Loss on Disposal of Fixed Assets HEETEERIE 266 30,096
Interest and Net Investment Income MERITE WS (718,670) (640,723)
Operating Surplus before Changes in SESTEMNI SRR 1,147,644 2,405,666
Working Capital
Decrease in Employee Retirement EERAREINEEZRYD 56 324
Benefit Assets
Decrease in Accounts Receivable, FEMSTIRTR ~ Fa{HRRIE R ELfth FEUR 56,775 8,514
Prepayments and Other Receivables FRIERZ R
Decrease in Inventories FEZHD 71 22
Decrease in Accounts Payable FEFTIRFR A FER T B A ZiRl (28,257) (83,091)
and Accruals
Increase in Provision for Employee B S1&8F2Efif <z 18m 44,623 43,150
Benefits
Increase in Deferred Income IEFEYTES 2 38N 133,938 178,001
Net Cash Generated from Operating Activities E&FEES CREFHE 1,354,850 2,552,586

(2,083,762) (2,871,803)

(411,246)  (926,234)
977 767
(126,414) (89,339)
706,105 822,130
20,541 19,082
212,135 227,973
(29,810) (32,600)
50,144 42,815

(1,661,330) (2,807,209)




THE CHINESE UNIVERSITY OF HONG KON
HEEPXXB

CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW STATEMENT (

HRERTRER (@)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2014

BE_S-NFAA=1THLFE

(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars) (MAE4F7T5lR)

Note 2014 2013
FiEE (Restated)
(E31)
Financing Activities B RS
Secured Loan Received EEIRAEM - 40,000
(Decrease)/Increase in Deferred Capital Funds ~ IEEEERSEZ(FS)AEM (50,371) 257,806
Bank Loans Obtained for On-lending to Staff HETHEEZIRTEMR 3,000 6,000
Repayment of Secured Loan EEERAEM (6,275) (15,801)
Repayment of Bank Loans for On-lending EBEEETHREZRITEMN (10,000) (9,000)
to Staff
Net Cash (Used in)/Generated from Financing BIEEENFR(ER)EEZREFHE (63,646) 279,005
Activities
Net (Decrease)/Increase in Cash and Cash RERBFEFEWF(RE2)AEM (370,126) 24,382
Equivalents
Cash and Cash Equivalents REMREEEY - FER 792,034 767,652
- Beginning of Year
Cash and Cash Equivalents - End of Year MENREEEY - FRER 18 421,908 792,034

The notes set out on pages 22 to 89 form an integral part of these financial statements.
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THE CHINESE UNIVERSITY OF HONG KON

EEPXKE

STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

EEBRR
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2014

HE_S-NFRA=THLFE

(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars) (MA&4F7T5lR)

Note 2014 2013
FfsE (Restated)
(&%)
Income A
Government Subventions BAER 3 4,200,437 4,422 592
Tuition, Programmes and Other Fees BE - FENEMKE 4 1,964,590 1,858,101
Interest and Net Investment Income MR RIGE WS 5 668,193 576,586
Donations and Benefactions BB N IE 6 463,719 1,155,926
Ancillary Services Income HHENARFEAIA 7 241,391 215,711
Other Income HAA 8 421,486 403,607
7,959,816 8,632,523
Expenditure i 9
Learning and Research Biff iR
Instruction and Research HENHE 4,547,942 4,469,125
Library EES: 221,119 182,675
Central Computing Facilities th RER T 123,574 114,183
Other Academic Services Hith 3RS 291,022 130,824
Institutional Support RETENARTE
Management and General SN —RREIE 276,739 239,223
Premises and Related Expenses BFAEREZH 639,835 555,291
Student and General Education Services BER—BRBESE 377,309 332,354
Other Activities HAhZ=EFE 34,655 36,634
6,512,195 6,060,309
Surplus for the year TEERR 1,447,621 2,572,214
Item that will not be reclassified Z;EE;%M}@EE%E&‘
to surplus or deficit EiRZIRE
Remeasurement of Defined Benefit EFtERENESETE 604 6,430
Scheme
Total comprehensive income for the year NEEZEWEEEE 1,448,225 2,578,644
Attributable to: BB
Surplus of Recurrent Government rEGBAEMERER 536,946 486,683
Funds transferred to General and BE-RLBEEEES
Development Reserve Fund
Surplus of Non-recurrent IEREMBTEMNERER 49,635 448,077
Government Funds transferred to BEERESREHNE
UGC Matching Grant Fund
Surplus of Non-government Funds BT EERER 861,644 1,643,884
transferred to Restricted Funds BEEHRAES
1,448,225 2,578,644

The notes set out on pages 22 to 89 form an integral part of these financial statements.
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THE CHINESE UNIVERSITY OF HONG KONG

EREPXKB
BALANCE SHEET

BERRR
AS AT 30 JUNE 2014

—®-mFAASTHE

xpressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars) (BAE#FTHIR)

Note 2014 2013
MizE (Restated)
(E5!)
Non-Current Assets EREEE

Investments in Subsidiaries KRB ASIMNEE 12 110,257 110,257
Fixed Assets EE&EE 14 5,997,920 5,970,491
Investments ®BE 15 3,348,433 3,851,328
Employee Retirement Benefit Assets EESRAEMNEE 16 10,628 10,080
Other Receivables HthFEWFRIE 17 53,490 167,254
9,520,728 10,109,410

Current Assets mENBEE
Investments B’E 15 2,665,031 2,248,115
Staff Loans BHEEEM 25 211,213 231,547
Accounts Receivable, Prepayments and FEUTIRR ~ FEITFRIER 17 428,756 360,798

Other Receivables HAthFEURIE

Cash and Short-term Deposits with Banks IREMERITRREAEMR 18 8,334,729 6,650,495
11,639,729 9,490,955

Current Liabilities mENaE
Accounts Payable and Accruals FEFTIRFA M FEE T E F 19 967,759 970,585
Provision for Employee Benefits &S 155 S 20 411,754 380,869
Loans and Borrowings (EEN 21 77,275 84,274
Deferred Income EFEY 25 22 395,345 323,728
1,852,133 1,759,456
Net Current Assets mENBEERE 9,787,596 7,731,499
Total Assets Less Current Liabilities BEERTBEE 19,308,324 17,840,909

Non-Current Liabilities EREEE

Provision for Employee Benefits B S8 % 20 210,829 197,313
Loans and Borrowings (L0 21 38,822 45,098
Deferred Income AEFEYL &5 22 361,999 299,678
611,650 542,089
Deferred Capital Funds BEBEERE 23 3,588,057 3,638,428
NET ASSETS BEFE 15,108,617 13,660,392
Restricted Funds SEHEE 10 11,404,832 10,543,188
Other Funds HihBE 11 3,703,785 3,117,204

TOTAL FUNDS 2208

Approved and authorised for issue by the Council on 23 October 2014
REGNR_T—MF+HAT+=AtERSERRILMIEERER

15,108,617

13,660,392

Vincent H. C. Cheng Ef;8R
Chairman of the Council RE2F[F

Joseph J. Y. Sung §iitH2E
Vice-Chancellor &£

Roger K. H. Luk [F#i= Salome Chan [tk B5%
Treasurer )& University Bursar B1#& &

The notes set out on pages 22 to 89 form an integral part of these financial statements.
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THE CHINESE UNIVERSITY OF
HEEPXXE

STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN FUNDS

EZg#HR

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2014

HE—_T-NFRA=THLFE

HONG K

(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars) (JAi&#&F755lR)

Other Funds HfttE%E (Note FfizE 11)
General and UGC Total
Development Matching
Reserve Fund Grants
—MRERE nED
RiFEE fosdfibnE ]
Balance - 1 July 2012 —E-—FtA—H%&8R 1,171,770 1,010,674 2,182,444
Effect of adoption of Revised FRAMHKAS 191ERT HOR 28 - - -
HKAS19
Restated balance - 1 July 2012 “S—_"FtBA—H#&REN) 1,171,770 1,010,674 2,182,444
Restated transfers from/(to) the — BER/(E)Z2EUWER(ES) 486,683 448,077 934,760
Statement of Comprehensive
Income and Expenditure
Inter-fund Transfer EEMZEIR i i i
Restated Balance - 30 June 2013 —&—=F:A=+AM& 1,658,453 1,458,751 3,117,204
and 1 July 2013 —E—-=FtA—B4&REY)
Transfers from/(to) the BER/(E)ZEZER 536,946 49,635 586,581
Statement of Comprehensive
Income and Expenditure
Inter-fund Transfer B2z ER i i i
Balance - 30 June 2014 —EB-mEXA=TALR 1,508,386 3,703,785

The notes set out on pages 22 to 89 form an integral part of these financial statements.

NERE-TBENTAEZMEERSRMBERER &G -
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Restricted Funds =fEZ (Note KizE10)

Capital ~ Endowment Other Building ~ Research Others Total Total
Funds Funds Restricted Funds Project (Note 10.2) Funds
Funds Funds
Hith = B#HEIER MRIER Hith
HEEE BEEE E: EE 2E (MifEE 10.2) it BEEHEE
2,063,181 2,647,819 1,865,730 49,112 559,606 1,732,747 8,918,195 11,100,639
- - - - - (18,891) (18,891) (18,891)
2,063,181 2,647,819 1,865,730 49,112 559,606 1,713,856 8,899,304 11,081,748
268,882 439,157 577,611 (189,626) 131,498 416,362 1,643,884 2,578,644
- (93,917) 21,750 34,224 (10,618) 48,561 - -

2,332,063 2,993,059 2,465,091 (106,290) 680,486 2,178,779 10,543,188 13,660,392

77,800 319,839 472,838 (145,784) 59,889 77,062 861,644 1,448,225

- (17,862)  (273,546) 373,148 (41,623) (40,117) - -

2,409,863 3,295,036 2,664,383 121,074 698,752 2,215,724 11,404,832 15,108,617




THE CHINESE UNIVERSITY OF HONG KO

HEREPXKR
CASH FLOW STATEMENT

BERER
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2014

HE_T-NFRA=THLFE

(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars) (IA&4F7T5lR)

2014 2013
(Restated)
(&51)
Operating Activities REEH
Surplus for the Year REFERER 1,447,621 2,572,214
Adjustments for: HEIER
Depreciation e 380,298 362,295
Loss on Disposal of Fixed Assets HEBTEEERIE 333 30,096
Interest and Net Investment Income MERIGE RS (668,193)  (576,586)
Operating Surplus before Changes in EESTEIP LSRR 1,160,059 2,388,019
Working Capital
Decrease in Employee Retirement EERNENEEZHS 56 324
Benefit Assets
Decrease/(Increase) in Accounts Receivable, FEMSTIRR ~ T RIS Re EL {th FEUK 45,700 (1,906)
Prepayments and Other Receivables FRIEZ R (35 h0)
Decrease in Accounts Payable FEFTIRFR N FER T E R ZiR (2,826) (72,111)
and Accruals
Increase in Provision for Employee & S48+ &5 Zigm 44,401 43,028
Benefits
Increase in Deferred Income EEIES R I8N 133,938 178,001
Net Cash Generated from Operating Activities & EMEERREREH 1,381,328 2,535,355
Investing Activities BEEE
Increase in Time Deposits with FEREEE=E BERER (2,047,145) (2,664,878)
Maturity Period over Three Months RZ3E NN
Payment for Capital Expenditure BARBZM™M (408,598)  (919,846)
Proceeds from Disposal of Fixed Assets HEBEEERSNIE 538 767
Payment for Purchase of Investments BRRE (68,463) (32,114)
Payment for Investments in Subsidiaries BRERMBEAS - (11,983)
Proceeds from Sales of Investments HEREFRBMIE 622,097 673,462
Dividend Received SR 2,777 2,483
Interest Received 2HFE 197,867 213,805
Loans Granted to Staff HEE BN (29,810) (32,600)
Loans Repaid by Staff B EEN 50,144 42,815
Net Cash Used in Investing Activities BEREFRER 2 R E B (1,680,593) (2,728,089)




THE CHINESE UNIVERSITY OF HONG KON
BREPxXHR

CASH FLOW STATEMENT (Continued)
RERER (8

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2014
BE-F-NFAA=+HLEE

(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars) (MA&4F7T5lR)

Note 2014 2013
PifsE (Restated)
(E51)
Financing Activities R ESE
Secured Loan Received EHIRHRER - 40,000
(Decrease)/Increase in Deferred Capital Funds ~ EEEEE S Z(R2)/1EM (50,371) 257,806
Bank Loans Obtained for On-lending to Staff HEFHEEZIRTEMR 3,000 6,000
Repayment of Secured Loan EETIRRER (6,275) (15,801)
Repayment of Bank Loans for On-lending EEEHETHAHEZRTER (10,000) (9,000)
to Staff
Net Cash (Used in)/Generated from BB EEN AR (ER) EE R EFE (63,646) 279,005
Financing Activities
Net (Decrease)/Increase in Cash and Cash RERBRESEY (362,911) 86,271
Equivalents (RS g
Cash and Cash Equivalents RERREEEY - TR 724,153 637,882
- Beginning of Year
Cash and Cash Equivalents - End of Year RERRETEEY - FRER 18 361,242 724,153

The notes set out on pages 22 to 89 form an integral part of these financial statements.
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THE CHINESE UNIVERSITY OF HONG KONG

HEREPXKER
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B TR B RE

BASIS OF CONSOLIDATION

The consolidated financial statements include the
financial statements of The Chinese University of
Hong Kong which includes Morningside College,
S. H. Ho College, C. W. Chu College, Wu Yee Sun
College, and Lee Woo Sing College (collectively
the “University”) and of the Trustees of the four
separately established constituent Colleges,
namely The Trustees of Chung Chi College, The
Trustees of New Asia College, The Trustees of
United College and The Trustees of Shaw College
(collectively the “Group”). The Trustees of these
constituent Colleges were incorporated under
The Chinese University of Hong Kong Ordinance
(the “Ordinance”). As these constituent Colleges
function to complement the University in the
provision of a balanced, holistic education which
also embodies different intellectual and cultural
traditions, management of the University is of
the opinion that the Trustees of these constituent
Colleges are created to accomplish academic
and related objectives, consistent with those of
the University. Pursuant to Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standard 10 “Consolidated Financial
Statements”, the consolidated financial statements
of the University include the financial results and
assets and liabilities relating to the Trustees of the
four separately established constituent Colleges.
The aggregate surplus for the year ended 30 June
2014 of the Trustees of these four separately
established constituent Colleges amounted to $35
million (2013: $79 million) and their aggregate net
assets at the balance sheet date amounted to
$1,535 million (2013: $1,500 million).

The consolidated financial statements have
not incorporated the financial statements of the
University’s subsidiaries as management is of
the opinion that their total net assets and net
income, which would have constituted 1.4% (2013:
1.4%) and 0.3% (2013: 0.1%) of the respective
consolidated totals, are insignificant.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

2.1 Statement of Compliance
These financial statements have been
prepared in accordance with all applicable
Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
(“HKFRSs”), which collective term includes
all applicable individual Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards, Hong Kong Accounting
Standards (“HKASs”) and Interpretations
issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants (“HKICPA”) and accounting
principles generally accepted in Hong Kong. A
summary of the significant accounting policies
adopted by the Group is set out below.
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The HKICPA has issued a number of new HKFRSs
and amendments to HKFRSs that are first effective
for the current accounting period of the Group and
the University. Of these, the following developments
are relevant to the Group’s financial statements:

 HKFRS 10, Consolidated financial statements

«  HKFRS 12, Disclosure of interests in other
entities

HKFRS 13, Fair value measurement

* Revised HKAS 19, Employee benefits

* Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2009-2011
cycle

*  Amendments to HKFRS 7 - Disclosures -
offsetting financial assets and financial liabilities

HKFRS 10, Consolidated financial statements

HKFRS 10 replaces the requirements in HKAS 27,
Consolidated and separate financial statements
relating to the preparation of consolidated financial
statements and HK-SIC 12 Consolidation — Special
purpose entities. It introduces a single control
model to determine whether an investee should
be consolidated, by focusing on whether the entity
has power over the investee, exposure or rights
to variable returns from its involvement with the
investee and the ability to use its power to affect
the amount of those returns.

As a result of the adoption of HKFRS 10, the Group
has changed its accounting policy with respect to
determining whether it has control over an investee.
The adoption does not change any of the control
conclusions reached by the Group in respect of its
involvement with other entities as at 1 July 2013.

HKFRS 12, Disclosure of interests in other
entities

HKFRS 12 brings together into a single standard
all the disclosure requirements relevant to an
entity’s interests in subsidiaries, joint arrangements,
associates and unconsolidated structured entities.
The disclosures required by HKFRS 12 are generally
more extensive than those previously required by
the respective standards. To the extent that the
requirements are applicable to the Group, the Group
has provided those disclosures in notes 12 and 30.4.

HKFRS 13, Fair value measurement

HKFRS 13 replaces existing guidance in individual
HKFRSs with a single source of fair value
measurement guidance. HKFRS 13 also contains
extensive disclosure requirements about fair value
measurements for both financial instruments and
non-financial instruments. To the extent that the
requirements are applicable to the Group, the Group
has provided those disclosures in notes 13 and 30.3.
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Revised HKAS 19, Employee benefits

Revised HKAS 19 introduces a number of amendments
to the accounting for defined benefit schemes. Among
them, revised HKAS 19 eliminates the “corridor method”
under which the recognition of actuarial gains and losses
relating to defined benefit schemes could be deferred and
recognised in the statement of income and expenditure
over the expected average remaining service lives of
employees. Under the revised standard, all actuarial gains
and losses are required to be recognised immediately
in other comprehensive income. Revised HKAS 19 also
changed the basis for determining income from scheme
assets from expected return to interest income calculated
at the liability discount rate, and requires immediate
recognition of past service cost, whether vested or not.

As a result of the adoption of revised HKAS 19, the
Group has changed its accounting policy with respect to
defined benefit scheme, for which the corridor method
was previously applied. This change in accounting policy
has been applied retrospectively by restating the balances
at 1 July 2012 and 30 June 2013, with consequential
adjustments to comparatives for the year ended 30 June
2013 as follows:
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Effect of
adoption
As previously of Revised
reported HKAS19 As restated
(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars) ERAAHKAS19
(ABETTHIR) MAT25R BTS2 Eg]
Consolidated Statement of 8E—F-=FA=1HL
Comprehensive Income FazmREER
and Expenditure for the
year ended 30 June 2013
Institutional Support - Management REHEIARTS - BB NA—AR (238,824) (492) (239,316)
and General =<1
Expenditure % (6,147,253) (492) (6,147,745)
Surplus for the year REERER 2,652,281 (492) 2,651,789
Remeasurement of Defined Benefit SEMERTEMNEFTE - 6,430 6,430
Scheme
Total comprehensive income FFEEEEW S 2,673,448 5,938 2,679,386
for the year
Attributable to: BER:
Surplus of Non-government Funds RS RSES 1,738,688 5,938 1,744,626
transferred to Restricted Funds HEES
Consolidated statement of changes R=F—=%F;xA=1H
in funds as at 30 June 2013 SEETEHR
Transfer from the statement of BEHZEERR 429,962 5,938 435,900
comprehensive income and
expenditure to restricted funds
- Others
Restricted funds - Others HRES - Hith 2,886,187 (12,953) 2,873,234



Effect of

adoption
As previously  of Revised
reported HKAS19 As restated

(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars) BRAMHKAS19
(BT TTHIR) PUETE= {EETHIR & 551
Consolidated statement of changes n==/—-—F;5A=1+H

in funds as at 30 June 2012 FEESEHR
Restricted funds - others SRES - Hith 2,407,664 (18,891) 2,388,773
Consolidated balance sheet as at N=F-=%xB=1AH

30 June 2013 FREEAER
Employee Retirement Benefit Assets EERNENEE 23,033 (12,953 10,080
Non-Current Assets ERmBENEE 10,458,895 (12,953) 10,445,942
Total Assets Less Current Liabilities mEERRETas 19,355,465 (12,953) 19,342,512
NET ASSETS BESE 15,174,024 (12,953) 15,161,071
Restricted funds SHES 12,056,820 (12,953) 12,043,867
TOTAL FUNDS EHewmim 15,174,024 (12,953) 15,161,071
Consolidated balance sheet as at n=F—-=-%F;B=1H

30 June 2012 GREERER
Employee Retirement Benefit Assets EERKENEE 22,865 (18,891) 3,974
Non-Current Assets IEmEEE 10,296,426 (18,891) 10,277,535
Total Assets Less Current Liabilities WEERRIMAs 16,364,506 (18,891) 16,345,615
NET ASSETS EEFE 12,500,576 (18,891) 12,481,685
Restricted funds SHES 10,318,132 (18,891) 10,299,241
TOTAL FUNDS B8 12,500,576 (18,891) 12,481,685
Statement of comprehensive BE—F-=F7A=1HL

income and expenditure for the PEER

year ended 30 June 2013
Institutional Support - Management REEHEARTS - SN (238,731) (492) (239,223)

and General =I5
Expenditure % (6,059,817) (492)  (6,060,309)
Surplus for the year REERE 2,572,706 (492) 2,572,214
Remeasurement of Defined Benefit SHEIERTEMNHETE - 6,430 6,430

Scheme
Total comprehensive income for the year REEZHEWHAREE 2,572,706 5,938 2,578,644
Attributable to: mER:
Surplus of Non-government Funds BT EEREREE 1,637,446 5,938 1,643,384

transferred to Restricted Funds EHES
Statement of changes in funds as at N=F-=%xB=1AH

30 June 2013 EEEHR
Transfer from the statement LSS 410,424 5,938 416,362

of comprehensive income and

expenditure to restricted funds -

others
Restricted funds - others SRES - Hith 2,191,732 (12,953) 2,178,779
Statement of changes in funds as at NR==T—-=_F;A=1+AH

30 June 2012 EFEHXR
Restricted funds - others HHESR - Hith 1,732,747 (18,891) 1,713,856




Effect of

adoption
As previously ~ of Revised

reported HKAS19 As restated
(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars) BE4HKAS19
(LAFBHETFTTHIT) ETEE S P2 0] 7 =2l
Balance sheet as at 30 June 2013 R=F—-=F<A=1H

BEASGBR
Employee Retirement Benefit Assets EERNENEE 23,033 (12,953) 10,080
Non-Current Assets EmENEE 10,122,363 (12,953) 10,109,410
Total Assets Less Current Liabilities BEERMRHSEE 17,853,862 (12,953) 17,840,909
NET ASSETS EEFE 13,673,345 (12,933) 13,660,392
Restricted funds ERES 10,556,141 (12,933) 10,543,188
TOTAL FUNDS BE&EE 13,673,345 (12,933) 13,660,392
Balance sheet as at 30 June 2012 R=Z—-=-fF5XA=1+H
BEESGBR

Employee Retirement Benefit Assets BERAKEINEE 22,865 (18,891) 3,974
Non-Current Assets ERENEE 9,953,004 (18,891) 9,934,113
Total Assets Less Current Liabilities BEERREAE 14,963,865 (18,891) 14,944,974
NET ASSETS EEFE 11,100,639 (18,891) 11,081,748
Restricted funds HREE 8,918,195 (18,891) 8,899,304
TOTAL FUNDS HEEEH 11,100,639 (18,891) 11,081,748

Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2009-2011 Cycle

This cycle of annual improvements contains amendments to five
standards with consequential amendments to other standards
and interpretations. Among them, HKAS 1 has been amended
to clarify that an opening balance sheet is required only when a
retrospective application of an accounting policy, a retrospective
restatement or a reclassification has a material effect on the
information presented in the opening balance sheet. The
amendments also remove the requirement to present related
notes to the opening statement of financial position when such
statement is presented.

Amendments to HKFRS 7 — Disclosures — Offsetting
financial assets and financial liabilities

The amendments introduce new disclosures in respect of
offsetting financial assets and financial liabilities. Those new
disclosures are required for all recognised financial instruments
that are set off in accordance with HKAS 32, Financial
instruments: Presentation and those that are subject to an
enforceable master netting arrangement or similar agreement
that covers similar financial instruments and transactions,
irrespective of whether the financial instruments are set off in
accordance with HKAS 32.

The adoption of the amendments does not have any impact on
these financial statements because the Group has not offset
financial instruments, nor has it entered into master netting
arrangement or similar agreement which is subject to the
disclosures of HKFRS 7 during the periods presented.
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Basis of preparation of the financial statements

The measurement basis used in the preparation
of the financial statements is the historical cost
basis except as otherwise stated in the accounting
policies below.

The preparation of financial statements in conformity
with HKFRSs requires management to make
judgements, estimates and assumptions that affect
the application of policies and reported amounts
of assets, liabilities, income and expenses. The
estimates and associated assumptions are based
on historical experience and various other factors
that are believed to be reasonable under the
circumstances, the results of which form the basis
of making the judgements about the carrying values
of assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent
from other sources. Actual results may differ from
these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are
reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to
accounting estimates are recognised in the period
in which the estimate is revised if the revision affects
only that period, or in the period of the revision and
future periods if the revision affects both current
and future periods.

Subsidiaries

Subsidiaries are entities controlled by the Group.
The Group controls an entity when it is exposed, or
has rights, to variable returns from its involvement
with the entity and has the ability to affect those
returns through its power over the entity. When
assessing whether the Group has power, only
substantive rights (held by the Group and other
parties) are considered.

An investment in a subsidiary is consolidated into
the consolidated financial statements from the date
that control commences until the date that control
ceases. Intra-group balances and transactions
and any unrealised profits arising from intra-group
transactions are eliminated in full in preparing
the consolidated financial statements. Unrealised
losses resulting from intra-group transactions are
eliminated in the same way as unrealised gains
but only to the extent that there is no evidence of
impairment.

In the University’s Balance Sheet, investments in
subsidiaries are stated at cost less any impairment
losses, if any (see note 2.9).
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2.4 Fixed Assets

Fixed Assets, other than Construction In Progress
and Art Collection, are stated in the Balance Sheet at
cost less accumulated depreciation and impairment
losses, if any (see note 2.9).

Construction In Progress represents buildings and
other fixed assets under construction, and is stated
at cost less any impairment losses, if any (see note
2.9) and is not depreciated. Construction In Progress
is reclassified to the appropriate category of fixed
assets when completed and is ready for use.

Art Collection is stated at cost less any impairment
losses, if any (see note 2.9). The residual value of
art collection is expected to be equal to or greater
than the carrying amount, therefore Art Collection
is not depreciated.

Leasehold Land granted by the Government of
the Hong Kong Special Administrative Region (the
“Government”) for use by the University is recorded
at nil value.

The cost of an asset comprises its purchase price
and any directly attributable costs of bringing the
assets to its working condition and location for its
intended use. Where it can be clearly demonstrated
that subsequent expenditure on an asset has
resulted in an increase in its future economic benefit,
such expenditure is capitalised as an additional cost
of that asset.

Depreciation is calculated to write off the cost of fixed
assets, less their estimated residual value, using the
straight-line method over their estimated useful lives
or economic lives, whichever is shorter, as follows:

Interest in Leasehold Land Over the remaining

held for Own Use under lease term

Operating Leases

Buildings Shorter of remaining
lease term and 40
years

Equipment, Furniture 3-10 years

and Fittings
Assets acquired for
Research Projects

Shorter of useful
life and duration of
project

The gain or loss on disposal or retirement of a fixed
asset is determined as the difference between the
net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of
the fixed asset and is recognised in the Statement
of Comprehensive Income and Expenditure on the
date of retirement or disposal.

Where parts of an item of fixed assets have different
useful lives, the cost of the item is allocated on a
reasonable basis between the parts and each part
is depreciated separately. Both the useful life of an
asset and its residual value, if any, are reviewed
annually.
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2.5

2.6

Investment properties

Investment properties are land and/or buildings
which are owned or held under a leasehold interest
to earn rental income and/or for capital appreciation.
These include land held for currently undetermined
future use.

Investment properties are stated in the Balance
Sheet at cost less accumulated depreciation and
impairment losses (see note 2.9). Any gain or loss
arising from the disposal of an investment property
is recognised in the Statement of Comprehensive
Income and Expenditure. Rental income from
investment properties is accounted for as described
in note 2.13(v).

Depreciation is calculated to write off the cost of
investment properties, using the straight line method
over their estimated useful lives. Useful lives of
investment properties are the same as for buildings
or interest in leasehold land held for own use under
operating leases as shown in note 2.4.

Leased Assets

Leases of assets under which the lessor has not
transferred all the risks and benefits of ownership
are classified as operating leases, except for
property held under operating leases that would
otherwise meet the definition of an investment
property is classified as an investment property on
a property-by-property basis.

(i) Assets Held for Use in Operating Leases

Where the Group or the University leases out
assets under operating leases, the assets are
included in the Balance Sheet according to
their nature and depreciated in accordance
with the accounting policies as set out in note
2.4. Income arising from operating leases is
recognised in accordance with the income
recognition policies, as set out in note 2.13(v).

(i) Operating Lease Charges

Where the Group or the University has the use
of assets under operating leases, payments
made under the leases are charged to the
Statement of Comprehensive Income and
Expenditure in equal instalments over the
accounting periods covered by the lease term.
Lease incentives received are recognised
in the Statement of Comprehensive Income
and Expenditure as an integral part of the
aggregate net lease payments made.
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2.7

Investments

The Group’s and the University’s policies for
investments in securities other than investments in
subsidiaries are as follows:

(i)

(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

Dated debt securities that the Group and/
or the University has the positive ability and
intention to hold to maturity are classified as
held-to-maturity securities. Held-to-maturity
securities are initially recognised in the Balance
Sheet at fair value plus transaction costs.
Subsequently, they are stated in the Balance
Sheet at amortised cost less impairment losses
(see note 2.9).

Investments in securities held for trading are
classified as current assets and are initially
stated at fair value. At each balance sheet date
the fair value is remeasured, with any resultant
gain or loss being recognised in the Statement
of Comprehensive Income and Expenditure.

Investments in equity securities that do not
have a quoted market price in an active market
and whose fair value cannot be reliably
measured are recognised in the Balance Sheet
at cost less impairment losses (see note 2.9).

Limited Partnership investment and alternative
investments are initially recognised at fair
value. At each balance sheet date, the fair
value is remeasured, with any resultant gain
or loss being recognised in the Statement of
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure.

Other investments in securities are classified
as available-for-sale securities and are initially
recognised at fair value plus transaction costs.
At each balance sheet date the fair value is
remeasured, with any resultant gain or loss
being recognised directly in fair value reserve,
except for impairment losses (see note 2.9)
and, in the case of monetary items such as debt
securities, foreign exchange gains and losses
which are recognised directly in the Statement
of Comprehensive Income and Expenditure.
Where these investments are interest-bearing,
interest calculated using the effective interest
method is recognised in the Statement of
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure.
When these investments are derecognised, the
cumulative gain or loss previously recognised
directly in fair value reserve is recognised in
the Statement of Comprehensive Income and
Expenditure.
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(vi)Investments in securities are recognised/
derecognised on the date the Group and/or
the University commits to purchase/sell the
investments or they expire.

Staff Loans and Accounts Receivable

Staff Loans and Accounts Receivable are initially
recognised at fair value and thereafter stated at
amortised cost less impairment losses for bad
and doubtful debts (see note 2.9), except where
the effect of discounting would be immaterial. In
such cases, the receivables are stated at cost less
impairment losses for bad and doubtful debts (see
note 2.9).

Impairment of Assets

(i) Impairment of investments in debt and equity
securities and receivables:

Investments in debt and equity securities and
receivables that are stated at cost or amortised
cost or are classified as available-for-sale
securities are reviewed at each balance sheet
date to determine whether there is objective
evidence of impairment. Objective evidence of
impairment includes observable data that comes
to the attention of the Group about one or more
of the following loss events:

- significant financial difficulty of the debtor;

- a breach of contract, such as a default
or delinquency in interest or principal
payments;

- it becoming probable that the debtor
will enter bankruptcy or other financial
reorganisation;

- significant changes in the technological,
market, economic or legal environment that
have an adverse effect on the debtor; and

- a significant or prolonged decline in the
fair value of an investment in an equity
instrument below its cost.

If any such evidence exists, any impairment loss
is determined and recognised in the Statement
of Comprehensive Income and Expenditure as
follows:

2.8
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For unquoted equity securities and receivables
that are carried at cost, the impairment loss
is measured as the difference between the
carrying amount of the financial asset and the
present value of estimated future cash flows,
discounted at the current market rate of return
for a similar financial asset where the effect of
discounting is material. Impairment losses for
receivables are reversed if in a subsequent
period the amount of the impairment loss
decreases. Impairment losses for equity
securities are not reversed.

For financial assets carried at amortised cost,
the impairment loss is measured as the
difference between the asset’s carrying amount
and the present value of estimated future
cash flows, discounted at the financial asset’s
original effective interest rate (i.e. the effective
interest rate computed at initial recognition of
these assets).

If in a subsequent period the amount of an
impairment loss decreases and the decrease
can be linked objectively to an event occurring
after the impairment loss was recognised,
the impairment loss is reversed through the
Statement of Comprehensive Income and
Expenditure. A reversal of an impairment
loss shall not result in the asset’s carrying
amount exceeding that which would have
been determined had no impairment loss been
recognised in prior years.

For available-for-sale securities, the cumulative
loss that had been recognised directly in fair
value reserve is removed and is recognised in
the Statement of Comprehensive Income and
Expenditure. The amount of the cumulative
loss that is recognised in the Statement of
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure is
the difference between the acquisition cost (net
of any principal repayment and amortisation)
and current fair value, less any impairment
loss on that asset previously recognised in
the Statement of Comprehensive Income and
Expenditure.

Impairment losses recognised in the Statement
of Comprehensive Income and Expenditure in
respect of available-for-sale equity securities
are not reversed through the Statement of
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure.
Any subsequent increase in the fair value of
such assets is recognised directly in fair value
reserve.
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(i) Impairment of Other Assets

Internal and external sources of information
are reviewed at each balance sheet date to
identify indications that the Fixed Assets may
be impaired or an impairment loss previously
recognised no longer exists or may have
decreased.

If any such indication exists, the asset’s
recoverable amount is estimated.

- Calculation of recoverable amount

The recoverable amount of an asset is the
greater of its net selling price and value in use.
In assessing value in use, the estimated future
cash flows are discounted to their present
value using a discount rate that reflects current
market assessments of time value of money and
the risks specific to the asset. When an asset
does not generate cash inflows independently,
the recoverable amount is determined for the
smallest group of assets that generates cash
inflows independently (i.e. a cash generating
unit).

- Recognition of impairment losses

An impairment loss is recognised in the
Statement of Comprehensive Income and
Expenditure whenever the carrying amount of
an asset, or the cash-generating unit to which
it belongs, exceeds its recoverable amount.
Impairment losses are recognised to reduce the
carrying amount of the asset or assets in the
cash-generating unit on a pro rata basis, except
that the carrying value of an asset will not be
reduced below its individual fair value less costs
to sell, or value in use, if determinable.

- Reversal of impairment losses

An impairment loss is reversed if there has been
a favourable change in the estimates used to
determine the recoverable amount.

A reversal of an impairment loss is limited to
the asset’s carrying amount that would have
been determined had no impairment loss
been recognised in prior years. Reversals of
impairment losses are credited to the Statement
of Comprehensive Income and Expenditure in
the year in which the reversals are recognised.

2.10 Accounts Payable

Accounts Payable are initially recognised at fair
value and thereafter stated at amortised cost unless
the effect of discounting would be immaterial, in
which case they are stated at cost.
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Cash and Cash Equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash at banks
and in hand, demand deposits with banks and
other financial institutions, and short-term, highly
liquid investments that are readily convertible into
known amounts of cash, which are subject to an
insignificant risk of changes in value and their
maturity dates are within three months from the
date of acquisition.

Provisions and Contingent Liabilities

Provisions are recognised for liabilities of uncertain
timing or amount when the Group or the University
has a legal or constructive obligation arising as
a result of a past event, it is probable that an
outflow of economic benefits will be required to
settle the obligation and a reliable estimate can be
made. Where the time value of money is material,
provisions are stated at the present value of the
expenditure expected to settle the obligation.

Where itis not probable that an outflow of economic
benefits will be required, or the amount cannot be
estimated reliably, the obligation is disclosed as a
contingent liability, unless the probability of outflow
of economic benefits is remote. Possible obligations,
whose existence will only be confirmed by the
occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more future
events, are also disclosed as contingent liabilities
unless the probability of outflow of economic benefits
is remote.

2.13 Income Recognition

Income is measured at the fair value of the
consideration received/receivable. Provided it
is probable that the economic benefits will flow
to the Group or the University and the income
and expenditure, if applicable, can be measured
reliably, income is recognised in the Statement of
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure as follows:

(iy Government Subventions

Recurrent grants for general purposes are
recognised as income when the grants have
been received or are receivable from the
University Grant Committee (“UGC”). Any
such grants, which are received in excess of
the related expenses incurred are transferred
to the General and Development Reserve
Fund in the reporting period in accordance
with prevailing UGC guidelines.
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(iif)

Matching grants are recognised as income
when the grants have been received or are
receivable from the UGC.

Recurrent grants and earmarked grants for
specific purpose spent on capital expenditure
are initially recorded in Deferred Capital Funds
and are recognised as income over the useful
lives of the related assets when the assets
are put into use, to the extent of the related
depreciation expenses incurred for that period.

Earmarked grants for specific purposes
are recognised as income to the extent of
the related expenditure incurred during the
reporting period.

Interest Income

Interest income is recognised as it accrues
using the effective interest method.

Dividend

Dividend income from unlisted investments
is recognised when the shareholder’s right to
receive payment is established.

Dividend income from listed securities is
recognised when the share price of the
investment becomes ex-dividend.

Tuition, Programmes and Other Fees

Tuition, Programmes and Other Fees are
recognised on an accrual basis and unearned
fees are treated as receipts in advance.

Rental Income from Operating Leases

Rental income receivable under operating
leases is recognised in the Statement of
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure in
equal instalments over the accounting periods
covered by the lease term. Lease incentives
granted are recognised in the Statement of
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure as
an integral part of the aggregate net lease
payments receivable.

Donations and Benefactions

Donations and benefactions with general
purposes are recognised in the Statement of
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure when
the Group or the University become entitled to
the donations and it is probable that they will
be received.

(iii)

(v)

(vi)
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(vii) Other Service Income

Other service income is recognised in the
Statement of Comprehensive Income and
Expenditure when the related service is
rendered.

2.14 Books and Periodicals

Library books and periodicals are written off to
the Statement of Comprehensive Income and
Expenditure in the year in which the expenditure
is incurred.

2.15 Employee Benefits

(i)

(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

Salaries, paid annual leave, housing allowances
and the cost to the Group or the University of
non-monetary benefits are accrued in the
year in which the associated services are
rendered by the employees of the Group or
the University.

Contract-end gratuity is payable on completion
of a contract appointment with an employee
who has been in continuous employment of
not less than two years. The gratuity, together
with the total amount of the University’s
contributions to a particular retirement scheme,
will add up to 10% or 15% of the appointee’s
basic salary drawn during the contract period.

Contributions to defined contribution retirement
schemes, including Mandatory Provident
Funds (“MPF”) as required under the Hong
Kong Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes
Ordinance, are recognised as an expense in
the Statement of Comprehensive Income and
Expenditure as incurred.

The net obligation in respect of a defined
benefit retirement scheme is calculated by
estimating the amount of future benefit that
employees have earned in return for their
services in the current and prior periods; that
benefit is discounted to determine the present
value, and the fair value of any scheme assets
is deducted. The calculation is performed by
a qualified actuary using the projected unit
credit method. When the calculation results
in benefit to the Group or the University, the
recognised asset is limited to the present
value of economic benefits available in the
form of any future refunds from the scheme
or reductions in future contributions to the
scheme.
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2.16

Service cost and net interest expenses/
(income) on the net defined benefit asset are
recognised in the line item of staff cost and
benefits under Management and General
in the Statement of Comprehensive Income
and Expenditure. Current service cost is
measured as the increase in the present
value of the defined benefit obligation resulting
from employee service in the current period.
When the benefits of a scheme are changed
or when a scheme is curtailed, the portion of
the changed benefit related to past service by
employees, or the gain or loss on curtailment,
is recognised as an expense in the Statement
of Comprehensive Income and Expenditure at
the earlier of when the scheme amendment
or curtailment occurs and when related
restructuring costs or termination benefits are
recognised. Net interest expenses/(income)
for the period is determined by applying the
discount rate used to measure the defined
benefit obligation at the beginning of the year
to the net defined benefit asset. The discount
rate is the yield at the balance sheet date on
high quality corporate bonds that have maturity
dates approximating the terms of the Group’s
or the University’s obligations.

Remeaurements arising from defined
benefit retirement schemes are recognised
in other comprehensive income and
reflected immediately in restricted funds.
Remeasurements comprise actuarial gains
and losses, the return on plan assets (excluding
amounts included in net interest on the net
defined benefit asset) and any change in the
effect of the asset ceiling (excluding amounts
included in net interest on the net defined
benefit asset).

Termination benefits are recognised at the
earlier of when the Group or the University can
no longer withdraw the offer of those benefits
and when it recognises restructuring costs
involving the payment of termination benefits.

Translation of Foreign Currencies

Foreign currency transactions during the year are
translated into Hong Kong dollars at the exchange

rates ruling at the transaction dates.

Monetary

assets and liabilities in foreign currencies are
translated into Hong Kong dollars at the market
rates of exchange ruling at the balance sheet date.
Exchange gains and losses on foreign currency
translation are dealt with in the Statement of
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure.

FERNEENRIS AL FF S/ (A
EEERSZRTEEASEEL—RBEPNET
M RAEF - REFEERBRASREAFENES
RIS FRERIFAERABEREIEMAE - B
FTEINER SNt B BRI R RES B AR
BHEFNNEZE D - AEEREEEHRNIE
- BTERTEMSRTEARIRRS - AR AERE AR
FENRIHEETEMEPRER > £2EER
RPERBHZL - ZPFNFF S ZH/RA)ZR
RAMGTEFYRRERNEENMRRERAR
BRAERNEEMRE - BRXZERBEEBELT
BSNEERRREEINKRHRET ; i8E
REESNFHREABZEIABHRAERENER
INRTEIRIRFHAME -

FERMBAEISI BMERIESEEREM
FEW @S AR ERBRHN D RIR - EFFTE
HaEfFEED  FIEEENOR(FEEESHE
FRAERNEEANENEER)NEELRT
ENEUNS(FEEEIERRERNEER
HFENESEH) -

BHRIEHEEABRIENAB T EREIR T
e URTEHERS AT G HENE
HEMAME PR RIERER o

216 JHBRE

FHhBMIMEREMCEIERS @ IR S HZER
REREE REERRREEHIMNEERMEE
REE HUZACERRELEE - FRFEEREEB
WA ZENZRA




Non-monetary assets and liabilities that are measured
in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are
translated using the foreign exchange rates ruling
at the transaction dates. Non-monetary assets and
liabilities denominated in foreign currencies that are
stated at fair value are translated using the foreign
exchange rates ruling at the dates the fair value was
measured.

2.17 Related Parties

(a) A person, or a close member of that person’s
family, is related to the Group if that person:

(i) has control or joint control over the Group;
(ii) has significant influence over the Group; or

(i) is a member of the key management personnel
of the Group.

(b) An entity is related to the Group if any of the
following conditions applies:

(i) The entity and the Group are members of the
same group (which means that each parent,
subsidiary and fellow subsidiary is related to
the others).

(i) One entity is an associate or joint venture
of the other entity (or an associate or joint
venture of a member of a group of which the
other entity is a member).

(iii) Both entities are joint ventures of the same
third party.

(iv) One entity is a joint venture of a third entity
and the other entity is an associate of the third
entity.

(v) The entity is a post-employment benefit plan
for the benefit of employees of either the
Group or an entity related to the Group.

(vi) The entity is controlled or jointly controlled by
a person identified in (a).

(Vii)A person identified in (a)(i) has significant
influence over the entity or is a member of
the key management personnel of the entity
(or of a parent of the entity).

Close members of the family of a person are those
family members who may be expected to influence,
or be influenced by, that person in their dealings
with the entity.
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2.18 Taxation

The University is exempted from payment of Hong
Kong Profits Tax by virtue of Section 88 of the Inland

Revenue Ordinance.

2.18 Hix

3. GOVERNMENT SUBVENTIONS  HIFF&H)

(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)  (MA#E¥&TFT5lR)

BEPNASZGEETEHRBIRGISESSIFHT T - alfiRs
REEFMEH o

The Group and the University

REERERAZE
2014 2013
Subventions from UGC HEFEHm
Block Grants ERWE 3,157,586 3,069,860
Supplementary Grants IBHHENE 276,944 171,860
3,434,530 3,241,720
Earmarked Grants IEERERHIE
Research Grants RS fEBnE 172,802 180,489
Housing Benefits EEEF 18,893 20,676
Matching Grants Bt fEnE 81,193 508,551
Area of Excellence ERRERT] Gal 24,678 24,039
Ophthalmology and Visual Sciences ARFI RS 16,792 19,826
Restructuring and Collaboration Fund SHEKBRIERHBE 2,375 2,501
One-off Special Equipment Grant — BRI (BN E 7,615 8,478
Knowledge Transfer Activities HEEZEH 11,934 14,248
Other Earmarked Grants HitiEE AERME 7,925 14,317
Rates and Government Rent Refund RIREMNBATITE 57,503 43,209
Capital Grants and Alterations, Additions, — EZEfENEEILE ~ NEE - 149,264 169,065
Repairs and Improvements (AA&I) HIZRCNETERERIEM
Block Allocation
3,985,504 4,247,119
Grants from Government Agencies B TS IR 214,933 175,473

4,200,437

4,422,592




3.1 Matching Grants Eoi#iBh=E

(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

(BT IR

Matching Donations

Matching Donations

Grants Grants
B¥itEnE B EoEifHENE B
The Group The University
REBEERS RE
2014 2014
Balance - Beginning of Year FNEEER 1,458,751 1,696,177 1,458,751 1,606,565
Income WA
Grants/Donation H#HBNE /B 81,193 91,959 81,193 82,287
Interest and Net Investment Income Fl ERIZE B 75,413 117,259 75,413 113,765
156,606 209,218 156,606 196,052
Expenditure (Note) < (FfEE)
Teaching and Research BB 35,398 112,535 35,398 111,787
Student Exchange Activities B ZiEE 3,984 7,702 3,984 7,375
Student Development BaE 23,071 21,549 23,071 17,363
Scholarships REF 41,859 28,481 41,859 21,953
Bursaries BhEE - 1,520 - 1,470
Capital Projects HiEEg - 24,057 - 24,057
104,312 195,844 104,312 184,005
Transfer to Capital Fund EEXEEES (2,659) (13,880) (2,659) (13,544)
Balance - End of Year A HBER 1,508,386 1,695,671 1,508,386 1,605,068
The Group The University
REBEERE RE
2013 2013
Balance - Beginning of Year FHEERR 1,010,674 1,189,343 1,010,674 1,157,819
Income A
Grants/Donations BB 508,551| [1,027,528 508,551 960,178
Interest and Net Investment Income # B FI% & B UINEE 13,222 (1,434) 13,222 (3,763)
521,773 1,026,094 521,773 956,415
Expenditure (Note) R (FiEE)
Teaching and Research HEBLAR 16,547 151,072 16,547 150,891
Student Exchange Activities BERTEE 1,863 9,221 1,863 9,051
Student Development BEER 14,466 14,916 14,466 10,592
Scholarships REE 36,360 35,575 36,360 28,872
Bursaries B - 2,970 - 2,822
Capital Projects BElEE - 138,700 - 138,700
69,236 352,454 69,236 340,928
Transfer to Capital Fund HESEES (4.460) (166,806) (4,460) (166,741)
Balance - End of Year FHREERR

1,458,751

1,696,177 1,458,751

1,606,565



3.2

Note: For Matching Grant Schemes, private donations secured for purposes including construction of campus
buildings and scholarships but excluding self-financed activities were matched. Grants were awarded on
a dollar-for-dollar matching basis up to $60 million and on a $1 for $2 matching basis (i.e $1 Government
Grant for every $2 donation) for amounts beyond $60 million and limited to an overall total of $600 million
for each institute.

Fist: FoEtBEstEIRHASENAMARMEREAREERSNEEE - BFEEARBETINER - HhEXE
BATETERFEAN(EI—TH—TrbR)FE - HBREHAI— T MThtbR(BISmMTiA N BReFE—
TERAH#EIE)FE - MBS RBAHERET -

Matching Grants for Pilot Mainland Experience Scheme for Post-secondary Students

S B4 RtERA SR EHIE
(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)  (MAFE#EFIT5lITR)

The Group and the University

REERERAE
Matching Donation Matching Donation
Grants (Note) Grants (Note)
Ao¥#HBNE B; Ao¥#BNE BM
(Pi5E) (Pi5E)
2014 2013
Balance - Beginning of Year  SF#)4&8F 5,827 1,273 7,789 1,211
Income (Note) WA (KiEE)
Interest and Net Investment Fl 2L E TS 138 72 193 62
Income
138 72 193 62
Expenditure ZiH
Programme Costs BB
Academic Related Programs EfirtEREIEE (112) - 230 -
Career Related Programs MEMEEER (241) - 1,157 -
Cultural Related Programs XiEHEEER 445 - 403 -
Service Related Programs R¥EMEEIER 23 - 365 -
115 - 2,155 -
Balance - End of Year TR 5,850 1,345 5,827 1,273

Note: The matched donation is for supporting the development of the University.

FicE: FERCH ZIRIBR AR EMASEHE -

TUITION, PROGRAMMES AND OTHER FEES BE - RERHMNE
(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars) (AT T5lR)

The Group The University
REERE RE
2014 2013 2014 2013
UGC-Funded Programmes HESEMRE

Tuition Fees BE 873,064 834,763 873,064 834,763
Programmes and Other Fees ENMEMINE 16,093 17,105 16,093 17,105

Non-UGC-Funded Programmes B EIRE
Tuition Fees BE 1,061,455 1,000,897 1,058,092 997,583
Programmes and Other Fees RN EMIRE 17,282 8,660 17,341 8,650

1,967,894 1,861,425 1,964,590 1,858,101




INTEREST AND NET INVESTMENT INCOME FIB R E BN
(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)  (MAZE#EF7T5IT)

The Group The University
REBEEEE RE
2014 2013 2014 2013
Interest Income from Listed Securities LiESEH RS 3,276 5,067 2,819 3,456
Interest Income from Unlisted Securities JE_LrisgE%F 2UNs 83,212 109,946 82,440 107,728
Interest Income from Time Deposits EHEMRII 144,342 103,812 129,856 91,607
Net Realised and Unrealised HithsBH e BEEIRMR 467,633 343,007 449,960 317,503
Gain on Other Securities SRR
Net Realised and Unrealised Exchange BE&IREREIRZINE (17,142) 39,565  (15,676) 34,041
(Loss)/Gain from Time Deposits ST (B51E) /&
Dividends from Listed and LTHAIELETE 37,177 37,592 18,622 20,517
Unlisted Securities iAAStE
Other Investment Income Hie B 172 1,734 172 1,734

718,670 640,723 668193 576,586

DONATIONS AND BENEFACTIONS B ER
(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)  (MAE#FT5IR)

The Group The University
REER RE
2014 2013 2014 2013
Capital Projects HE#EIEE 24,021 8,013 - -
Scholarships, Prizes and Bursaries REF BRI NMEE 87,478 175,621 73,948 144,768
Donations for Research Activities RIES 83,608 196,584 83,608 196,584
Donations for Development of EREHERBM 40 27,124 40 27,124
Morningside College
Donations for Development of BR=EEMREM - 13,130 - 13,130
S. H. Ho College
Donations for Development of BEREBCEREBMR 31,132 34,605 31,132 34,605
C. W. Chu College
Donations for Development of RSB EMRBE 5,492 49,450 5,492 49,450
Lee Woo Sing College
Donations for Development of ERMEFRSEREN 500 41,963 500 41,963
Wu Yee Sun College
Donation for Development of BREBPIREGRY) 40,000 100,000 40,000 100,000
CUHK (S2)
Donations for General Academic Use =~ —RR#EIER 241,879 599,252 228,999 548,302

514,150 1,245,742 463,719 1,155,926

Note:(1) Total donations of $29.4 million were received from the Hong Kong Jockey Club Charities Trust for the year
(2013: $23.3 million).

(2) Totaldonation of $284,950 was raised from lottery sale for . CARE Programme. No operating expenses

were deducted. The whole proceeds were pooled into the . CARE Endowment Fund to support the
I.CARE Programme.

fizt: (1) AEEREEESEEECRESRECNEATTFAEN+ER (CF—=F “F=/=1&87%) -
(2) EHEEIMESHEFTMREENRIE - FHREERT 2R HN\BOTAER T CEAGEE
REEUZR GRS -



ANCILLARY SERVICES INCOME  E#BhARFSUIA
(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars) (AT T5lR)

The Group The University
REELRE K&

2014 2013 2014 2013

Resident Halls BiES 134,925 113,207 133,880 112,253
Rental Income HEWA 51,377 50,078 45,916 44,488
Catering and Hospitality Services ER N EERE 10,625 10,964 10,625 10,964
University Press KREH kRt 10,392 13,862 10,392 13,862
Rental Contribution from Staff ST MR 11,067 11,166 11,067 11,166
Retail Store Sales SEEHHE 2,176 1,920 2,176 1,920
Others Hith 27,329 21,050 27,335 21,058

247,891 222,247

241,391 215,711

OTHERINCOME  HftilitA
(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)  (MAE#FIT5lR)

The Group The University
KREREERE KE
2014 2013 2014 2013
Service Income BRFSUTA 191,419 190,110 190,701 188,923
Contract Research FBASH 84,265 72,933 84,242 72,652
Miscellaneous Hith 148,370 143,762 146,543 142,032

424,054 406,805

421,486 403,607




EXPENDITURE i
(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars) (AT T5lR)
The Group
REEGE
Staff Cost Operating Depreciation 2014
and Benefits Expenses Total
ETEM
Rt RERR e L]
Learning and Research Bilo B iR e
Instruction and Research BB 3,280,842 1,130,596 138,818 4,550,256
Library SES:E 87,542 129,527 4,050 221,119
Central Computing Facilities ch R EE KR it 79,442 30,030 14,102 123,574
Other Academic Services H At EB RS 113,695 _ 188,192 1,346 303,233
3,661,521 1,478,345 158,316 5,198,182
Institutional Support (Note 9.1)  XE3EHRNBRFE(FIFE9.1)
Management and General EBN—HREIE 198,330 62,326 16,226 276,882
Premises and Related Expenses  1#FRBREAZLE 156,389 292,470 202,938 651,797
Student and General Education BEN—BBEER 190,500 229,849 5,014 425,363
Services
Other Activities HAh=EE 20,246 17,072 492 37,810
565465 601,717 224,670 1,391,852
Total Expenditure - 2014 —E-MEATH 4,126,986 2,080,062 382,986 6,590,034
Staff Cost Operating Depreciation 2013
and Benefits Expenses Total
(Restated) (Restated)
ETHM - KERX e FEEE]
MAEF (E5l)
(E5)
Learning and Research BiliRHE
Instruction and Research BB 3,111,880 1,217,070 142,750 4,471,700
Library E=aE 78,441 99,665 4,569 182,675
Central Computing Facilities thREEER 67,494 32184 14,505 114,183
Other Academic Services Hith# 2R 109,639 29,837 2,245 141,721
3,367,454 1,378,756 164,069 4,910,279
Institutional Support (Note 9.1)  XEMHBENARTE(HIEE.1)
Management and General EBN—HREIE 179,057 42,097 18,162 239,316
Premises and Related Expenses  1#FREBRAZLE 151,035 238,427 178,723 568,185
Student and General Education BEN—BBEER 169,146 217,648 3,000 389,794
Services
Other Activities HAh=E5% 20,349 19,272 550 40,171
519,587 517,444 200,435 1,237,466
Total Expenditure - 2013 —S—-=FE%H 3,887,041 1,896,200 364,504 6,147,745




9.

3,861,468 1,836,546

362,295

EXPENDITURE i (Continued 4&)
(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)  (LAB#EFIT5Im)
The University
KE
Staff Cost Operating Depreciation 2014
and Benefits Expenses Total
BT %M
RtaFl KL= e FEEL]
Learning and Research Bl RR
Instruction and Research BB N 3,280,819 1,128,305 138,818 4,547,942
Library EEEE 87,542 129,527 4,050 221,119
Central Computing Facilities th R EE R E i 79,442 30,030 14,102 123,574
Other Academic Services H At EBARTS 103,948 185,762 1,312 291,022
3,651,751 1,473,624 158,282 5,183,657
Institutional Support (Note 9.1)  KE3HfBHART% (PFi15E9.1)
Management and General EEN—MREIE 198,330 62,305 16,104 276,739
Premises and Related Expenses BFNEHERH 155,828 283,519 200,488 639,835
Student and General Education BYEN—RBESE 176,492 195,871 4946 377,309
Services
Other Activities Hh=E% 20,133 14,044 478 34,655
550,783 555,739 222,016 1,328,538
Total Expenditure - 2014 —E-NFEATH 4,102,534 2,029,363 380,298 6,512,195
Staff Cost Operating Depreciation 2013
and Benefits Expenses Total
(Restated) (Restated)
ETHM KSR e b
ReaFl (E50)
(E27)
Learning and Research Bl KRR
Instruction and Research BEB MRS 3,111,861 1,214,515 142,749 4,469,125
Library SE:E 78,441 99,665 4,569 182,675
Central Computing Facilities thREBAKER 67,494 32,184 14,505 114,183
Other Academic Services EL{h A RS 101,105 27,509 2,210 130,824
3,358,901 1,373,873 164,033 4,896,807
Institutional Support (Note 9.1)  XKE3HfBART% (Pi15E9.1)
Management and General EEN—MREIE 179,057 42,057 18,109 239,223
Premises and Related Expenses EFAERERH 150,506 228,096 176,689 555,291
Student and General Education BYEN—BRBESE 153,635 175,788 2,931 332,354
Services
Other Activities HAhEE5 19,369 16,732 533 36,634
502,567 462,673 198,262 1,163,502
Total Expenditure - 2013 —E-=FaRH

6,060,309




9.1 Analysis of Institutional Support - Operating Expenses XEEBIIRISEEMEZ S

(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars) (AT T5lR)
The Group The University
REEGE RE
2014 2013 2014 2013
Management and General EEN—AEEIE
General Insurance — A IRBEE R 5,649 4,966 5,638 4,939
Legal and Other Professional Fees &2 REEEAHAER 1,681 296 1,668 283
Auditor’'s Remuneration ZEIETA 1,460 1,394 1,460 1,394
Other Operating Expenses Hith/Q&p% 53,536 35,441 53,539 35,441
62,326 42,097 62,305 42,057
Premises and Related Expenses BFREEXH
Repair and Maintenance HIERIRE 127,333 94,178 120,422 84,828
Utilities KEMERE 99,762 95,466 99,762 95,466
Government Rent and Rates 7= A s 59,201 45,010 59,008 44,871
Security, Environment and Safety RE RIENRESEE 2,787 1,892 2,159 1,307
Services
Property Insurance YIZEREEER 2,179 1,632 2,168 1,624
Other Operating Expenses Hth&E &% 1,208 249 - -
292,470 238,427 283,519 228,096
Student and General Education BEN—BHEER
Services
Scholarships, Prizes and Bursaries #2835 « 8 MEIEE 133,582 134,751 109,219 108,230
Resident Halls Expenses BLEESHX 32,576 28,668 31,816 27,566
Student Exchange Programme BaRREEl 11,401 8,018 11,387 7,996
Careers, Counseling Services and ~ Bi% - BiEREARELE 35,606 24,824 34,468 23,962
Student Activities ERINEE
Student/Extra-curriculum Activities ~— Z34/ERIMNEEN 2,148 4,765 - -
Alumni Affairs RRB4ERES 4,982 3,990 4,982 3,990
Sports and Other Facilities BB MEAMERE 2,374 1,997 2,346 1,936
Student Financial Aids BB &R 661 656 - -
Student and Staff Health Services B4 RABERMERTE 920 1,867 920 1,867
Other Operating Expenses Hith/Z&pz 5,599 8,112 733 241
229,849 217,648 195,871 175,788
Other Activities HhEE75
University Press REB R 10,359 10,071 10,361 10,074
Catering Services IERARTS 3,069 5,015 3,069 5,015
Souvenir Counter BmEn 353 447 353 456
Miscellaneous HIEZH 3,291 3,739 261 1,187
17,072 19,272 14,044 16,732
601,717 517,444 555,739 462,673

Note: $3,394,186 was spent on the . CARE Programme which was included in the Student and General

Education Services.

MizE: BEHEEIMIAN=ZE=TIAENT—E8N\t+/n EEEE2EL—RBTEBA -



9.2 Remuneration of Senior Staff SRE T ERE

The number of staff members in the University whose remuneration exceeded HK$1,800,000 during the years ended
30 June 2014 and 2013, irrespective of the funding sources and listed by the various bands, are as follows:

FEEMREFERSERNEZ T CFHEAREE BN \+TETNETAMUSERIINT :

The Group and the University

REBERE N KE
2014 2013
$ $

1,800,001 - 1,950,000 70 61
1,950,001 - 2,100,000 56 41
2,100,001 - 2,250,000 29 27
2,250,001 - 2,400,000 15 15
2,400,001 - 2,550,000 19 10
2,550,001 - 2,700,000 12 15
2,700,001 - 2,850,000 7 -
2,850,001 - 3,000,000 - 5
3,000,001 - 3,150,000 3 4
3,150,001 - 3,300,000 5 8
3,300,001 - 3,450,000 9 3
3,450,001 - 3,600,000 2 4
3,600,001 - 3,750,000 3 7
3,750,001 - 3,900,000 10 11
3,900,001 - 4,050,000 9 6
4,050,001 - 4,200,000 5 6
4,200,001 - 4,350,000 4 1
4,350,001 - 4,500,000 3 1
4,500,001 - 4,650,000 1
4,650,001 - 4,800,000 -
4,800,001 - 4,950,000 - -
4,950,001 - 5,100,000 - -
5,100,001 - 5,250,000 - 1
5,250,001 - 5,400,000 1 -
Total gy 263 T227

Included in the total figure above are 96 clinical staff members (2013: 95).

LT EIERAREEASHIBA (ZF—=F: 95A) -

Remuneration includes salaries, contributions to retirement schemes, housing benefits, education allowances,
contract-end gratuities and other allowances.

s BEEE  BRUNEHER  BEERT - HERM  Kinils R R8s -




10. RESTRICTED FUNDS EHEE

The reconciliation between the opening and closing balances of each component of the Group’s and the
University’s Restricted Funds are set out in the Consolidated Statement of Changes in Funds and the Statement
of Changes in Funds respectively.

ARERENABNEREEASERBI B MR GERNEIE - SREGREESEBRAESEFRPIE -

10.1 The Group KEERE

(i) As at 30 June 2014, the balance of Others includes the Pommerenke Trust Fund of $669 million (2013:

$670 million) and the operating reserves of $2,240 million (2013: $2,216 million) for self-financed activities,
ancillary services and privately funded projects. The Pommerenke Trust Fund originates from a gift of land
donated in 1970 to the Chung Chi College by the Reverend Herbert Henry Pommerenke and Mrs. Jean
Macpherson Pommerenke in commemoration of Doctors Stewart and Julia Kunkle. The land gift was
outside the precincts of the University and, since 1976 and in accordance with The Chinese University of
Hong Kong Ordinance, has been vested in the Board of Trustees of Chung Chi College on the same trusts
and subject to the same terms and conditions on which the land gift was then held.

BE_F—MFEAA=1H ' HttEZEERBERESEATAEER(CE—=F: XMELtTER) ' XKE
B&EiEE - AEBHEREARIABNEENKER#ZE_T -RETER(CS—=F : +F—F8E8xT) °
EEREEFEREMBMEIMAERAR—NLEFIERL Doctors StewartKJulia KunkleTMiG X4 RESRMN LT
i o EHEEIEE R L I ABE RS - B— N ERERE - IRBEEEPIABRANRBHSE ABRISEZ
LR MFTRIRNE RS U RABEIRR GG - REREERRES -

(i) The transfers to the various restricted funds, except for Capital Funds, are partially attributable to the

donations and benefactions of $514 million (2013: $1,246 million) as disclosed in Note 6.

REEERN)  BIRESERAEENHPTHEUEARRLAERNBECAR—THESR (CF—=F 1=/
MFREET) EE @ BREABRZ2TEFTIRHEE6RA -

10.2 The University K&

(i) As at 30 June 2014, the balance of Others includes the operating reserves of $1,445 million (2013: $1,264

million) for self-financed activities and ancillary services.

#EFT-MNFNA=TH HthEE T ECREBERNAABHBRBENEERFHERTONENTAEERT (=
T—=F:+Z/ATEEET) °

(i) The transfers to the various restricted funds, except for Capital Funds, are partially attributable to the

donations and benefactions of $464 million (2013: $1,156 million) as disclosed in Note 6.

REEESNI  BIRESSAESMHEPIROESHBEABRRECARGATHNEER(=F—=F :+—FHA
FAREETMESL - BEMERZ AN EFHIIRKET6A



NATURE AND PURPOSE OF RESTRICTED FUNDS
Capital Funds

Capital Funds represent the balance of net book
value of the Fixed Assets which were financed by
non-deferred funds.

Endowment Funds

Endowment Funds represent donations received by
the University, usually with the stipulation from the
donors that the principal amounts should remain
intact in perpetuity or for a defined time period for
specific purposes.

Other Restricted Funds

Other Restricted Funds represent the unspent
balance of funds donated for the development of new
colleges. In addition, the Funds also comprise the
unspent balance of sponsorship grants and service
income.

Building Funds

Building Funds comprise the privately-funded capital
projects funded by external private organisations.

Research Projects Funds

Research Projects Funds represent the unspent
balance of projects with designated purpose in
carrying out research activities, including those
funded by the Government, related organisations
and external private organisations.

Others
Others comprise reserves generated from self-

financed programmes, ancillary services, scholarships
and bursaries and miscellaneous activities.

SHEENHERAR

BEEES

EEESEHFEENESRENEEEENIREF
-
BXEE

HTEEEABWEMBEME  EREEEEEEX
EBFRETY  BEFENGEEEHERERERS -

HitnEHEE

HithERAEEBIEABRAERRTSRABEREA - It
5 - BEETNE S EBNIRRAVEREE M ARF LS o

BEEEESE
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1.

OTHER FUNDS HihEE

The reconciliation between the opening and closing balances of each component of the Group’s and the
University’s Other Funds are set out in the Consolidated Statement of Changes in Funds and the Statement of
Changes in Funds respectively.

ARBRENASBNEMEEAZAMID B RBERGERNEIER - SREGRSESE]RAESEIRPIT -

(1) The General and Development Reserve Fund (GDRF) represents the unspent funds carried over from one
funding period (usually a triennium) to the next to facilitate the University’s longer-term planning and new
developmental needs. The balance of the GDRF at the end of a funding period should not exceed 20% of
the University’s approved Recurrent Grants other than the Earmarked Grants for Specific Purposes for that
funding period, and any excess amount is refundable to UGC.

—RAERFEHRESERBEREREER=F)ARDAMIEES —BRAREABREEILERNES - —
R EREHRESHRCERUABEZECEEHHME(BHRARZEEHMERINNEAIZ=TRR - M
BHRENROREEABHEEHESE -

(2) $416 million of the UGC Matching Grants has been set aside as permanent endowment capital, to support
strategic initiatives such as endowed professorships, endowed scholarships and other indicated activities
in perpetuity. Only investment income from these permanent endowments will be used to fund these
programmes.

HESMEHHHNEPNIERE—T EECHREBRFEENESSE @ U RBMNRERIEE - SFEE#UIEH
fi - ERIRBE L EAMTEEE) - MZFRENEESE - ROURERESEBRINNRER@ T -



12.

INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES R HIBASIMNISE
(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)  (AE#FIT5IR)

The University
K2

2014 2013

Unlisted Shares, at cost FELTRRER » A 110,257 110,257

As explained in Note 1, the results of all subsidiaries including the following companies have not been consolidated
into the Group’s financial statements:-
WNFEE—FREE - XREREZWFRRIAILEES U T B LSRR

Name of company Place of Percentage of equity held Principal activities
incorporation FREEESLLE

and operation
smeisr by the University by a subsidiary

UNIEA o3 BASRE HNEISNT EBE
The Chinese University of Hong Kong Note Tosponsor, develop, promote and
Hong Kong Foundation &5 PitEE encourage public participation in
Limited public services
BEDNAZEER &)~ R - (BERERENTR
ABRAE BHNHEF
Information Networking Hong Kong 100% To provide technology transfer
Laboratories Limited * &E and investment holding
MEBBEARFABRAE] * RIEETEB RIS E R
The Hong Kong School Hong Kong 100% To operate intranet services for
Net Limited * B schools in Hong Kong
BEERBEBRAS) * EEBREERPREE
PA Company Limited Hong Kong 100% To provide services which are
E8ERAE] BE charitable and educational in
nature
RMEERHELENRE
HKIX Hong Kong Limited * British Virgin 100% Investment holding
Islands baa=—traliy
RERLHEE
The Hong Kong Internet Hong Kong 100% To provide internet services
eXchange Limited & RIL B AR AR
BHEEFRE AR
BIRAE]
CUGEN Limited * Hong Kong 100% To commercialise research
hEEMEEBRASE * T'E outputs

1R RE R




Name of company Place of

incorporation
and operation

Percentage of equity held

FrEfEEmitE

Principal activities

sEMBAIA; by the University by a subsidiary
NE)EHE FAE=—diuk- ] HBAXRZEHE HMEASRE TEFRH
CUCAMed Company Limited Hong Kong 100% To promote Chinese medicine in
PARPEERIFERAE] gE Hong Kong
aEEHEEDE
The Hong Kong Institute of Hong Kong Note To develop an internationally
Biotechnology Limited & FftEE recognised biotechnology industry
BELEYRE AR in Hong Kong
BIRAE] EEEZREFEDRINEYREZ
I
IBSOmed Bioscience Limited Hong Kong 100% To provide services and
ERBIFEBRAE &5E manufacture products related to
biotechnology
Rt B A YR XA W AR TS N E
mBGE
BHARERGRINERAS] *  People’s 100% To carry out research, technology
Republic transfer and related technical
of China services on advanced technology,
hEAR provide consulting service
HAE on international technology
development, and manage owned
properties
ST S - B BRI
R - BRI ESHESA  BEY
SHEHERE
Asia Diabetes Foundation Hong Kong Note To organise activities and
Limited * & PftsE research regarding diabetes on
a non-profit making basis
MAIEZ Rz AR SRR HE PR B SE
ENRAR
The Chinese University of Hong Kong Note To sponsor, develop, promote and
Hong Kong (Shenzhen) &iE FftEE encourage public participation in
Foundation Limited public services
BEPXKRB(F)NEES B R - (BENEREHEAR
BIRAE] SHNHER
The Chinese University Hong Kong 100% To provide health care and
Medical Centre & Hospital & associated services

Limited*

*  Companies not audited by KPMG.

* WABMIRE B AIFREFESEEISHAE -
Note: This is a company limited by guarantee without share capital.
Mzt WASIR—MEBRERAS - WEEAMER -

PR B N AR RRRR TS



13.

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

The Group’s and the University’s investment
properties were originated from building gifts and
stated at zero cost in the consolidated Balance
Sheet and Balance Sheet respectively. For
disclosure purpose, the Group’s and the University’s
investment properties were revalued as at 30
June 2014 by independent firms of surveyors,
DTZ Debenham Tie Leung Limited for Hong Kong
commercial investment properties and CBRE
HK Limited for Hong Kong residential investment
properties, both have appropriate qualifications and
experience in the valuation of properties.

Pursuant to the surveyors’ valuations, the
Group’s and the University’s recurring fair value
measurements categorised into Level 3 for the
Hong Kong commercial investment properties at the
end of the financial year were approximately $20.7
million. The Group’s and the University’s recurring
fair value measurements categorised into Level 3
for Hong Kong residential investment properties at
the end of the financial year were approximately
$147.7 million and nil respectively.

Such fair value measurement of the Group’s and the
University’s investment properties fall under Level
3 of the three-level fair value hierarchy as defined
in HKFRS 13, Fair value measurement, as it uses
significant unobservable inputs. The valuation meth-
odology for 2014 remains the same as prior year.

REWMR

AREEEDABHREMEREYEEE  LUT
BERRRAGEEEAERNEEAER - B
BEER  KEEBEMAKBNREMER-S—
MENB=1THRABRBIAEERRFELSE
DTZ BERITRUNRBENHEIREYEFNICBRE
HK Limited BN REBREEIREYEMEL®KE -

RBAENGE ROLBEAESEE=
ERARBEBARARBNMREENBRRE
MENKELARBEAERTIMBEELER
WHABZTFFLTERT - BORBEFEDSE
FZFMZABEELRABNUREENES
REVENKEAABEAERTHBRERELE
HRANVB—RETEtEETERRTT

REEEUBRESE 13 "AREENEL A
REN=ZFEARBESFR REAEAFITHRE
g KREERERABNREYREE=FRM
B ZF—MHFEENMGENSEZELFEMER -




14. FIXED ASSETS EIEEE
(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

(URBEETFTIIR)

The Group
AP
Equipment,
Construction Furniture

Art

(Note BffzE) in and Fittings Collection
Land Buildings Progress &&fis « HE il Total
Tt BEE THEEIRE PSE:] W L]
Cost DN
At 1 July 2013 = 336,848 6,745,575 385457 2,901,550 18,445 10,387,875
tHA—B#&
Additions 1Ehn - 186,914 4,952 218,211 1,475 411,552
Transfers B - 348969 (382,612) 33,643 - -
Disposals HieE - (1590) - (86,462) _ (88,052)
At 30 June 2014 —T—mF
NB=1TH#Ek 336,848 7,279,868 7,797 3,066,942 19,920 10,711,375
Accumulated Depreciation RiEHTEE
At 1 July 2013 T —=F 73,964 1,841,605 - 2,422,421 - 4,337,990
tH—R#4&&R
Charge for the Year s 7,732 179,099 - 196,155 - 382,986
Written Back on Disposal HERENE - - - (85,219) - (85,219)
At 30 June 2014 —=Z—mE
NBE=1TH#E: 81,696 2,020,704 - 2,533,357 - 4,635,757
Net Book Value at —_E-MFERA=1H
30 June 2014 IREFE 255,152 5,259,164 7,797 533,585 19,920 6,075,618
Cost %N
At 1 July 2012 B 336,848 5,305,943 1,214,380 2,733,108 17,186 9,607,465
tHR—B#k
Additions b2 - 482,449 144,213 303,320 1,259 931,241
Transfers L2 - 957,183 (973,136) 15,953 - -
Disposals HE - - - (150,831) - (150,831)
At 30 June 2013 =
NB=1TH#EE 336,848 6,745,575 385,457 2,901,550 18,445 10,387,875
Accumulated Depreciation RTEHTE
At 1 July 2012 “E—"F 66,233 1,677,714 - 2,349,507 - 4,093,454
tHA—R#&
Charge for the Year TEEEE 7,731 163,891 - 192,882 - 364,504
Written Back on Disposal HER DR - - - (119,968) - (119,968)
At 30 June 2013 —_F—=
NBE=1H#EE 73,964 1,841,605 - 2,422.421 - 4,337,990
Net Book Value at —E-=FA=1+H
30 June 2013 IREFE 262,884 4,903,970 385,457 479,129 18,445 6,049,885
Note: - Land refers to “Interest in Leasehold Land held for Own Use under Operating Leases”.

the Government for use by the University under medium-term leases and is stated at nil value.

PfiEE: -

MATRATIR -

TR EREE THNERL -
FREERERELIMLERIESRE - ARAUEERREHFAS MR BRAERE RN EPRRY - I

The properties, including land and buildings, are located in Hong Kong. Leasehold land of the Shatin campus is granted by



14. FIXED ASSETS [EIE&E (Continued 4&)

(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars) (MAE#F7T5IR)
The University
RE
Equipment,
Construction Furniture Art
(Note FizE) in and Fittings Collection
Land Buildings Progress &&fi -~ 8 T Total
it EE EETRE I T #zE
Cost 5%
At 1 July 2013 =% 336,848 6,666,373 385,457 2,892,813 16,613 10,298,104
tHA—RB%&
Additions &m0 - 186,129 4,952 216,170 1,347 408,598
Transfers % - 348,969 (382,612) 33,643 - -
Disposals HE - - - (85,914) - (85,914)
At 30 June 2014 -2
ANB=1H#EE 336,848 7,201,471 7,797 3,056,712 17,960 10,620,788
Accumulated Depreciation REifEE
At 1 July 2013 = 73,964 1,838,203 - 2,415,446 - 4,327,613
tHE—R#&R
Charge for the Year e 7,732 177,275 - 195,291 - 380,298
Written Back on Disposal HERZEIERE - - - (85,043) - (85,043)
At 30 June 2014 =l 5
ANBE=1TB#&8R 81,696 2,015,478 - 2,525,694 - 4,622,868
Net Book Value at —E—-mgEsA=1+H
30 June 2014 IR EE 255,152 5,185,993 7,797 531,018 17,960 5,997,920
Cost 5%
At 1 July 2012 s 336,848 5,237,312 1,214,380 2,724,419 15,602 9,528,561
+tHA—RB%&
Additions 1&hn - 471,878 144,213 302,744 1,011 919,846
Transfers [t - 957,183 (973,136) 15,953 - -
Disposals e - - - (150,303) - (150,303)
At 30 June 2013 —_=—=
ANB=1H#8 336,848 6,666,373 385457 2,892,813 16,613 10,298,104
Accumulated Depreciation BEifEE
At 1 July 2012 —E—_5F 66,233 1,676,002 - 2,342,523 - 4,084,758
tH—R#&R
Charge for the Year e 7,731 162,201 - 192,363 - 362,295
Written Back on Disposal ~ HH&&EIH - - - (119,440) - (119,440)
At 30 June 2013 /=%
ANBE=1TB#ER 73,964 1,838,203 - 2,415,446 - 4,327,613
Net Book Value at —®-=fxA=1+H
30 June 2013 IR EE 262,884 4,828,170 385,457 477,367 16,613 5,970,491
Note: - Land refers to “Interest in Leasehold Land held for Own Use under Operating Leases”.

- The properties, including land and buildings, are located in Hong Kong. Leasehold land of the Shatin campus is granted by
the Govemment for use by the University under medium-term leases and is stated at nil value.

TitEiEEEHEE TNERL -

TR ATIR

FREERERELIMAEENTEEE - AN EETEXRETARGRDBRERE AN B - I




15.

INVESTMENTS 88
(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars) (AT T5lR)
. - | p)
15.1 Non-Current Investments JERENIRE The Group The University
REER KES
2014 2013 2014 2013
Held-to-maturity Debt Securities, HEEIIAERSES
at Amortised Cost big Sl N
Unlisted LT 1,635,361 2,322,242 1,633,361 2,306,099
Listed ity ]
Hong Kong & 17,487 1,453 - -
Overseas p=3y 59,685 6,324 59,685 6,324
1,712,533 2,330,019 1,693,046 2,312,423
Available-for-sale Securities ot ERES
Unlisted Equity Securities, JE EmRgAEE
at Cost YRS 1,001 1,001 1,001 1,001
Less: Provision for Impairment iR B 1,000 1,000 1,000 1,000
1 1 1 1
Equity Securities Listed in Hong Kong, BHE LHRAES
at Fair Value EBoREE 238,373 239,042 - -
238,374 239,043 1 1
Limited Partnership Investments, REESBHEE -
at Fair Value (Note 1) RAREE (HEE1) 1,360,638 1,233,344 1,360,638 1,233,344
Alternative Investments, SEERE
at Fair Value (Note 2) monEE (MiEE2) 294,748 305,560 294,748 305,560
Investments in Unconsolidated IR SHIBLAE]
Subsidiaries, at Cost HIIRE » 1R 110,257 110,257 - -
Non-Current Investments IERmEIEE

3,716,550 4,218,223

3,348,433

3,851,328




Note:(1) These investments represent the University’s equity interest as a limited partner in three limited partnerships

and are stated at fair value. The University intends to hold these investments for long-term purposes. The
main limited partnership, which started in July 2006, targets to maximise long-term risk-adjusted returns and
to achieve capital appreciation and invests in proprietary funds, discretionary accounts and partnerships
across a broad range of marketable and alternative asset classes, including both publicly traded and privately
held securities and obligations. All applicable lock-up periods of the main limited partnership ended on or
before 31 December 2011. The University may withdraw all or any part of its Capital Account by giving the
General Partner of the partnership written advance notice of not less than one year prior to withdrawal.

In July 2009 and February 2010, the University joined as a limited partner of two limited partnerships set up
by the same General Partner. These limited partnerships were set up to invest in highly selective investment
opportunities formerly held by limited partners of other limited partnerships who have been forced to sell in
the market at substantial discounts their high-quality limited partnership interests in private equity, distressed
credit, real estate, natural resources, etc. The capital commitments will be drawn upon request from the
General Partner. The University’s commitments are about 4% and 1.8% of the respective total commitments
of these two limited partnerships. The maximum sums payable by the University are US$14.9 million and
US$2.25 million respectively.

(2) The alternative investments represent the University’s investments arranged and managed by an investment

consultant in the United States. These alternative investments include hedge funds, private equity funds
and limited partnership with a lock-up period of two to three years. The University intends to hold these
alternative investments for long-term purposes.

MisE: (1) ABIZRESBASPHBRARER=ERESBEEZMANRBETIR - AEFIERPBHENEFIREER -

EEIENRESBRERTSTAFLARS - BRENENRENLAMAREZESNENR - WENEARIBE -
ENREREEEREES  EHEERFAEUSBERNGRIRENSEEES  HPIEELHEERT
ABENESLER - MEREGHEENREEEMER="F—F+=A=+—HER - KETALURL—F
NEmEMEBARRNERREPRINZENER -

ABNRBIR=ZFFAFEAR—F—FE_ARENMARSSRIER - EMERTSSHEENU LERNE
FRREEGBEENEHA—EERARM - EMERESBEEIERERAARSREEENHEMRES
BB - EERESHEERHRANREGRANEERTSEEERAU LIRINRESBIER - BERES
BEEREEFENERE « BEERER BiHE - RRERF - REXBEFEREGBAZRKZ(T - KEMR
RENDBBESSRNSMESBERENREFANESZNAESZ—/#/\ » EENELRINB—TFTEEATE
EnhkTBH-tTHEBRT -

(2) BEHREN—MXENRERHATRERER - GFEHTES  RERBREES RMEME=FHTEHNR

BEEBIRES - ABHEIRPBEZSEHERE -




15. INVESTMENTS $2#& (Continued £&)

(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars) (AT T5lR)
15.2 Current Investments RENIEE
The Group The University
REEER KRE
2014 2013 2014 2013
Held-to-maturity Debt Securities, KHEEEH B E#ESES
at Amortised Cost RIS HR S
Amount Matured Within One Year —FREIHA
Unlisted JELETR 687,852|| 518,272|| 672,373 501,372
Listed sty
in Hong Kong TEE -l 23,332 - -
Overseas Tzt 3,749(| 100,000 3,749 100,000
691,601 641,604 676,122 601,372
Trading Securities, at Fair Value oEERS ' RAnEE
Debt Securities BEi%E
Unlisted JELEH 199,714 170,632 199,714 170,632
199,714 170,632 199,714 170,632
Equity Securities BR7ANGE
Listed sty
in Hong Kong TEE 274,765|] 251,607 115,434 95,627
Overseas T8 927,914|| 754,258| | 922,304|| 749,474
1,202,679 1,005,865 1,037,738 845,101
Unit Trusts BNEFRES
Unlisted JELEH 716,714|| 584,432 716,714| 584,432
Listed k]
in Hong Kong "=EE 1,185 1,065 - -
Overseas T35k 34,743 46,578 34,743 46,578
752,642 632,075 751,457 631,010
2,155,035 1,808,572 1,988,909 1,646,743
Current Investments mENEE 2,846,636 2,450,176 2,665,031 2,248,115

Total Held-to-maturity Debt Securities (Including Non-Current and Current Investments) :

HEENHEBESREEEEREINRELE) :

The Group The University
REERE AL
2014 2013 2014 2013

B

At amortised cost

RonEE

At fair value

2,404,134 2,971,623 2,369,168 2,913,795

2,455,318 3,039,931 2,420,083 2,981,685




16. EMPLOYEE RETIREMENT BENEFIT ASSETS ESERWNENEE
16.1 Defined Benefit Scheme and Employee Retirement Benefit Assets HREFZHEIRESERAGEHEE

The University operates a defined benefit scheme for staff under Terms of Service (C), The Chinese University
of Hong Kong Terms of Service (C) Staff Terminal Gratuity Scheme (“the TGS Scheme”). The TGS Scheme
is registered under the Occupational Retirement Schemes Ordinance (“ORSO”) and a MPF-exempted ORSO
scheme that is subject to Hong Kong ORSO and MPF (Exemption) regulations. Since the establishment
of a MPF Scheme on 1 December 2000, the TGS Scheme has been closed to new members. An acturial
valuation of the Scheme is conducted every 3 years by Mercer (Hong Kong) Limited, the appointed actuary
to the Scheme. This defined benefit scheme exposes the University to actuarial risks such as interest rate
risk, salary risk and investment risk. The information about the TGS Scheme is summarized as below:

ABERB(AERBIRGIESRMA—EFRENDRETE - B) " EEPARB(R)ERBEIRGIES LRI E
o ERTEIRRBRSRNGTEIRGIEEM - th@BHIM LB BIER)RGIT - BHBEEHRRNRESRRNGTE - B
WEEAEEARFITFFTA—HMIIE  WRENRECTBRZTME - ERENSTEINBEENE -
EER-FHXM(FR)BRASIET - BBERE - AEEBERBEEAER - GIMAR - HFERENTIRERR - ERE
et Bl EREERT

The amount of net asset recognised in the Balance Sheets are as follows:

EERBRAERZHENT :

(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)  (LAZ¥ET7T5IR)
The Group and the University

REEENAE
2014 2013
(Restated)
(&%)
Present Value of Funded Obligations TEEEZIRE (75,933) (82,275)
Fair Value of Scheme Assets FEIBEZARER 86,561 92,355
Net Assets BEE 10,628 10,080

A portion of the above assets is expected to be recovered in the next twelve months. However, it is not
practicable to segregate this amount from the amount recoverable after more than one year, as future
reductions in contributions will also relate to future services rendered, future changes in actuarial assumptions
and market conditions. The University is expected to pay HK$800,000 contribution to the Scheme for the
financial year 2014/15 reporting period.

Ein i EERRERART=EARKD - ERRASHHREREEMRRMNEEMEN - NG RESE
HAERE « BEERATSRRES  ALER ETEREE—FA4 aRENEESRTIR - KERER=F—
MEZF-AMBFEED @ §EEF BTN\ +TETAHER




(ii)

Scheme assets allocation:
FHEIEEDS -
(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars) (AT ITHIR)

The Group and the University

(iii)

(iv)

REERBRAE
2014 2013
Amount % Amount %
%8 Bak &#H Bak
Bonds (EE- 38,087 44 48,024 52
Cash and Bank Deposits RERERITER 48,474 56 44,331 48

86,561 100

All bonds held under the TGS Scheme have credit ratings of Aa3 or higher.
FrEEEREN B T HAEZASIETASREIU LMERAFR -

Changes in the present value of the defined benefit obligations (“DBO”):
AENSEEIRENES) :
(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars) (AT THIR)

92,355 100

The Group and the University

REERETAE
2014 2013
(Restated)
(E51)
Balance - Beginning of Year TR 82,275 95,718
Benefits paid by the Scheme FTEIEfT R (8,153) (11,028)
Current Service Cost HERMEMA L 1,007 1,215
Interest Cost Fl B RS 984 435
Remeasurements recognised EHFTEER (180) (4,065
1,811 (2,415)
Balance - End of Year TR

Changes in fair value of scheme assets:
FEIRNEEC A TFENET
(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)  (LAE¥F7T5IR)

75,933 82,275

The Group and the University

REERERAE
2014 2013
(Restated)
(EF)
Balance - Beginning of Year TS 92,355 99,692
Contributions paid to the Scheme AETEIEL 2 H]F 814 868
Benefits paid by the Scheme rEIEfTFlzS (8,153) (11,028)
Return on Scheme Assets (excluding interest FEIEEZEHRFIEWIA 424 2,365
income) 5300
Interest Income FEWA 1,121 458
86,561 92,355

Balance - End of Year FHREERR




(v)

(vi)

(Income)/Expenses recognised in consolidated statement of comprehensive income and expenditure, and
statement of comprehensive income and expenditure are as follows:

EREEHENERAEEN ST RAERZBENT -

(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)  (LAFBYTFT5IR)
The Group and the University
REERBRAE
2014 2013
(Restated)
(EH)
Current service cost IRBIRFEHA 1,007 1,215
Interest cost on DBO REMNBETEIZAE A 984 435
Interest Income on Scheme Assets FrEIEEZFIBA (1,121) (458)
Net Expenses recognised in the Statement of ~ REEUIRIERZFH 870 1,192
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure
Effect of changes in financial assumptions BRABRREESCTE (758) (3,709
Effect of experience adjustments BRAEERRARCTE 578 (356
Return on Scheme Assets (excluding interest ~ &TEIEE Z O (FIEA (424) (2,365
income) FRIM)
Total remeasurements recognised in Other REfMEEWEHEDZE (604) (6,430)
Comprehensive Income (“OCI”) SHtERR
Total defined benefit cost recognised R EF R AR 266 (5,238)

Changes in net assets recognised in the Balance Sheets are as follows:

HEERBERAERCEFEELEERE -

(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars) (LAY T5ImR)
The Group and the University
REERERAE
2014 2013
(Restated)
(E51)
Balance - Beginning of Year FHEER 10,080 3,974
Contributions paid to the Scheme sTEIEfT R 814 868
Net expenses on Scheme benefit recognised ~ REERZRERZFREF & (870) (1,192)
in the Statement of Comprehensive Income BXH
and Expenditure
Total remeasurements recognised in OCI REMMEEWEHEDZE 604 6,430
SHEERR
Balance - End of Year FHREEER 10,628 10,080

The net expense/income was recognised in the line item of staff cost and benefits under Management and
General in the Statement of Comprehensive Income and Expenditure.

B ARZANZRPNEE R —RBIEAN S THM RN e -




(vii)

(viii)

Significant actuarial assumptions:

FTEBERE
2014 2013
0, 0,
Weighted-average assumptions to determine AT ERZSSEZIETE (%pa,) (%o pa)
benefit obligations HERER
1. Discount rate BRIRR 1.50 1.30
2. Rate of salary increase FEZERE 3.00 3.00
Weighted-average assumptions to determine FAUFEREF A2
defined benefit cost BTeRs
1. Discount rate BRIRZE 1.30 0.50
2. Rate of salary increase HFEZER 3.00 3.00
Sensitivity analysis on DBO:
RAENBEEZBRERN
(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)  (BAB#STF7T5R)
At 30 June 2014
DBO will become Increase / (Decrease) by
R-T—MF &/ ()
A~B=+H
RENREEHE
1.Discount rate BRI
a. - 50 basis points 5028 F 77,861 1,928  2.54%
b. + 50 basis points 1EIN5088F 74,112 (1,821) (2.40%)
2.Salary increase rate HEZIBRE
a. - 50 basis points 5028 F 75,557 (376) (0.50%)
b. + 50 basis points 1EIm502kF 76,325 392  0.52%

Description of funding arrangements and funding policy that affect future contributions:
FERRURNE T LN E T IR ¢

The Scheme follows a tri-annual funding valuation schedule. At each funding valuation, the contribution rate
for the following three years is set. The last funding valuation was of 30 June 2014 and it was assessed at
that valuation that the University would contribute 10% of active members’ salary for the period from 1 July
2014 to 30 June 2017.

ZETEBRE=FEME  AR=FNHRERESREEGHERRTE - HINES/EAR=FT—HFA=1H"
TEZEEPREABH=F—NFtA—HEZS—tFAA=THEREERENFHFEE DL THIMR -



(x)

16.2

Maturity profile of DBO:
REMDEEZEIE B D

The weighted average duration of the DBO as at 30 June 2014 is 5.6 years.
REZB-—NUEAA=1+HREMNGBEEZNBTIIFHR5.65F

Projected benefit payments (undiscounted) taking into account estimated future employee service and salary growth
based on Actuary’s aforementioned assumptions are:

RiE Ht BB R ZARMIRA ST R(ERERRE T RRRFHNHFZIER) AT ¢
(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars) (ABEETFITHIR)

Beyond 5 years but

Within 5 years within 10 years Beyond 10 years
5 A 5 F{&{E10 FA R0
Expected benefit payments 47,155 24,305 15,510

TREARIZE TR

Defined Contribution Scheme HREHFRETE
In addition to the defined benefit scheme disclosed in Note 16.1, the Group operates two defined contribution
schemes, i.e. The Chinese University of Hong Kong Staff Superannuation Scheme (1995) (“the 1995 Scheme”)
and a Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme (“the MPF Scheme”). The 1995 Scheme is a MPF-exempted ORSO-
registered scheme. Employer contributions to these defined contribution schemes are as follows:
FRBIEE16.1 FRIR MR EF &S558 - KEBERTARMESRHETMEFENREMRREE - IEBEPXABHEE
ABEFE (—hAR) (T -RAREE L ) REFIMLERETE ( TEEERE ) ) - — AR EIRRE RIS
1RGITEM - AT Z2RMEFE SR EIFTELAEEMRR :
(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars) (AT THIR)
The Group The University
REEES RE

2014 2013 2014 2013

The 1995 Scheme —hhFhEEl 155,816 158,065 154,968 157,058

The MPF Scheme WEEETE 109,410 99,043 108,666 98,292
Total Contributions MR 265,226 257,108 263,634 255,350




17. ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE, PREPAYMENTS AND FEMIIRTR ~ FAATFRIE B EL At FEURFRIA

OTHER RECEIVABLES
(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars) (A#EHETFT5IR)

The Group The University
REER RE

2014 2013 2014 2013
Loan to Subsidiary ERFHELT 53,490 53,490 53,490 53,490
Other Loan Receivable HAthFEUTE R 500 500 - -
Accounts Receivable FEWTIRFR 255,216 185,934 247,167 177,287
Sundry Deposits, Prepayments and HIBIRE ~ FRTTUEN 50,166 164,971 45,960 160,283

Other Receivables EAthFEUER

Student Loans BEEm 3,428 3,824 2,219 2,572
Current Accounts with Subsidiaries Ft B A SIERIR 2,299 5,823 2,299 5,823
Amount due from UGC HESERIR 131,111 128,597 131,111 128,597

496,210 543,139 482,246 528,052
Less: Non-Current portion of Accounts i : FEYSUIRFR A FE(T

Receivable and Prepayments FIBFERENER 7 53,990 167,754 53,490 167,254
Current portion of Accounts FEWIIRFA A TR FRIE
Receivable and Prepayments TRENER R 442,220 375,385 428,756 360,798

At 30 June 2014, Non-current Accounts Receivable and Prepayments include an unsecured and interest-free
loan of $53.49 million (2013: $53.49 million) to a subsidiary repayable in January 2021. The remaining amount
of $113.76 million in 2013 represents cash advanced to business unit for long-term developments in the People’s
Republic of China.

RIEF—OFAA=TBERBEBVIRREBARIERE-—SAT=A0+IEx(EF—=F AF=80+h&x)
RIBENGENERTHEBLAS  ZERER"F—F—AEE - H% &a=F—=F8  F—F—TFT=att~
EnREBPRTAMNEBEMEREAMNRERR -

Student loans are granted to local undergraduate and postgraduate students of the Chinese University of Hong
Kong. The amount of the loan depends on the student’s financial hardship and/or the loan received from the
“Tertiary Students Finance Scheme-Publicly-Funded Programmes” or the terms of the respective loan schemes.
All student loans are interest-free and repaid by instalments within a stipulated period or upon graduation. If the
borrower ceased to be a student of the University, all loans are then repayable immediately.

BLEERRENTFEEPRABNAIRNAERE BEINARMBE - GEEEERFRENTBERER/HZBER
FEME FRIEBEEME, PRESHNERE - RANBLEEMIAREER  FEEXREENHEASH
& - MEEAERTEILBENSD - FREERELEE -

The current accounts with Colleges and Subsidiaries are unsecured, interest free and without fixed terms of
repayment. Other than part of Student Loans, all of the other accounts receivable and prepayments are expected
to be recovered or recognised as expense within one year.

EfRAMEASHERIRRBRIER - RELERNERERR - REBVBEERI  HtBBIRRFERSE—F AN
kR R



ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE AGEING ANALYSIS

FEWIRFRIRES 7 17

The balance of accounts receivable mainly comprises bills receivable and interest receivable, with the following
ageing analysis as of the balance sheet date :

FESIRFRVER RE T E EIERPIREFIE N BT 2 - EEEARREE QNIRRT ¢
(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)  (MAE#FIT5IR)

The Group The University
REBEERS RE

2014 2013 2014 2013
Current REIHE 159,527 89,961 151,478 83,008
Less than 1 month past due DPR—ER 80,666 84,269 80,666 82,605
1to 3 months past due —EBRE=EAR 11,062 5,294 11,062 5,294
More than 3 months but less than 12 =ERE+=EAR 3,249 3,811 3,249 3,811

months past due

More than 12 months past due +ERAMU L 712 2,599 712 2,569
Amount past due SEIH 95,689 95,973 95,689 94,279
Total FEIIRFR4E%5E 255,216 185,934 247,167 177,287

The Group and the University are satisfied that the past due amount is likely to be recoverable. No impairment

loss is provided for the year.

ABEERASRECHPNE[IMETIRENE - ALt - FERTFEATRRAER R




18. CASH AND SHORT-TERM DEPOSITS WITH BANKS & NIR{THEHER
(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)  (MAE¥TFT5lR)

The Group The University
REBELES RE
2014 2013 2014 2013
Cash in Hand and with Banks and RE - RITAEM 41,625 48,634 38,010 46,718
Other Financial Institutions A TEHIBTERR
Time Deposits TEHATERR 9,115,430 7,393,784 8,296,719 6,603,777
Cash and Short-term Deposits in the EEBBERAMIAER 9,157,055 7,442,418 8,334,729 6,650,495
Balance Sheet ERITREEIEN
Less: Time Deposits with Original W FREEB=EA
Maturity over Three Months HIEHITZRR 8,735,147 6,650,384 7,973,487 5,926,342
Cash and Cash Equivalents in the RERERAMIRE
Cash Flow Statement MIREEEY 421,908 792,034 361,242 724,153

Note: Time Deposits of $45.1 million (2013: $51.4 million) were pledged to secure two loans from the Government
(Note 21(b)).
Mzt OFEE—TER(CES—=F | AT -BN+ER)ZEHEREBR FBERERZBR(HEE21 (b))

Cash and Cash Equivalents included the following amounts denominated in foreign currency:
REMIREEFEBYHIREEE - EFETIIIMNESE:

(Expressed in thousands)  (JAF{7515R)

The Group The University
REERS RE
2014 2013 2014 2013
Australian Dollars AUD BT 339 432 339 432
Euro EUR ERTT 91 - 91 -
Pounds Sterling GBP HaiE 919 959 119 159
Renminbi RMB AR 183,568 278,035 2,057 112,540
United States Dollars usD =TT 29,893 31,376 4,638 6,018

19. ACCOUNTS PAYABLE AND ACCRUALS {1 &EER

(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)  (MAE#FIT5lR)
The Group The University

REEE RE
2014 2013 2014 2013

Student Fees Received in Advance TAWEBE M EMIRE 346,373 345,823 346,373 345,823
Accounts Payable FE(TIRTR 132,708 167,066 116,479 149,298
Other Creditors and Accruals HthFEFTIRTAMESTER 95,231 76,050 95,231 76,050
Deposits and Caution Money Received & MIRFEE 122,046 151,898 122,046 151,898
Current Accounts with Colleges SRR - - 200,370 175,194
Current Accounts with Subsidiaries B A SIERIR 87,260 72,322 87,260 72,322

783,618 813,159 967,759 970,585

The Group and the University will settle the accounts payable and loans according to payment due date. For
the remaining contractual maturities of the accounts payable, please refer to note 30.1(ii).

ABRERADSREBRELEREGD - HABEEHE - BAOIRRORIERS ORI - FSRMEE30.100) ©



20. PROVISION FOR EMPLOYEE BENEFITS {ES{EFI#(E
E din th ds of H K doll W TTHIR
(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)  (MAE#FIT5IR) The Group The University
REREERE K&
2014 2013 2014 2013
Staff Leave Entitlements EEFREEF 384,435 379,923 382,975 378,620
Contract-end Gratuity and Long Service WimMERRE 163,611 149,606 162,567 148,627
Payments RFSE
Retirement Benefit Scheme Contributions RIRNEFI TR 16,453 14,435 16,453 14,435
Salaries and Wages HEMTE 60,588 36,500 60,588 36,500
625,087 580,464 622,583 578,182
Payable: F&fT -
Within 1 year R—ER 413,653 382,227 411,754 380,869
After 1 year R—F& 211,434 198,237 210,829 197,313
625,087 580,464 622,583 578,182
21. LOANS AND BORROWINGS {&#
. . i
(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars) (AT T5lR) The Group and the University
REEENAE
2014 2013
Bank Loans for On-Lending to Staff (Note a) ST S ZIRTEM (i)
Within One Year —FR 71,000 78,000
Secured Loans (Note b) BIRBER(KEED)
Within One Year —FR 6,275 6,274
Between One and Two Years —E"F 6,274 6,275
Between Two and Five Years —_ERF 16,548 18,823
Over Five Years AFEME 16,000 20,000
45,097 51,372
Total Loans and Borrowings B4R 116,097 129,372
Less: Repayable within One Year and W —EFEZAREEZ 77,275 84,274
Included in Current Liabilities wenas
Amount included in Non-current Liabilities —FREEZIERSER 38,822 45,098
Notes MizE:

(a)

The bank loans for on-lending to staff are repayable within twelve months and renewable annually subject to
the bank’s consent. At present, the loans bear interest at 2.5 percentage points below the lending bank’s best
lending rate.

BETHHERITEMENRRS—F - MEXRTER - BEIYUEN - BRI SAEMBRTEEBEERAERRE
—BAE-

The secured loans comprise two start-up loans from the Government to provide self-financing full time accredited
post-secondary programmes. The loans are interest-free, repayable in equal annual instalments over 10 years
starting from November 2008 and February 2014 respectively. One of the loans with an outstanding amount
of $9.1 million (2013: $11.4 million), and the other loan $36 million (2013: $40 million) are secured by time
deposits of the same amount.

BRFEREIEMERRFELNRIE - MRERRE BFIERREZEUE LRE - EMEERIBEEER - 2
AREZFENFT—ARTET—NF_ARKS +FFYEE - HP—ERENE—TER(CES—=F: —F—8
M+Br)nER  RS—EER[=TREBEBR(CF—=F : OTER) - ABHNARHENTEHERIERIER -



22. DEFERRED INCOME iEjEUNZ:

(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars) (AT T5lR)
The Group and the University

REEENAE
Earmarked Grants Capital Grants Grants from  Others Total
EEREMHIE and Government
AA&I Block Agencies
Allocation Funds
EiEmbnEe
o~ N~ M2
Research  Others MIETRE BUATHE
LRI Hith B Em EEE Hith Ba
2014
Balance - Beginning HE¥45ER 315,300 186,288 93,495 27,701 622 623,406
of Year
Subventions Received/ BU/FEIL 233,060 72,540 169,710 54,189 4,018 533,517
Receivable =1
Recognised as income ASERMER  (169,160) (79,228) (13,820)  (35,430) (1,616)  (299,254)
in the year HIMA
Transferred to WEIRE (6,618)  (1,894) (86,794) (4,882) (137)  (100,325)
Deferred Capital Funds BA&5E
Ba|ance - End of Year gﬂﬁgﬁﬁ% 372,582 177,706 162,591 41 ,578 2,887 7575344
To be recognised: 1SR ¢
Within 1 year — R 171,90 17,099 162,591 41,578 2,887 395,345
After 1 year —Fi& 201,392 160,607 - - - 361,999
372,582 177,706 162,591 41,578 2,887 757,344
2013
Balance - Beginning  HA#4588 297,054 207,542 (92,062) 30,985 1,886 445,405
of Year
Subventions Received/ BU/FEIL 197,303 77,143 621,284 42,516 249 938,495
Receivable =1
Recognised as income AEREE  (175,643) (91,456) (42,816)  (43,698)  (1,474)  (355,087)
in the year HIMA
Transferred to BT (3,414)  (6,941)  (392,911) (2,102) (39)  (405,407)
Deferred Capital Funds BA&5E
Balance - End of Year HB#%#583 315,300 186,288 93,495 27,701 622 623,406
To be recognised: 1SR ¢
Within 1 year —ER 179,852 22,058 93,495 27,701 622 323,728
After 1 year —Fig 135448 164,230 - - - 299,678
622

315,300 186,288 93,495 27,701

623,406



23. DEFERRED CAPITAL FUNDS BESKET
(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)  (MAE¥TF5T5lR)

The Group and the University

REBEBENAE
Earmarked Grants Capital Grants Grants from Others Total
IEERERHIE and Government
AA&I Block  Agencies
Allocation Funds
HEiEmmen
DSGE ~ INEE -~ #ME
Research Others NXEIE BAFHAE
IR Hih BRI B Hith b
Balance -1 July 2012 —E—-F
tB— R4 6,579 26,701 3,337,381 9,864 97 3,380,622

Transfer from Deferred BRIELE 3,414 6,941 392,911 2,102 39 405,407

Income g
Transfer to the Statement of BEZEYIZFR (4,846) (12,628) (126,249)  (3,823) (55) (147,601)

Comprehensive Income

and Expenditure
Balance - 30 June 2013 Z=—¥—=f%F

~A=1TRH%&8 5147 21,014 3,604,043 8,143 81 3,638,428

Transfer from Deferred BEEE 6,618 1,894 86,794 4,882 137 100,325

Income e
Transfer to the Statement of EEZREUIZE (3.642) (10,984)  (135,443) (572) (55)  (150,696)

Comprehensive Income
and Expenditure

Balance - 30 June 2014 —E—MF

~HE=+H@e 6123 11924 3555304 12,453 163 3,588,057




24. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Due to the publicly funded nature of the University
and its nine Colleges and the composition of their
Council (being drawn from private and public
organisations), the University and its nine Colleges
have received from time to time donations from
University Council members, key management
personnel and companies controlled or significantly
influenced by them. The receipts of such donations
have all been individually reported to the Council
and approved in accordance with the University’s
financial regulations.

All transactions relating to the purchases of
goods and services and capital projects involving
organisations in which a member of the University’s
Council may have an interest are conducted during
the normal course of business and in accordance
with the University’s financial regulations and normal
procurement procedures.

In addition to the transactions and balances
disclosed elsewhere in these financial statements,
there are the following material related party
transactions:

(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

24,

SRS

EABRENEERDBLFER, FIAEREENS
EEBSNERAERE - KBRHERTREDNK
8 ABXEEEAS  NHEFNOASRZEHEAR
ZRNEEUER < BLBRESRIM LRABRES
W IREABEIBERR AL BRI -

ABEEREFEBEPREARBERZNERIERTLE
RTEASBRESMEETIRFAEERNEERN - BIEL
RBRRABNUBRAEIEENRBERET -

RESMBREEMBDAKRENR S REGER - TN
BUTHREEGRS:

(UBBETFTIR)

The University

RE
2014 2013
(i) Income received from (i) HHELASIREEAT
Subsidiaries and Associate ESnKz
Service fees and rental charges ARFSE R E 13,856 16,556
The Group and the
University
REERRAE
2014 2013
(i) Key Management Personnel (i) FEEBASHEE
Compensation
Salaries and other short-term employee benefits HENHMEHRESET 38,090 35,381
Post-employment benefits RIRER 4,295 3,904
42,385 39,285
The Group and the
University
REERERAE
2014 2013
(iii) Loans to Related Parties (ili) HRFEARS
Loans to key management under the ABHWETHEITRT
University’s Staff Loan Scheme (Note 25) TREBAR(MEE25)
Beginning of the year REN 5,100 5,250
Net loans repaid during the year NERZBEER (70) (150)
End of the year RELL 5,030 5,100




25.

26.

27.

STAFF LOANS

Staff loans, with interest at prime rate minus 2.5%,
are available to eligible staff members of the
retirement scheme(s) operated by the University.
The loan is repayable upon demand or at the expiry
of loan term due at the end of each calendar year
unless renewed by the University.

COMMITMENTS
(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

HRiE
(BT IR

25. HEEEH

AERHERTFEERABRAESHEANHES
NELNERBEANRH"HAE - RIFRBLAHBER
MEN > BAZERERNSEFRNERBBENE
REBERTEE -

Commitments outstanding at 30 June 2014 not provided for in the financial statements are as follows:

REF—MEAA=1TH @ REUBBRRERERIREINOT :

The Group The University
REREEED KRE2
2014 2013 2014 2013
Capital Expenditure Commitments ~ E7ANEIE
Contracted for B8 237,581 360,796 236,588 360,796
Authorised but not Contracted for EIEEEIREN 741,495 591,183 725,433 579,937
979,076 951,979 962,021 940,733
Operating Expenditure Commitments & F&IE
Contracted for B4 305,955 249,894 305,955 249,894
Other Financial Commitments ELAhBA TSR IE
Others Hith - 37,908 - 37,908
1,285,031 1,239,781 1,267,976 1,228,535
OPERATING LEASE RECEIVABLES [EWE&EHE

(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

(AEEEFTIT)

At 30 June 2014, the total future minimum lease income under non-cancellable operating leases is as follows:
REB—MERA=TH @ RIEAUREFRAEERS - REENREHERABEIUNT ¢

The Group The University
] R
2014 2013 2014 2013
Within one year —FRN 11,842 11,031 10,078 8,882
Two to five years —ERF 2,952 7,151 3,288 6,892

14,794 18,182 13,366 15,774




28.

29.

OPERATING LEASE COMMITMENTS
(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

HETRERIE
(ABEEFTIIR)

At 30 June 2014, the total of future minimum lease payments under non-cancellable operating leases are as

follows:

REF—OFAA=TH - REFURRNEERE - SRECINREBERBRHINAT -

The Group The University
FEaRLpE PAY-—

2014 2013 2014 2013

Within one year —ER 9,912 10,130 9,659 9,854

Two to five years —ERE 6,990 12,228 6,908 12,184

16,902 22,358 16,567 22,038

Operating lease charges for the year e fESER 11,656 14,120 11,130 13,654
CAPITAL MANAGEMENT 29. BAREHE

The University is a government subvented tertiary
education institution established under the laws
of HKSAR which objects are to provide learning
and research in wide range of undergraduate and
postgraduate programmes in technology, science,
commerce, arts and other areas. Its activities are
mainly funded by government grants, tuition fees,
donations, income generated from self-financing
activities and investment income.

The University defines capital as including various
general and restricted funds balances. The various
funds of the University represent the accumulated
unspent balance of subventions, fees income,
donations and investment returns. These funds are
managed according to the relevant grant and funding
conditions, where applicable, and the University’s
investment and financial management guidelines
and procedures are established in accordance
with the relevant statues of the University with the
view of meeting the objects of the University and
safeguarding the University’s ability to continue as
a going concern.

There has been no change in the University’s
capital management practices as compared to prior
year. The University is not subject to any externally
imposed capital requirements, except for the
balance of GDRF as disclosed in note 11.

FAARBEEETEFITHREEE T RIIN—FRBEERE
BINE EHERE - EERMAFRELARRRER
M M8 - BR - XBREMBENHE RIS - K
SBWENETERHNANMEE « 28 - BENE 8
BEBERENEARMSEORSEER -

ABNEFRERBE—RESNERAESE - KAENE
EEEHETREANERNHEEE - WE - BEE
BB W EFTAAR - REEERIREERERN
HERIFMNIFRERE - MRE - MBEEESIR
EFEREASEHENRETENBERAZNER
RHE R BIHEEERES -

FRBAEE 11 AR EM — R R B RERE R - KEM
EXEERREEFMER - WR2HNE - MALETFZ
HIREIMRIEMAERER -



30.

30.1

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR
VALUES

Financial instruments of the Group and the University
include bank deposits, investment in debt securities,
equity securities, unit trusts, limited partnerships
and alternative investments, which have exposure
to credit, liquidity, interest rate, foreign currency
and equity price risks arising in the normal course
of the Group’s and the University’s operations.
These risks are managed by the Group’s and the
University’s financial management policies and
practices described below.

Bank deposits, investment in debt securities,
equity securities and unit trusts

(i) Credit risk

The Group’s and the University’s exposure
to credit risk is mainly attributable to the
deposits they maintained with various financial
institutions and investment securities held by
fund managers, including held-to-maturity debt
securities and trading securities. The Group
and the University established their guidelines
to minimise the credit risk associated with these
financial assets. Held-to-maturity debt securities
are all at “investment grade” credit ratings as
assigned by international credit rating agencies
at the time of purchase. Trading securities
are all of good investment grade and are held
through appointed professional investment
managers who would manage the portfolios
through comprehensive monitoring systems.
The Group and the University have no significant
concentration of credit risk, with exposure spread
over a large number of counterparties.

Internal policies have also been set up to reduce
credit risk associated with bank deposits. Such
policies do not only restrict deposits to be placed
at Authorised Institutions (Note) of good credit
ratings but also address concentration risk by
limiting the total amount deposited with each
institution.

Credit risk associated with loans and other
receivables is immaterial to the Group and
the University and all doubtful receivables are
adequately provided for.

(Note: Authorised Institutions are deposit-taking
institutions that are licensed by the Hong Kong
Monetary Authority to operate in Hong Kong.)

30. ERIEKREERAAEE

AEEERASENEMT AERERTER - BFES
BAES « EfEREENRE - REGBRELSE
158 - EHEEED - SLERMTEMEHNERERE
FERERR « REERER - FIRER - INERBR SRR
BRER - KERELABEATIINEMEERRR
RS I E m AR

30.1 SRITER - BHES - RAESRBEUGEREZNRE

(i) FEmbE

ARERELASRENNESARERRBFHR
TRMBHIENTRNESRECERSNESR
& AEREEINMOREESRUEERES o K
BEERABEHIETHERES LS EE RN
FHRERERERE - BHEEZIHANASEBAR
HURTAR B IR S SR AB AT RTE R T IREARA
s e EEEFIBRIFIRERR @ WEBERE
MERRECEREREZEANEERAEE - X
BEENASNEE AR MEAZ SR PR
B MEDHRRZNRSTT °

SREERTERNEERER - ABRELRAENA
BBERABHERIEER A RIFE SRR R
(51) - ARREREBFEESPRER - SRS
HITFFRIE BN A IR -

EREMEEMBRIRFIRERENE SRR+ 2E
i RERERABHFEOWNEETCELRE
S50 o

(51 BuUMERER AT EENEERR LTS
EIERRIRMTERES <)




(i) Liquidity risk

The Group and the University have sufficient
funds to finance its ongoing working capital
requirements. Measures are implemented to
regularly monitor the current and expected
liquidity requirements of the Group and the
University, ensuring that sufficient cash reserves
and readily realisable marketable securities are
maintained to meet its liquidity requirements.

The following table presents the earliest
settlement dates of the Group’s and the
University’s financial liabilities at the balance
sheet date, which are based on contractual

(ii) MENE T
AERERABHEANRENE T AR IHEZE
& ERAERFIERERRENARABDEENTE
2 DEASEEEARSES LOIEREFENTESH
5 UEFRZE -

AF-—BRINLAERERABEEGERALE
BERPEAXMBE  WHREHZKRIFREERE
(BEUEHFRGFENF B - MEHFIRIN
FENRFENE - IRREESRRANZFHR

undiscounted cash flows (including interest EtE)
payments computed using contractual rates or,

if floating, based on current rates at the balance

sheet date):

(@) The Group ~ REZEE
(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)  (A#EHETFIT5IR)

Contractual undiscounted cash outflow

BREMZKRIFRETREE
2014
Balance  Within 1 Year More than More than 2 5 Years Total
Sheet or 1 Year but Years butless and Amount
carrying on Demand less than than More
amount 2 Years 5 Years

EEsfx —FA @8- Ba—F IF
RESE W NEER @orcEs @0REF ML wE

Accounts Payable and  FE{TIRFRAFER 783,618 783,618 - - - 783,618
Accruals =H
Provision for Employee {gS{aH#Ef# 625,087 413,653 129,886 81,010 538 625,087
Benefits
Loans and Borrowings  f&R 116,097 79,050 6,274 16,548 16,000 117,872
Deferred Income BT 757,344 395,345 361,999 - - 757,344
2,282,146 1,671,666 498,159 97,558 16,538 2,283,921
2013

Balance  Within 1 Year More than More than2 5 Years Total

Sheet or 1 Year but Years butless and Amount
carrying on Demand less than than More
amount 2 Years 5 Years

aEams SR @& @mE—F OF
EESE  REER  @EoR-E ELREE ME w3

Accounts Payable and FE{TIRFR A FERT 813,159 813,159 - - - 813,159
Accruals &R

Provision for Employee &EE&FI#E 580,464 382,227 130,061 68,103 73 580,464
Benefits

Loans and Borrowings &k 129,372 86,224 6,275 18,823 20,000 131,322

Deferred Income IEFEU S 623,406 323,728 299,678 - - 623,406

2,146,401 1,605,338 436,014 86,926 20,073 2,148,351




(b) The University FE

(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

(ABEEFTIIR)

Contractual undiscounted cash outflow

RENZARITRRETHE

2014
Balance  Within 1 Year More than More than2 5 Years Total
Sheet or 1 Year but Years but less and Amount
carrying on Demand less than than More
amount 2 Years 5 Years
BEAMER —FR BE—& BB-g IF
IRE 88 RHRER  ELORTE ELREE ML EEbE]
Accounts Payable and FE{TIRFR A FERT 967,759 967,759 - - - 967,759
Accruals &R
Provision for Employee &S &% 622,583 411,754 129,281 81,010 538 622,583
Benefits
Loans and Borrowings (EEN 116,097 79,050 6,274 16,548 16,000 117,872
Deferred Income IEEYT 5 757,344 395,345 361,999 - - 757,344
2,463,783 1,853,908 497,554 97,558 16,538 2,465,558
2013
Balance  Within 1 Year More than More than2 5 Years Total
Sheet or 1 Year but Years butless and amount
carrying on Demand less than than More
amount 2 Years 5 Years
BEAER —&R BE—F Be—fF ks
RESE SEBRER @oR-E EOREE RE &
Accounts Payable and FEfTIRFRRFESTER 970,585 970,585 - - - 970,585
Accruals
Provision for Employee fEE&H#E 578,182 380,869 129,137 68,103 73 578,182
Benefits
Loans and Borrowings f&X 129,372 86,224 6,275 18,823 20,000 131,322
Deferred Income IEFEUR S 623,406 323,728 299,678 - - 623,406
2,301,545 1,761,406 435,090 86,926 20,073 2,303,495
(iii) Interest rate risk (iii) MRS

As to interest-bearing financial assets, the Group
and the University hold fixed-rate bank deposits
and debt securities.

The Group’s interest-bearing financial liabilities
at the balance sheet date are not significant. The
Group does not expect short-term fluctuations in
market interest rates will have significant impact
to the Group’s results of operations.

HREENSWENERMEE - AEZRERAES
R EERNRITEMRMERES -

ABEEREERRRALEAEANTEENE
& - AEREHEHMSHRWEHRELFZHA
SRENEEERBREANTE -




During the year under review, the Group and the
University have no interest rate risk from interest-
bearing loan since the only interest-bearing
loan taken out by the University is for the sole
purpose of operating a staff loan scheme and any
fluctuations in market interest rates only affect
the staff loan borrowers.

The following tables indicate the effective interest
rates of these interest-bearing financial assets:

(a) The Group FEAELpE

RAMBFE - KEEERAB)RERTEEMRM
FENREFNTE  ARELTEEREARET
fEEE > MERNFIRERZHERRE THIE -

AT —EERFHBRENF BA SR E EC BIRFIR :

(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)  (MAE#FIT5lR)

2014 2013
Effective Carrying Effective  Carrying
Interest Amount Interest Amount

Rate Rate
% p.a. % p.a.

BIRFNR  IRESHE

BIRFHNR RESHE

EREBNER

Fixed Rate Notes and Deposits

(b) The University RE

2.23 11,517,535

(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars) (MAE#FIT5IR)

211 10,365,197

2014 2013
Effective Carrying Effective  Carrying
Interest Amount Interest Amount

Rate Rate
% p.a. % p.a.

BIRFNR  IRESHE

BIRFHNR REEHE

Fixed Rate Notes and Deposits ~ EEZBERER

225 10,665,887

213 9,617,572



(iv)

As at 30 June 2014, it is estimated that a general
increase/decrease of 50 basis points in interest
rates, with all other variables held constant,
would have increased/decreased the Group’s
surplus by approximately $45,473,000 (2013:
$36,772,000).

The sensitivity analysis above has been
determined assuming that the change in interest
rates had occurred at the balance sheet date
and had been applied to interest rate risk for
investments in short-term time deposits in
existence at that date. The Group may be
exposed to interest rate risk indirectly via its
holding in the investment portfolios which
hold debt instruments. Increase/Decrease
in investment income from these investment
portfolios arising from interest rate change
however is not considered in the sensitivity
analysis above due to insufficient information
provided by fund managers. The 50 basis points
increase/decrease represents management’s
assessment of a reasonably possible change in
interest rates over the period until the next annual
balance sheet date.

Foreign currency risk

The functional currency of the Group and the
University is Hong Kong dollars (HKD). Both the
Group’s and the University’s monetary assets are
denominated mainly in HKD and United States
dollars (USD) while their monetary liabilities
are predominantly in HKD. Those assets and
liabilities denominated in currencies other than
HKD and USD are not material.

About 25% of the Group’s and of the University’s
financial assets (including cash, bank deposits
with banks, debt, equity securities and
investments) are denominated in USD, but
it is considered that risk of movement in
exchange rate between the HKD and the USD
is insignificant as the HKD is currently pegged to
the USD under the linked exchange rate system
adopted by the Government.

The following tables show the amounts of
financial assets (including cash, bank deposits
with banks, debt and investments) denominated
in various currencies at the balance sheet
date:

REF—NFAA=1TH @ BRAEEMITEEE
BREAE - MARENEI AT > KAERE
REANZRSEINEPONTFAEN+tE=F
T(EB—Z=F : =FAREEtTER=FR) -

HlRE SR ERR RN ENETNEEER
REFE - WERARABRENZHRRITERTR
FREZMFRER - HRBEEEREREENE
# o ENRESMEZEREETEEZIRER
meE - AR B EERU EASRESN SR - 1B/
LA THFRIEEEENEE TEFEEEAR
R HILHARFI R S E o] s S EN RIS -

(iv) SMERRR

AEBEREABNINEER LB  EBMEEMN
BREEETRE  MEBMEBEUEBSE - &8
MHEENSEUIIMNSEENERLTRK -

AEERRABHEUXRTAEEEBNERNEE
BRAANEEMEERENE o= TH(BER
£ - FRRBITER - BiE - RERKRSE) - BEF
ARATHRERABMETEBHERTMBRESR
HET  AEEREIRITREBBERGE
BAEK -

RF-—EBRINHEERBERANSEERREEER
BHEMEECEH (BERE - FHREBTNE
M EBRRE) -




(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

(BT IR

(a) The Group REEEGES
2014 2013
Amount % of total Amount % of total
value of value of
financial financial
assets assets
=8 LAAERE =8 LAERE
Currency &g ENEALL ENESt
HKD i 9,828,492 63 8,466,817 60
usD ESH 3,875,393 25 3,602,911 25
RMB AR# 1,574,630 10 1,689,406 12
Euro [EXTT 90,006 1 45,631 -
Japanese Yen HiT 41,369 - 52,805 1
Pounds Sterling REE 82,129 - 76,890 1
Others Hith 117,965 1 66,101 1
15,609,984 100 14,000,561 100
(b) The University PA
2014 2013
Amount % of total Amount % of total
value of value of
financial financial
assets assets
&8 LAERE &8 (HESEE
Currency &#g ENESL ENESL
HKD it 8,903,095 63 7,555,634 60
uUsD =TT 3,612,204 25 3,343,990 26
RMB AR# 1,330,124 9 1,461,322 11
Euro X7 88,761 1 44,991 -
Japanese Yen Hit 40,790 - 52,057 1
Pounds Sterling REE 70,546 1 66,526 1
Others Hith 110,818 1 60,363 1
14,156,338 100 12,584,883 100

About 10% of the Group’s and 9% of the
University’s financial assets are denominated
in RMB. As the percentages of financial assets
denominated in currencies other than HKD, RMB
and USD to the total financial assets of the Group
and the University were 2% and 3% respectively
as at 30 June 2014 (2013: both 3%), exposure to
foreign currency risk is not significant.

ABRELABHEUARBLSEEEBNERNEE
ARG EREERENS I TREALZN - &
“F-NFARA=1H & ABEERASZNEE A
REIXTMIINERGEECERMEENRENEE
BEANREEAL=R=(CE—=ZFERAEALZS)
' KBRS A B O RE AR M MEE BRI B -



(v) Equity price risk

The Group and the University are exposed to
equity price risk arising primarily from equity
investments and unit trusts classified under
trading securities (see note 15). The equity
price risk of the investments is managed by
professional managers through their own risk
management and assessment policies. The
investment managers’ investment strategies
are governed by the University’s investment
and asset allocation guidelines. The Group and
the University also monitor the risk exposure by
reviewing periodic reports from the custodians
and investment managers. The Group’s and the
University’s investments in equity securities are
spread over major stock markets in the world.

At the balance sheet date, if the prices of the
respective listed equity securities and unit
trusts had been 5% higher/lower, with all other
variables held constant, the Group’s and the
University’s surplus for the year would have
been increased/decreased by $73,849,000
(2013: $64,627,000) and $53,624,000 (2013:
$43,740,000) respectively as a result of the
changes in fair value of the listed equity securities
and unit trusts.

The following tables show the breakdown of
the values of the Group’s and the University’s
investments in listed equity securities and unit
trusts by trading market at the balance sheet
date:

(v)

R R E G AR

ARBEELASFEENERERRREERE D
BRUEHEES THREFESLEMETES (M
#15) - REERERBERIGEEEEB MM
FIERGRTE R EEBRERRE - MBIREEE
HIRTR & SRR R RERBE R B IR IR E N EE
DECHES| - ABBERABTEERTEMBE LR
EEENERRS AT EEE - KBRIERAKREM
FAENBRAESREMEEESAHRIEREEE
Rz o

REERRKRH  ERFEESLEMETIEENE
BEFATHRERCE - EEM—ITTZRRITES
FTENERT  KABRENASREANER 2
AEmRFEESLEMERESNATEELSE)
ARBENEP EF=BNTEBATR(=T—=
T ATFEHEAT =B ETFRIAAT=ERTE
OFu(=F—=F : IF=Ft+0&Er) °

AT —BRIIHEESRRAARBEERABRE
TEB8REMELZ LHRENEMETESNERE :

(a) The Group REERE
(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)  (MAE#TFTTHIR)
2014 2013
Equities  Unit Trusts Total Equities  Unit Trusts Total
Market mHi5 BAES BuEES L] BEANEE BuEREE 8%
United States 3% 653,827 34,743 688,570 538,857 46,578 585,435
Hong Kong &E 513,138 1,185 514,323 490,649 1,065 491,714
Europe &R 212,455 - 212,455 125,130 - 125,130
Japan SR 41,340 - 41,340 52,728 - 52,728
Asia Pacific TKE - 20,292 - 20,292 23,448 - 23,448
excluding BEM
Hong Kong H2sERSH
and Japan
Others Hith - - - 14,095 - 14,095
1,441,052 35,928 1,476,980 1,244,907 47,643 1,292,550




(b) The University FE
(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)  (AE#TFITHIR)
2014 2013
Equities  Unit Trusts Total Equities  Unit Trusts Total
Market 5 BAEs BEEREE 68 BAES EfEREE B85
United States EJE 653,827 34,743 688,570 538,857 46,578 585,435
Hong Kong BE 115,434 - 115,434 95,627 - 95,627
Europe ERiM 212,455 - 212,455 125,130 - 125,130
Japan =i 41,340 - 41,340 52,728 - 52,728
Asia Pacific BKIE 14,682 - 14,682 18,664 - 18,664
excluding B5ER
Hong Kong [=F:NES
and Japan
Others Hith - - - 14,095 - 14,095
1,037,738 34,743 1,072,481 845,101 46,578 891,679

30.2 Limited partnerships and alternative

investments

There may be frequent short-term fluctuations in the
value of the limited partnerships and the alternative
investments during the durations of the investment
horizons. Both types of investments are under
the close scrutiny of the University Administration
and the University’s Finance Committee and
Investment Sub-committee. Professional fund
managers handling these investments have ample
experience in administering endowment funds of
prestigious private universities in the United States.
They manage the investment portfolios by using
comprehensive monitoring systems to minimise
credit risk, liquidity risk, interest rate risk, foreign
currency risk and equity price risk, where applicable,
of the underlying assets through diversifications
of their investment portfolios, frequent on-site due
diligence visits, proprietary quantitative analyses
and other relevant measures. The funds deployed
for these two categories of investment are of
non-UGC source, mainly comprising donations
and University’s own cash reserves. Short-term
diminution in the fair values of these investments
will not have significant impact on the University’s
daily operations.
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(i) The following table shows the amounts of asset (i) M FT—EXRIHBNREEEBXRARSEBIREEE
allocation in the limited partnerships at the SECHEEE :

(if)

balance sheet date:

The Group and the University

REBERAE

(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)  (MAFE¥ETFTTHITR)

2014 2013

bl % =8 %
Hedge Funds RS 280,356 21 286,478 23
Cash RE 76,461 6 11,459 1
Private Equity B 323,096 24 302,412 25
Real Estate EihE 157,267 11 132,979 1"
Fixed Income EEWA 101,948 7 114,591 9
International Equity IRBRRE 305,843 22 252,100 20
Natural Resources KAREIR 106,380 8 120,828 10
Others Hih 9,287 1 12,497 1
Total msE 1,360,638 100 1,233,344 100

The following table shows the amounts of
asset allocation in alternative investments
at the balance sheet date:

The Group and the University

(i) MF—EBRINEREEERRASEREEESD
FCHIEER -

REERELKE

(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)  (BAFE#FT5IR)

2014 2013
&8 % Bl %
Hedge Funds RS 169,288 57 202,462 66
Real Estate BiE 49,492 17 46,162 15
Private Equity B 75,968 26 56,936 19
Total g 294,748 100 305,560 100




30.3 Fair value measurement

All financial instruments are carried at amounts not
materially different from their fair values as at 30
June 2014 and 2013.

The fair values of listed equity, debt securities and
unit trusts are based on quoted market bid prices
at the balance sheet date.

The fair values of unlisted equity-linked notes are
based on the valuations provided by the counterparty
financial institutions.

Fair values for held-to-maturity debt securities are
based on their trading values in the secondary
market on or nearest to the balance sheet date.

Since the limited partnership investments and the
alternative investments are not readily marketable,
the University management determines their fair
values based on the capital account statements
provided by General Partner of the Partnerships and
the administrators or investment managers of the
alternative investments, respectively. However, such
estimated fair values may differ from the values that
would have been determined had an open market
for these investments existed.

HKFRS13, Fair value measurement defined the
category of three-level fair value hierarchy. The level
into which a fair value measurement is classified is
determined with reference to the observability and
significance of the inputs used in valuation technique
as follows:

- Level 1 valuations: Fair value measured using
only Level 1 inputs i.e. unadjusted quoted prices
in active markets for identical assets or liabilities
at the measurement date.

- Level 2 valuations: Fair value measured using
only Level 2 inputs i.e. observable inputs which
fail to meet Level 1, and not using significant
unobservable inputs. Unobservable inputs are
inputs for which market data are not available.

- Level 3 valuations: Fair value measured using
siginifcant unobservable inputs.

The table below analyses financial instruments,
measured at fair values as at the respective balance
sheet dates on a recurring basis, by the level in
the fair value hierarchy into which the fair value
measurements are categorised:
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(a) Financial assets carried at fair value

(a) BRARBEEIIRNEREE

The Group REER
(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars) (A EETFITHIR)
2014

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total

EiR— Fih— EH= B;m
Trading Securities oEERES 2,027,148 127,887 - 2,155,035
Available-for-sale Securities ot EES 238,374 - - 238,374
Limited Partnership Investments PRESBEE - - 1,360,638 1,360,638
Alternative Investments SEEiE - - 294,748 294,748
Total b 2,265,522 127,887 1,655,386 4,048,795

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total

ER— E=F 1) EH= BEE
Trading Securities oEERES 1,687,591 120,981 - 1,808,572
Available-for-sale Securities ot ERES 239,042 - - 239,042
Limited Partnership Investments RESBEE - - 1,233,344 1,233,344
Alternative Investments SiERE - - 305,560 305,560
Total imzE 1,926,633 120,981 1,538,904 3,586,518
The University X2
(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars) (BT THIR)

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total

Fih— FR= ER= am
Trading Securities o ESE 1,861,022 127,887 - 1,988,909
Limited Partnership Investments RESBIZE - - 1,360,638 1,360,638
Alternative Investments SEigE - - 294,748 294,748
Total BzE 1,861,022 127,887 1,655,386 3,644,295

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total

i EE3 1 Fh= b
Trading Securities oEEES 1,525,762 120,981 - 1,646,743
Limited Partnership Investments RE&BIRE - - 1,233,344 1,233,344
Alternative Investments SEKRE - - 305,560 305,560
Total 4B%E 1,525,762 120,981 1,538,904

3,185,647




During the year there were no transfers between
financial instruments in Level 1 and Level 2.

The fair value of the securities under Level 2
is determined by reference to the prices at the
reporting date provided by the fund managers and
have been translated using the foreign currency at
the end of the reporting period where appropriate.

The following table shows a reconciliation from
the beginning balances to the ending balances
as for the fair value measurements in Level 3 of
the fair value hierarchy for both the Group and
the University:

The Group and the University FcE3ZREE Ky el

FREBERGESR—HER-ZEBE -

BREZGESNARBENSZESIERFRRMZR
HHEBMET - LEARSHERCERTE -

UF—BRITASBEERASRERAAEEFTR
=HNEMT R FHEFEEHREE)

(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars) (LA T TT517R)
2014
Opening balance as at 1 July 2013 HR#4GER 1,538,904
Total gain included in the Statement of EaEEEEKRZERD 172,105
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Ry &
Additions bpy 18,368
Disposals HE (73,991)
Closing balance as at 30 June 2014 HAR45ER 1,655,386
2013
Opening balance as at 1 July 2012 HAR4EER 1,443,827
Total gain included in the Statement of EgEEEZEKZRT 135,191
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure R4 &S
Additions B 3,248
Disposals HE (43,362)
Closing balance as at 30 June 2013 HAFRA4GER 1,538,904

All gains and losses for the fair value measurements
in Level 3 of the fair value hierarchy were
recognised in the Statement of Comprehensive
Income and Expenditure for both the Group and
the University for the year ended 30 June 2014.

AREBERNABHENEFR=2RTH 8=E—F—0
FARA=THNERCEZENIRER -



The Level 3 financial assets of the Group and the
University are the investments in the three limited
partnerships and the alternative investments
arranged by an investment consultant in the United
States as detailed in Note 30.2.

The Level 3 financial assets of the Group and the
University are not traded in active markets. In the
absence of an active market, an investment’s fair
value is estimated on the basis of an analysis of the
investee’s financial position and results, risk profile,
prospects and other factors, as well as by reference
to market valuations for similar entities quoted in
an active market. Given the bespoke nature of the
analysis in respect of each holding, it is not practical
to quote a range of key unobservable inputs.

Although the Group and the University are of
the view that fair value measurements in Level
3 financial assets based on the capital account
statements provided by the General Partner of the
three limited partnerships and the administrators or
investment managers of the alternative investments
are appropriate, the use of different methodologies
or assumptions by the underlying investment
managers engaged by the limited partnerships and
the University could lead to different measurements
of the fair values. The US-based investment
consultant’s advice has been sought and its
analysis of returns of widely-used market indices for
alternative investments (i.e. funds of hedge funds,
private equity funds, real estate funds and natural
resources funds) against general conditions of
investment markets suggests that while the returns
of these indices are historical and past performance
is not a guarantee of future results, these indices
can be applied to a simple overall quantitative
sensitivity analysis relating to the fair values of
major alternative investments in the Group’s and
the University’s Level 3 financial assets.

Assuming that

(i) the widely-used market indices for funds of
hedge funds, private equity funds, real estate
funds and natural resources funds had increased/
decreased by 5% and the fair values of assets under
“Fixed Income” and “Others” of the Level 3 financial
assets had increased/decreased by 5% and
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(i) the prices of international markets equities had
been 5% higher/lower,

with all other variables held unchanged, the fair
values of the Group’s and the University’s Level 3
financial assets, and hence the Group’s and the
University’s surplus would have increased/decreased
by approximately $78,946,000 (2013 : $76,372,000).

(b) Financial assets carried at other than fair value

(i) RE/IRBR/ R ETIBRENER LA/ THREALZ
£ ’

MEMTEHNEERETE - KBEERABNER=
KERMEENLABEENABRENABRFEANELR
SIREPHOEFNEATEERTFT (ZF—=5F:
tFRE=TtE=FR) -

(b) FUAAEETIREEREE

The Group RERERE
(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars) (BT THIR)
Fair value measurements as at
30 June 2014
RIZ—mEXA=1H
Carrying Fair value BRAREENE Carrying Fair value
amount at at30 June Level1 Level2 Level 3 amountat at 30 June
30 June 2014 2014 30 June 2013 2013
RIS—ME RTS—HE RIS—=F RWZ-B—=F
~B=+H ~A=+H ARB=t+H AXB=1+H
HIREEEE HRREE SH— FH- EHR= WIREASE MWLREE
Held-to-maturity ~ #&ZZMA 2,404,134 2455318 79,029 2,376,289 - 2,971,623 3,039,930
debt securities &5
The University ~ X2
(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars) (ABEETFTTHIR)
Fair value measurements as at
30 June 2014
RIZ—MEFEXA=1H
Carrying Fair value BRAORBEE Carrying  Fair value
amount at at30June [evel1 Level2 Level3 amountat at30 June
30 June 2014 2014 30 June 2013 2013
RIS—ME RTS—HE RIS—=F RWZIB—=F
~B=+H ~A=+H ARB=t+H AXB=1+H
HIREEEE HoRERE SH— FH= EH= MIRESE MAREE
Held-to-maturity ~ #&ZZI%A 2,369,168 2,420,083 63,557 2,356,526 - 2,913,795 2,981,685
debt securities EFEE

The fair value of the securities under Level 2
is determined by reference to the prices at the
reporting date provided by the banks and have
been translated using the foreign currency at the
end of the reporting period where appropriate.

BREZHESFNLAEBELGSERTARREHZERER
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30.4 Interests in investment funds

The University holds interests in investment funds
investing in the following asset classes. The purpose
of these investment funds is to generate investment
income for the University. These investment funds
are managed by professional fund managers.

The table below sets out the interests held by the
University in these investment funds. The maximum
exposure to loss is the carrying amount of the
financial assets held.
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Carrying
amount
included in
financial assets
Number of Approximate at fair value
Investment total net throught profit
Investment fund classes funds assets or loss
HEEEER HEEE wmEEE EFTRERERIN
HE #E RABEETIRN
EREEN
IREEEE
HKD’billion HKD’million
+HE#T EEBT
Equities BE 15 708 1,735
Fixed Income FEE2UA 3 794 128
Hedge Funds HihEE 6 163 169
Real Estate EihE 2 5 49
Private Equity FAEERGHE 4 4 76
Limited Partnership [RESEINE 3 122 1,360
Total b 1,796 3,517

All the above investment funds are passive
investments only. The University has no control of,
influence on or financial support to any of these
funds.

The total net asset valuations are the best
approximations obtained from various fund
managers.

The University can redeem the above investment
funds within five business days to one year,
depending on the requirement of each investment
fund.
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31.

ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND JUDGEMENTS

The Group’s and the University’s fixed assets
are depreciated on a straight-line basis over the
estimated useful lives of the assets, after taking into
account their estimated residual value. The Group
and the University review the estimated useful
lives and residual values of the assets annually
in order to determine the amount of depreciation
expense to be recorded during any reporting period.
The useful lives and residual values are based on
management’s historical experience with similar
assets and, where applicable, taking into account
anticipated equipment upgrade and replacement.
The depreciation charges for future periods are
adjusted if there are significant changes from
previous estimates.

The split between current and non-current portions
of the balance of Deferred Income is based on the
expenditure spent in the current year or the unspent
balance of the grants, whichever is lesser.

Notes 15 and 16 contain information on the
assumptions and risk factors relating to financial
instruments and defined benefit retirement
obligations.

31. tRE {5 R HER

ABRELABHNEEEE  SMEMGTIRAERARE
BREME - MERGNETINE - 85 - KBERELKE
EEEEEEENTAFRAZGEENRESESR
FRARMFTESL - TRFRAZGEERENEE
BERERELEENER - REREIRMIRARE
& o MMAEMMSETRIEEANRE - RRFHIITER
SRR -

ERIEEWSmNERBERREBAIERBNEE, BERE
FHZ BB IRTRAVIAS G, MBRER/ ) MIERIATE
ERDHVKIR

izt 16 R HiE 16 B R EMBHEM TR EFNREAR
EFEIMERRERESE -



32. POSSIBLE IMPACT OF AMENDMENTS, NEW

STANDARDS AND INTERPRETATIONS ISSUED
BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE FOR THE YEAR
ENDED 30 JUNE 2014

Up to the date of issue of these financial statements,
the HKICPA has pronounced a number of
amendments, new standards and interpretations
which are not yet effective for the year ended 30

32. BEF-NMFEAASTHLFECHEBENREN
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S8E—F-NFARA=1THIEFENLREN - MEMN
REFRHBHRRDER - ZEFATERARKBEEN

June 2014 and which have not been adopted in
these financial statements. Those that may be
relevant to the group are as follows:

FERIFIAANT

Effective for accounting
periods beginning

on or after

1 January 2014

1 January 2014

Amendments to HKFRS 10, HKFRS 12 and HKAS 27, Investment entities
Amendments to HKAS 32, Financial instruments: Presentation
- Offsetting financial assets and financial liabilities

Amendments to HKAS 36, Recoverable amount disclosures for non-financial assets 1 January 2014

Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2010-2012 Cycle 1 July 2014
Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2011-2013 Cycle 1 July 2014
Amendments to HKAS 19, Employee benefits: Defined benefit plans: Employee 1 July 2014

contribution

Amendments to HKAS 16 and HKAS 38, Clarification of acceptable methods of
depreciation and amortisation

HKFRS 15, Revenue from contracts with customers
HKFRS 9, Financial instruments

1 January 2016

1 January 2017
1 January 2018

K5I B2 iEm

BPREN

EHEIMISMEEAE 1015  B12EREBEHERE27FZIEET — TREHEE, 201451810
EHEHERIEI2NE 55T TERTE: 2 SRNEERSHEaBIIEN 201451810
EHEBEEAIE6IE 125] TESMEETKESENIRE | 201451R1H
EEIEIREREA 2010-201 2B ZEERE 2014%7H1H
EHIISME AR 2011-201 3B ZEEHE 2014%7R18
EBEEHERIE 191% 155T TREEN: REFME, BEMRR L 20145 7H1H
EBEHERIE 165 RI8HZIZT - WIS ZInE R % 2 e 201651A1H
EHBIUHREENE 151 — FEEESEMIA 201751H1H
EBH RS ENENE TEMIE, 201851A1H

The Group is in the process of making an assessment
of what the impact of these amendments is expected
to be in the period of initial application. So far it has
concluded that the adoption of them is unlikely to
have significant impact on the consolidated financial
statements.

ARECRRTEERIRAZREFER - LEERRAZ
FEAIRDHABRENEBLERNU BN TBRE
REVFE -




BEPNAZL
=ERERKRES
The Trustees of

Chung Chi College
The Chinese University
of Hong Kong




INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
biRvE (e

TO THE BOARD OF TRUSTEES OF CHUNG CHI COLL

THE CHINESE UNIVERSITY OF HONG KONG
BEBPNABREDSRRER

We have audited the financial statements of the Trustees of
Chung Chi College (the “College”) set out on pages 2 to 29,
which comprise the balance sheet as at 30 June 2014, and
the statement of comprehensive income and expenditure, the
statement of changes in funds and the cash flow statement for
the year then ended, and a summary of significant accounting
policies and other explanatory information.

THE BOARD OF TRUSTEES’ RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Board of Trustees is responsible for the preparation of
financial statements that give a true and fair view in accordance
with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards issued by the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and for such
internal control as the Board of Trustees determine is necessary
to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITY

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial
statements based on our audit. This report is made solely to
you, as a body, in accordance with Statue 12(7) of The Chinese
University of Hong Kong Ordinance (Cap. 1109), and for no other
purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards or accept
liability to any other person for the contents of this report.

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards
on Auditing issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants. Those standards require that we comply with ethical
requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether the financial statements are free from
material misstatement.

An auditinvolves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence
about the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements.
The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgement,
including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of
the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making
those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control
relevant to the entity’s preparation of the financial statements that
give a true and fair view in order to design audit procedures that
are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal
control. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of
accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates made by the Board of Trustees, as well as evaluating
the overall presentation of the financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient
and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

OPINION

In our opinion, the financial statements give a true and fair view
of the state of affairs of the College as at 30 June 2014 and of
its surplus and cash flows for the year then ended in accordance
with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards.

KPMG

Certified Public Accountants
8th Floor, Prince’s Building
10 Chater Road

Central, Hong Kong

7 October 2014
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THE TRUSTEES OF CHUNG CHI COLLEGE
THE CHINESE UNIVERSITY OF HONG KONG
BAPXADRESRRET

STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2014

HE_T-NFRA=THLFE

(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars) (A& #&T5c5I7R)

2014 2013
Pommerenke Other Pommerenke Other
Trust Funds Trust Funds
Fund Fund
Note BEEMm EHAth EEEm HAth
His: BEE BEE BEE BEE
Income WA
Subsidy from Pommerenke FEREEER - 24,267 - 16,840
Trust Fund
Tuition, Programmes and Other BE . RENEM 3 - 3,856 - 3,549
Fees &
Interest and Investment Income BRI E WS 4 19,947 4,483 33,465 6,199
Donations and Benefactions EEEYNE SR 5 - 13,401 - 33,967
Ancillary Services Income EHBNARFEUIA 6 4,670 2,008 4,590 2,204
Other Income HATA 7 - 2,127 - 2,720
24,617 50,142 38,055 65,479
Expenditure ZiH
Learning and Research Bl KR5S 8
Other Academic Services H{th 2 EBRTS - 11,858 - 10,399
Institutional Support 2P E BN AR TS 8
Management and General BEN—MEE 13 - 13 -
Premises and Related Expenses BFREEZEN 1,762 3,725 1,639 3,323
Student and General Education BEN—MHE - 30,920 - 33,030
Services ==
Other Activities HAth=E# - 720 - 1,910
Subsidy to College Academic EBhEBpREAIl 24,267 - 16,840 -
Activities EED
26,042 47,223 18,492 48,662
(Deficit)/Surplus for the Year REE(ESH)RR (1,425) 2,919 19,563 16,817
Other Comprehensive Income HittZ iz
Item that may be Reclassified HignEHoBER
Subsequently to Surplus or Deficit BREEIEZIER
Change in Fair Value of Available- o it SR ANEE - 2,201 - 2,776
for-sale Equity Securities NhBEZED
Total Comprehensive Income A FEEREWEEE (1,425) 5,120 19,563 19,593
for the Year - - T
Transfers (from)/to: ER(E)/E :
Endowment Trust Funds BifEREE - 31) - 4,985
College Head's Discretionary RRZMRETES - 87 - (1,531)
Trust Fund
College Development Trust Fund BRERGETES - 8,917 - 3,576
Student Welfare Trust Fund BLEANETES - 2,135 - 2,615
Divinity School Fund HEREE - (5,528) - (1,763)
Investment Revaluation Reserve =R - 2,201 - 2,776
Pommerenke Trust Fund EEREE (1,403) - 19,538 -
Capital Fund aEES 22)  (2381) 25 8,935
(1,425) 5,120 19,563 19,593

The notes set out on pages 6 to 29 form an integral part of these financial statements.

NEHRBAREZTAE KRB RIRZ—EMD -
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THE TRUSTEES OF CHUNG CHI COLLEGE
THE CHINESE UNIVERSITY OF HONG KONG
HEPXABEEDORRER

BALANCE SHEET ZE&#EX

AS AT 30 JUNE 2014

—E-MmEXB=1H

(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars) (LAj&#T7E5173)

Note 2014 2013
BficE
Non-Current Assets EREEE
Investment Properties BEMmE 10 - -
Fixed Assets BEEEE 11 72,513 74,389
Investments BE 12 40,536 34,991
113,049 109,380
Current Assets MENEE
Investments ®BE 12 134,544 168,863
Amount due from The Chinese University FEWE P X AEIRIE 13 2,049 3,184
of Hong Kong
Student Loans BHEm 425 375
Inventories =78 361 432
Deposits and Payments in Advance BENFEMNTRIE 13 1,197 1,716
Accounts Receivable FEUMTIRTR 13 6,601 7,200
Cash and Time Deposits RENBITEHREN 14 705,227 670,171
850,404 851,941
Current Liabilities mENAaE
Creditors and Deposits FEFTIRFR R IR E 15 8,443 10,218
Provision for Employee Benefits EE1EF % 1,519 1,162
9,962 11,380
Net Current Assets mENEEFE 840,442 840,561
Total Assets Less Current Liabilities HEERRHEE 953,491 949,941
Non-Current Liability ERBIEE
Provision for Employee Benefits EE1EF % 590 735
NET ASSETS BERE 952,901 949,206
Endowment Trust Funds BifEREE 42,278 42,181
College Head’s Discretionary Trust Fund RRXZEEAEE 4,567 4,674
College Development Trust Fund BREEEIES 74,310 66,788
Student Welfare Trust Fund BEENERES 20,581 18,498
Divinity School Fund HERES 53,614 58,350
Investment Revaluation Reserve e EhER 16,188 13,987
211,538 204,478
Pommerenke Trust Fund EERES 668,850 670,339
Capital Fund BEER 72,513 74,389
TOTAL FUNDS BERE 16

Approved and authorised for issue by the Board of Trustees on 7 October 2014

REERKEGR-FT—NF+AtAfERSEERIIHERR

952,901

949,206

Karl C. Kwok Chairman, Board of Trustees
SRR RESIE

Aubrey K.S. Li Chairman, Finance Committee
FEE RESUBZEEEERE

Victor W.K. Chan Member, Board of Trustees
BRIES RESES
The notes set out on pages 6 to 29 form an integral part of these financial statements.
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THE TRUSTEES OF CHUNG CHI COLLE
THE CHINESE UNIVERSITY OF HONG K

BEEPNABSESRRER

STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN FUNDS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2014

BEE_F-NFAA=tTHLFE

(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars) (I #&#&T7T515R)

Endowment Discretionary Development Welfare Divinity Investment Pommerenke

College

Head'’s

College Student

Trust Trust Trust Trust School  Revaluation Trust Capital
Funds Fund Fund Fund Fund Reserve Fund Fund Total
Bl fEFE FRRZAL BlREE  BEEN @Bk REER BEER =13 HaER
B2E EEEE EREE GREE ES ffE BEE BEE
Balance at 1 July 2012 —8-=F 37,196 6,205 63,212 15,883 60,113 11,211 650,801 65,429 910,050
tA—B&R
Transfers from/(to) Statement BEE/(E)2EKZIR 4,985 (1,531) 3,576 2,615 (1,763) 2,776 19,538 8,960 39,156
of Comprehensive Income
and Expenditure
Transfer between Funds EERER - - - -
Balance at 30 June 2013 —g-=F 42,181 4,674 66,788 18,498 58,350 13,987 670,339 74,389 949,206
~REtH&ER
Balance at 1 July 2013 —g-=F 42,181 4,674 66,788 18,498 58,350 13,987 670,339 74,389 949,206
+tA—B&R
Transfers from/(to) Statement EE/(ZE)ZEWZE (311) 87 8,917 2,135 (5,528) 2,201 (1,403) (2,403) 3,695
of Comprehensive Income
and Expenditure
Transfer between Funds EEREER 408 (194) (1,395) (52) 792 - (86) 527
Balance at 30 June 2014 —E-[mF 42,278 4,567 74,310 20,581 53,614 16,188 668,850 72,513 952,901
~RE=tH&SR

The notes set out on pages 6 to 29 form an integral part of these financial statements.
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THE TRUSTEES OF CHUNG CHI COLLEGE
THE CHINESE UNIVERSITY OF HONG KONG
HAEPXABEEDORRER

CASH FLOW STATEMENT RERER

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2014

HE_Z-NFRA=THLFE

(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars) (LAj&#T7E5173)

Note 2014 2013
PifaE
Operating Activities e ESE
(Deficit)/Surplus for the Year NEFFE(BSIR) /&R
Pommerenke Trust Fund EERES (1,425) 19,563
Other Funds HittEE 2,919 16,817
Adjustments for: FAEIER:
Depreciation e 2,403 2,001
Gain on Disposal of Fixed Assets HERTEER S (67) -
Interest and Investment Income IISUSEca=1h6:
Pommerenke Trust Fund EERES (19,947) (33,465)
Other Funds HittEE (4,483) (6,199)
Operating Deficit before Changes in EEETETNEEHE (20,600) (1,283)
Working Capital
Decrease/(Increase) in Amount due from FEUE B ST AREBIRIEZ 1,135 (2,530)
The Chinese University of Hong Kong A (3BN)
Increase in Student Loans BAEIZIEM (50) (35)
Decrease in Inventories BFEZRED 7 22
Decrease in Deposits and Payments BERFEMRIEZED 519 390
in Advance
Decrease/(Increase) in Accounts Receivable FEUIR TR Z iR (Y8 10) a7 (398)
(Decrease)/Increase in Creditors and Deposits FEFTIRTR A IZ T 2 (R ) 38N (495) 1,942
Increase/(Decrease) in Provision for Employee EEtEH 2 fm 2 8N/ (RIS) 212 (43)
Benefits
Net Cash Used in Operating Activities BEEHFANREFE (18,791) (1,935)
Investing Activities IBEEE)
Increase in Time Deposits with Original FERERiBE =B B NERTEER (38,432) (183,594)
Maturity over Three Months Z KN
Payment for Purchase of Fixed Assets EREEEE (2,179) (5,954)
Proceeds from Disposal of Fixed Assets HEE T EEFESIE 439 -
Payment for Purchase of Investments e A (45,812) (36,985)
Proceeds from Sales of Investments eI EFRERIE 82,133 144,774
Interest Received B 2 12,877 13,193
Dividend Received =S 6,389 6,425
Net Cash Generated from/(Used in) Investing NEREES/(FRA)NREESR 15,415 (62,141)
Activities
Net Decrease in Cash and Cash Equivalents REMRESEYFRED (3,376) (64,076)
Cash and Cash Equivalents - Beginning of Year HERBESZEY - SVEE 6,220 70,296
Cash and Cash Equivalents - End of Year RETINESEEY - FREF 6,220

The notes set out on pages 6 to 29 form an integral part of these financial statements.
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THE TRUSTEES OF CHUNG CHI COLLEGE
THE CHINESE UNIVERSITY OF HONG KONG
HEAEPXABRESRRET

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

CC6

BASIS OF P ION

The financial statements of The Trustees of Chung Chi
College (the “College”) reflect the state of affairs of all the
funds of the College at 30 June 2014 and the College’s
results and cash flows for the year then ended. The
assets of the College are vested in the Board of Trustees
of Chung Chi College under The Chinese University of
Hong Kong Ordinance.

These financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with all applicable Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”) (which collective term
includes all applicable individual Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards, Hong Kong Accounting Standards
(“HKASSs”) and Interpretations) issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA”) and
accounting principles generally accepted in Hong Kong.

The HKICPA has issued a number of new HKFRSs
and amendments to HKFRSs that are first effective for
the current accounting period of the College. Of these,
the following development is relevant to the College’s
financial statements:

HKFRS 13, Fair value measurement - replaces existing
guidance in individual HKFRSs with a single source
of fair value measurement guidance. HKFRS 13 also
contains extensive disclosure requirements about fair
value measurements for both financial instruments
and non-financial instruments. To the extent that the
requirements are applicable to the College, the College
has provided those disclosures in notes 10 and 18(v).

The College has not applied any new standard or
interpretation that is not yet effective for the current
accounting period (see note 22).

The measurement basis used in the preparation of the
financial statements is the historical cost basis except
otherwise stated in the accounting policies set out below.

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with
HKFRSs requires management to make judgements,
estimates and assumptions that affect the application
of policies and reported amounts of assets, liabilities,
income and expenses. The estimates and associated
assumptions are based on historical experience and
various other factors that are believed to be reasonable
under the circumstances, the results of which form the
basis of making the judgements about carrying values
of assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent
from other sources. Actual results may differ from these
estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed
on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates
are recognised in the period in which the estimate is
revised if the revision affects only that period, or in the
period of the revision and future periods if the revision
affects both current and future periods.

A summary of the significant accounting policies adopted
by the College is set out below.

RRER
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2.2

SIGNIFICANT ING POLICIES

Fixed Assets

Fixed assets, other than art collections, are stated
in the Balance Sheet at cost less accumulated
depreciation and impairment losses, if any (see
note 2.4).

Art collections are stated at cost less impairment
losses, if any (see note 2.4). The residual value of art
collections is expected to be equal to or greater than
the carrying amount, and therefore art collections are
not depreciated.

The cost of an asset comprises its purchase price
and any directly attributable costs of bringing the
assets to its working condition and location for its
intended use. Where it can be clearly demonstrated
that subsequent expenditure on an asset has resulted
in an increase in its future economic benefit, such
expenditure is capitalised as an additional cost of
that asset.

Depreciation is calculated to write off the cost of
fixed assets, less their estimated residual value,
if any, using the straight line method over their
estimated useful lives as follows:

Interest in Leasehold Land Over the
Held for Own Use Under remaining lease
Operating Leases term

Buildings Shorter of remaining
lease term and 40
years

Equipment, Furniture, 3 —10 years

Fixtures and Fittings

Both the useful life of an asset and its residual value,
if any, are reviewed annually.

The gain or loss on disposal or retirement of a fixed
asset is determined as the difference between
the net proceeds and the carrying amount of the
fixed asset and is recognised in the Statement of
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure on the
date of retirement or disposal.

Investment Properties

Investment properties are land and/or buildings
which are owned or held under a leasehold interest
to earn rental income and/or for capital appreciation.
These include land held for a currently undetermined
future use.

2.2

FEEHER
ElR&EE

FREfTIRES - BEEERUNAERERFHTENR
EERERNREEGRRDIIR(EHEE2.4)
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Investment properties are stated in the Balance
Sheet at cost less accumulated depreciation and
impairment losses (see note 2.4). Any gain or
loss arising from the retirement or disposal of an
investment property is recognised in the Statement
of Comprehensive Income and Expenditure. Rental
income from investment properties is accounted for
as described in note 2.8(v).

Investments

The College’s policies for investments in securities
are as follows:

(i) Dated debt securities that the College has
the ability and intention to hold to maturity are
classified as held-to-maturity securities. Held-
to-maturity securities are initially recognised in
the Balance Sheet at fair value plus transaction
costs. Subsequently, they are stated in
the Balance Sheet at amortised cost less
impairment losses (see note 2.4).

(i) Investments in securities held for trading are
classified as current assets and are initially
stated at fair value. At each Balance Sheet
date the fair value is remeasured, with any
resultant gain or loss being recognised in the
Statement of Comprehensive Income and
Expenditure.

(iii) Other investments in securities are classified
as available-for-sale securities and are initially
recognised at fair value plus transaction
costs. At each balance sheet date, the fair
value is remeasured, with any resultant
gain or loss being recognised directly in
investment revaluation reserve, except for
impairment losses (see note 2.4) and, in the
case of monetary items such as debt securities,
foreign exchange gains and losses which
are recognised directly in the Statement of
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure.
Where these investments are interest-bearing,
interest calculated using the effective interest
method is recognised in the Statement of
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure.
When these investments are derecognised, the
cumulative gain or loss previously recognised
directly in the investment revaluation reserve is
recognised in the Statement of Comprehensive
Income and Expenditure.
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(iv) Investments are recognised/derecognised on

the date the College commits to purchase/sell
the investments or they expire.

2.4 Impairment of Assets

(i)

Impairment of Investments in Debt and
Equity Securities and Receivables

Investments in debt and equity securities and
receivables that are stated at cost or amortised
cost or are classified as available-for-sale
securities are reviewed at each balance sheet
date to determine whether there is objective
evidence of impairment. Objective evidence of
impairment includes observable data that comes
to the attention of the College about one or more
of the following loss events:

significant financial difficulty of the debtor;

- a breach of contract, such as a default
or delinquency in interest or principal
payments;

- itbecoming probable that the debtor will enter
bankruptcy or other financial reorganisation;

- significant changes in the technological,
market, economic or legal environment that
have an adverse effect on the debtor; and

- a significant or prolonged decline in the
fair value of an investment in an equity
instrument below its cost.

If any such evidence exists, any impairment loss
is determined and recognised as follows:

- For receivables that are carried at cost,
the impairment loss is measured as the
difference between the carrying amount
of the financial asset and the estimated
future cash flows, discounted at the current
market rate of return for a similar financial
asset where the effect of discounting is
material. Impairment losses for receivables
are reversed if in a subsequent period the
amount of the impairment loss decreases.

- For financial assets carried at amortised
cost, the impairment loss is measured as
the difference between the asset’s carrying
amount and the present value of estimated
future cash flows, discounted at the financial
asset’s original effective interest rate (i.e.
the effective interest rate computed at initial
recognition of these assets).

(iv) REMERNGIFREESEFRAEREN L EZIR
EIREHZREIEB R ARIT -
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If in a subsequent period the amount of
an impairment loss decreases and the
decrease can be linked objectively to
an event occurring after the impairment
loss was recognised, the impairment
loss is reversed through the Statement of
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure.
A reversal of an impairment loss shall
not result in the asset’s carrying amount
exceeding that which would have been
determined had no impairment loss been
recognised in prior years.

- For available-for-sale securities, the
cumulative loss that had been recognised
directly in investment revaluation reserve
is removed and is recognised in the
Statement of Comprehensive Income and
Expenditure. The amount of the cumulative
loss that is recognised in the Statement of
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure
is the difference between the acquisition
cost (net of any principal repayment
and amortisation) and current fair value,
less any impairment loss on that asset
previously recognised in the Statement of
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure.

Impairment losses recognised in the
Statement of Comprehensive Income and
Expenditure in respect of available-for-
sale equity securities are not reversed
through the Statement of Comprehensive
Income and Expenditure. Any subsequent
increase in the fair value of such assets
is recognised directly in the investment
revaluation reserve.

(ii) Impairment of Fixed Assets and Investment

Properties

An impairment loss is recognised to the extent
that the carrying amount of an asset, or the
cash-generating unit to which it belongs, is more
than its recoverable amount. The recoverable
amount of an asset, or of the cash-generating
unit to which it belongs, is the greater of its fair
value less costs of disposal and value in use.
In assessing value in use, the estimated future
cash flows are discounted to their present
value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects
current market assessments of the time value
of money and the risks specific to the assets.
An impairment loss is reversed if there has
been a favourable change in estimates used to
determine the recoverable amount.
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2.6

2.7

2.8

Inventories

Inventories represent souvenirs held by the College
for resale. They are stated at the lower of cost and
net realisable value.

Cash and Cash Equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash at bank
and in hand, demand deposits with banks and
other financial institutions, and short-term, highly
liquid investments that are readily convertible into
known amounts of cash, which are subject to an
insignificant risk of changes in value, having been
within three months of maturity at acquisition.

Provisions and Contingent Liabilities

Provisions are recognised for liabilities of uncertain
timing or amount when the College has a legal or
constructive obligation arising as a result of a past
event, it is probable that an outflow of economic
benefits will be required to settle the obligation and
a reliable estimate can be made. Where the time
value of money is material, provisions are stated
at the present value of the expenditure expected
to settle the obligation.

Where it is not probable that an outflow of economic
benefits will be required, or the amount cannot be
estimated reliably, the obligation is disclosed as
a contingent liability, unless the probability of
outflow of economic benefits is remote. Possible
obligations, whose existence will only be confirmed
by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more
future events, are also disclosed as contingent
liabilities unless the probability of outflow of
economic benefits is remote.

Income Recognition

Provided it is probable that the economic benefits will
flow to the College and the income and expenditure,
if applicable, can be measured reliably, income is
recognised in the Statement of Comprehensive
Income and Expenditure as follows:

(i) Interest and Investment Income

Interest income is recognised as it accrues
using the effective interest method. Investment
income is recognised for the changes in
fair value of trading securities upon re-
measurement at each balance sheet date.

25
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2.7

2.8
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(i)

(iif)

(iv)

(v)

(vi)

Dividends

Dividend income from listed securities is
recognised when the share price of the
investment goes ex-dividend.

Tuition, Programmes and Other Fees

Tuition, Programmes and Other Fees are
recognised on an accrual basis and unearned
fees are treated as receipts in advance.

Donations and Benefactions

Donations and benefactions are recognised
in the Statement of Comprehensive Income
and Expenditure when the College becomes
entitled to the donations and benefactions and
it is probable that they will be received.

Rental Income from Operating Leases

Rental income receivable under operating
leases is recognised in the Statement of
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure in
equal instalments over the accounting periods
covered by the non-cancellable lease term.

Other Service Income

Other service income is recognised when the
related service is rendered.

Employee Benefits

U]

Salaries, paid annual leave, housing allowances
and the cost to the College of non-monetary
benefits are accrued in the year in which
the associated services are rendered by
employees of the College.

Contract-end gratuity is payable on completion
of a contract appointment with an employee
who has been in continuous employment
of not less than two years. The gratuity,
together with the total amount of the College’s
contributions to a particular retirement
scheme, will add up to 10% or 15% of the
appointee’s basic salary drawn during the
contract period.

2.9

(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

v)

(vi)
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2.1

(iii)  Contributions to defined contribution retirement
plans, including Mandatory Provident Funds
as required under the Hong Kong Mandatory
Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance, are
recognised as an expenditure in the Statement
of Comprehensive Income and Expenditure as
incurred.

(iv) Termination benefits are recognised at the
earlier of when the College can no longer
withdraw the offer of those benefits and when
it recognises restructuring costs involving the
payment of termination benefits.

Translation of Foreign Currencies

Foreign currency transactions during the year are
translated into Hong Kong dollars at the foreign
exchange rates ruling at the transaction dates.
Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in
foreign currencies are translated into Hong Kong
dollars at the foreign exchange rate ruling at the
balance sheet date. Exchange gains and losses
on foreign currency translation are dealt with in the
relevant fund account through the Statement of
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure.

Related Parties

(i)  Aperson, or a close member of that person’s
family, is related to the College if that person:

()  has control or joint control over the
College;

(I hassignificantinfluence over the College;
or

(I1y is @ member of the key management
personnel of the College or the College’s
parent.

(i)  An entity is related to the College if any of the
following conditions applies:

(I)  The entity and the College are members
of the same group (which means that
each parent, subsidiary and fellow
subsidiary is related to the others).

(I)  One entity is an associate or joint venture
of the other entity (or an associate or
joint venture of a member of a group of
which the other entity is a member).

(1) Both entities are joint ventures of the
same third party.
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(IV) One entity is a joint venture of a third
entity and the other entity is an associate
of the third entity.

(V) The entity is a post-employment benefit
plan for the benefit of employees of either
the College or an entity related to the
College.

(VI) The entity is controlled or jointly controlled
by a person identified in (i).

(VI) Aperson identified in (i)(1) has significant
influence over the entity or is a member
of the key management personnel of the
entity (or of a parent of the entity).

Close members of the family of a person are those
family members who may be expected to influence,
or be influenced by, that person in their dealings
with the entity.

(V1)

(v

(EPN:SHIESES
o TJREER

ZHBRE=ZANTERE)  MB—HIE
BE=FHEEAT] -

BB IR HRETN T RSB N 2 R
HISMESHRERZEFIGTE -

BB E () Pt A TSI s R
il o

R A THZ BB REEATEN
ERZMBEHDHIE) NERREEAS -

EREREFRthMERSERNRS
TEZLEAAZHEZENKEMNS -

TUITION, PROGRAMMES AND OTHER FEES B - RENHMKWE
(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)  (A#E#8F7T5IR)

2014 2013
Non-CUHK Degree Programmes FEh S K BABfERTE
Tuition Fees BE 3,831 3,510
Programmes and Other Fees R M E MU E 25 39
3,856 3,549
INTEREST AND INVESTMENT INCOME FIERIgE WS
(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)  (IA#E#FTFIR)
Pommerenke Other
Trust Fund Funds
FEEGES HihHE
2014 2013 2014 2013
Net Realised and Unrealised Gain B&E:Z5EIRNRE 5,935 13,038 - -
on Trading Securities RAl S EER
Interest Income from Debt BEIEESHEWA 769 3,211 334 464
Securities
Dividends from Listed Securities THESsEE 5,307 5,517 1,414 796
Interest Income from Bank BITEHERIE 9,849 7,840 3,340 3,274
Deposits A
Net Realised and Unrealised RITEHEMEEIR (1,913) 3,859 (605) 1,665
Exchange (Loss)/Gain from MR 2 IME
Bank Deposits SO R(E51E) ke

19,947

33,465 4,483 6,199



DONATIONS AND BENEFACTIONS LS ECEN

(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars) (A BT THlR)
2014 2013
Capital Projects BEEIEH 2,658 8,013
Scholarships, Prizes and Bursaries REF « RENMEE 4,470 8,161
Others Hfth 6,273 17,793
13,401 33,967
ANCILLARY SERVICES INCOME HRRFEWA
(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars) (U BT THIR)
Pommerenke Other
Trust Fund Funds
EEmRES HihEE
2014 2013 2014 2013
Residence Halls BiES - - 1,157 1,164
Rental Income HEWA 4,670 4,590 851 1,040
4,670 4,590 2,008 2,204
OTHER INCOME Ha A
(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)  (BABEFITHIR)
2014 2013
Service Income BRFSUTA 718 1,187
Contract Research BAEL 23 281
Miscellaneous Hith 1,386 1,252
2,127 2,720




8. EXPENDITURE k-2 o

(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)  (A#E#TF7THIR)
Staff Cost
and Operating
Benefits Expenses Depreciation Total
ETHM - &KEREX e L
Atz
Learning and Research Big K R T
Other Academic Services HAth B EBARTS 9,747 2,077 34 11,858
Institutional Support (Note 8.1) EAPR B BN AR 35 (P 3E8.1)
Management and General EEN—EEIE - 13 - 13
Premises and Related Expenses BFEEEZH 561 2,598 2,328 5,487
Student and General Education BEN—RBHE 11,382 19,502 36 30,920
Services =0
Other Activities HfthZE# 86 629 5 720
12,029 22,742 2,369 37,140
Total Expenditure 2014 —E—-MFALH 21,776 24,819 2,403 48,998
Learning and Research Biii k%
Other Academic Services HAth B EBARTS 8,307 2,057 35 10,399
Institutional Support (Note 8.1) EAP B BN AR 75 (it 3E8.1)
Management and General BER—MREIR - 13 - 13
Premises and Related Expenses BFREEZH 529 2,522 1,911 4,962
Student and General Education B N—REE 10,165 22,815 50 33,030
Services =0
Other Activities HAh S 866 1,039 5 1,910
11,560 26,389 1,966 39,915
Total Expenditure 2013 —E-=FESH 19,867 28,446 2,001 50,314

The above analysis represents all expenditures incurred by the College as a whole. It does not include the subsidy
provided by Pommerenke Trust Fund to the University or other funds within the College.

LR ESREBRNZL - EFEEEERESHASNBREMESNED -



8.1 Analysis of Operating Expenses on Institutional Support

BRI RN EERZ 2

(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)  (A#&#TF7THIR)
2014 2013
Management and General ERN—HREIE
Legal and Other Professional Fees ERENEEEAER 13 13
Premises and Related Expenses BFREREZH
Minor Works ETRE 81 942
Repair and Renovation Works HAZRIZE TR 477 599
Government Rent and Rates E AR 193 139
Management Fees EEER 628 585
Property Insurance REEER 11 8
Others Hih 1,208 249
2,598 2,522
Student and General Education Services BER—RBEEH
Residence Halls Expenses BLESHEX 760 1,102
Scholarships, Bursaries and Prizes IREE PEENIEE 10,856 11,908
Student Exchange Programme BARIRETE 42 43
Student Financial Aids B HEER) 564 593
Student Development Programme BERERE 2,757 3,877
Others Hith 4,523 5,292
19,502 22,815
Other Activities HAhE 629 1,039
22,742 26,389




10.

OPERATING LEASE RECEIVABLE

(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

BREERE
(BT TTHIR)

The College’s total future minimum lease income receivable under non-cancellable operating leases are as follows:

RETUIRERNELETHE - SRt HRBENSRERSRAREINMOT -

2014 2013
Within 1 year —FR 2,097 2,149
After 1 year but within 2 years —FEMER - 259
2,097 2,408

The College is the lessor in respect of a number of properties held under operating leases. The leases typically last
for an initial period of 1 to 2 years, with an option to renew the lease under which all terms are negotiable. None of

these leases includes contingent rentals.

FERRESHEEA TR —EMRNEAA - —REEFENTF—ERNE - EEER - AR RERRER

BT o ELEEERMNEHEE "HHHEE, -

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

Investment properties originate from a land gift
at Siu Tao Fung Shan, Shatin from Reverend and
Mrs. Pommerenke to the College in 1970 (see also
Note 16). The College subsequently entered into an
agreement with a developer under which it agreed
to exchange its interest in the land for 36 flats and
57 carparking spaces in the completed development
together with a proportion of certain proceeds from the
development. Since completion of the development
in 1996, the College has been holding the exchanged
flats/carparking spaces for renting purpose. The above
exchanged properties are classified as investment
properties and stated at zero cost in the Balance Sheet.
Starting from 2006/2007, the College has been selling
part of the properties.

For disclosure purpose, the College’s investment
properties were revalued at HK$147.8 million (2013:
HK$156.6 million) as at 30 June 2014. The valuations
were carried out by an independent valuer, CBRE HK
Limited, who has recent experience in the location
and category of property being valued. Such fair value
measurement of the College’s investment properties
falls under Level 3 of the three-level fair value hierarchy
as defined in HKFRS 13 Fair Value Measurement, as
it uses significant unobservable inputs. The valuation
methodology for 2014 remains the same as the prior
year. The management of the College has discussion
with the valuer on the valuation assumptions and
valuation results when the valuation is performed at
each annual reporting date.

10.
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1.

FIXED ASSETS EE&E

(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)  (AE#TFTHIR)
Equipment,
Furniture,
Fixtures Art
Buildings and Fittings Collections Total
EE =fEHmE  BE A
P&
Cost BANE
At 1 July 2012 “E—-"FtH—H 63,872 5,966 1,017 70,855
Additions 1Ehn 10,571 142 248 10,961
Disposals HeE - (345) - (345)
At 30 June 2013 =% 74,443 5,763 1,265 81,471
ARBE=1TBH%48
Accumulated Depreciation ZEiHFE
At 1 July 2012 —=——F+tH8—H 1,038 4,388 - 5,426
Charge for the Year TEEIRE 1,569 432 - 2,001
Written Back on Disposal HEREIR - (345) - (345)
At 30 June 2013 _F—=F 2,607 4,475 - 7,082
ABE=1TB%48
Net Book Value at —B-=FxA=1+H 71,836 1,288 1,265 74,389
30 June 2013 IREEE
Cost RANME
At 1 July 2013 —F-=%tA—H 74,443 5,763 1,265 81,471
Additions 1 785 1,704 - 2,489
Disposals HE - (537) - (537)
Written Off HeH (1,590) - - (1,590)
At 30 June 2014 —F—MmF 73,638 6,930 1,265 81,833
NA=1TH&R%
Accumulated Depreciation ZBiHTE
At 1 July 2013 —_F—=%FtH—H 2,607 4,475 - 7,082
Charge for the Year REEIRE 1,703 700 - 2,403
Written Back on Disposal HEREIR - (165) - (165)
At 30 June 2014 —T—MF 4,310 5,010 - 9,320
ARBE=1TBH%48
Net Book Value at —®'-mERA=1H 69,328 1,920 1,265 72,513
30 June 2014 IREFME - - -




12.

INVESTMENTS  1&8&

(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars) (AT ITHIR)
2014 2013
Non-Current Investments JERENIRE
Held-to-maturity Debt Securities FEEEIH B ERESE
at Amortised Cost RIgHEm A
Unlisted LT - 14,143
Listed L 17,486 -
17,486 14,143
Available-for-sale Securities ot ERES
Equity Securities Listed In Hong Kong, TEEE LIRS
at Fair Value BRnEE 23,050 20,848
40,536 34,991
Current Investments mEnsE
Held-to-maturity Debt Securities FEEEIH B ERESE
Amount Matured within One Year —FREIHA
at Amortised Cost RIgHEm A
Unlisted JELET 14,042 15,004
Listed 3] - 23,332
14,042 38,336
Trading Securities oE&ERE
Equity Securities BAES
Listed, at Fair Value i BoOREE
in Hong Kong &8 114,892 125,743
outside Hong Kong HEMI 5,610 4,784
120,502 130,527
_134.544  _168.863
Total Investments kA= _175.080  _203.854



13.

14.

AMOUNT DUE FROM THE CHINESE UNIVERSITY 13. BINEEPCKEIRIE - BINIRRR « T AFEMFRIE

OF HONG KONG, ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE,
DEPOSITS AND PAYMENTS IN ADVANCE

The outstanding balance with CUHK is unsecured BT KRB RIRR B AN B R EEEEE
and has no fixed repayment terms. All of the 1544 - FhEFEYIRTR ~ 18T N FE(TFIETERIE—FER
accounts receivable, deposits and payments in o EEERAESZH -

advance are expected to be recovered or recognised
as expenses within one year.

CASH AND TIME DEPOSITS  RERIRITEHAER

(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars) (I #E#F5T5I7R)

2014 2013
Cash at Banks and Other Financial Institutions SRIT M E AN TSRS 2,844 1,820
and in Hand EFREIRE
Time Deposits TEHIEM 702,383 668,351
Cash and Time Deposits in the BEABERAZIREN 705,227 670,171
Balance Sheet RITEHER
Less: Time Deposits with Original Maturity i FRHBE=ERZ (702,383) (663,951)
over Three Months EHEM
Cash and Cash Equivalents in the Cash Flow RERERAZIRENR 2,844 6,220
Statement REEEY
Cash and time deposits included the following amounts denominated in foreign currency:
RENRITEREREETIIUIMESEMAIEEE -
(Expressed in thousands) (F7T5m)
2014 2013
Renminbi RMB AREE 168,660 154,471
United States Dollars usbD ETT 23,891 24,007



15.

16.

CREDITORS AND DEPOSITS

All creditors and deposits are expected to be settled
or recognised as income within one year.

NATURE AND PURPOSE OF FUNDS

Pommerenke Trust Fund

The Pommerenke Trust Fund originates from a gift
of land donated in 1970 to the Chung Chi College by
the Reverend Herbert Henry Pommerenke and Mrs.
Jean Macpherson Pommerenke in commemoration
of Doctor Stewart and Julia Kunkle. The land gift
was outside the precincts of the University and, since
1976 and in accordance with The Chinese University
of Hong Kong Ordinance, has been vested in the
Board of Trustees of Chung Chi College on the same
trusts and subject to the same terms and conditions
on which the land gift was then held.

Endowment Trust Funds

Endowment Trust Funds represent donations
received by the College, usually with the stipulation
from the donors that the principal amounts should
remain intact in perpetuity or for a defined time
period for specific purposes.

College Head’s Discretionary Trust Fund

College Head'’s Discretionary Trust Fund originates
from donations, designated for supporting
educational programmes and other worthy activities
as determined by the Head of the College.

College Development Trust Fund

College Development Trust Fund is financed by
donations and subsidies, for use in programmes and
activities which are essential for the development of
students and the College as a whole.

Student Welfare Trust Fund

Student Welfare Trust Fund is financed by donations
and investment income, designated for student
welfare and bursary purposes.
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17.

Divinity School Fund

Divinity School Fund is financed by donations,
investment income and reserves generated from
self-financed programmes, with designated purpose
in carrying out theology education, research and
related activities.

Investment Revaluation Reserve

Investment Revaluation Reserve comprises the
cumulative net change in the fair value of available-
for-sale equity securities held at the balance sheet
date and is dealt with in accordance with the
accounting policies in note 2.3(iii).

Capital Fund

Capital Fund represents the balance of net book
value of the Fixed Assets.

CAPITAL MANAGEMENT

The College is a not-for-profit organisation and
forms part of The Chinese University of Hong Kong.
It aims to provide higher education in accordance
with Christian traditions, using the Chinese language
as the primary medium of instruction. It seeks to
promote Christian faith, learning and research.
The College defines capital as including various
general and restricted funds balances. The
various funds represent the unspent balance of
donations, grants and income. These funds are
managed in accordance with the College’s financial
management procedures and the relevant funding
conditions, where applicable. The College’s primary
objective when managing capital is to safeguard the
College’s ability to continue as a going concern and
to maintain a strong financial base to support the
development of the College. To achieve the above
capital management objective, the College follows
guidelines on investment and financial management
as set out in note 18.

There has been no change in the College’s capital
management practices as compared to prior year.
The College is not subject to any externally imposed
capital requirement.

17.
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18.

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS AND RISK
MANAGEMENT

The College’s financial instruments mainly include
student loans, accounts receivable, bank deposits,
unit trust cash fund, investments in equity securities
and debt securities, which are exposed to credit,
foreign currency, interest rate and equity price
risks. The risks on financial assets are controlled
in accordance with the investment guidelines
approved by the Finance Committee under the
College’s Board of Trustees. This is achieved
through diversified asset allocation, rules governing
the selection and credit limits of investment
counterparties with reference to their credit ratings
and financial strength. The Finance Committee
reviews investment strategies and performance
periodically to ensure that the investment objectives
and performance targets are met. A sub-committee
under the Finance Committee meets regularly to
manage and monitor risk exposures associated
with respective financial assets to ensure that
appropriate measures are implemented on a timely
and effective manner.

(i) Credit Risk

The College’s investment guidelines control the
credit risk on bank deposits and debt securities
by limiting the counterparties to banks and
companies with high credit-ratings assigned
by international credit-ratings agencies. The
College has no significant concentration of
credit risk, with exposure spread over large
number of counterparties. Credit risk associated
with student loans and accounts receivable is
immaterial to the College and all doubtful
receivables are adequately provided for. The
maximum exposure to credit risk is represented
by the carrying amount of each financial asset
in the Balance Sheet.

18.
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(ii) Foreign Currency Risk

The functional currency of the College is the
Hong Kong dollar. The College is exposed
to currency risk primarily arising from bank
deposits and investments that are denominated
in United States dollars (USD) and Renminbi
(RMB). Those assets and liabilities denominated
in currencies other than HKD, USD and RMB
are not material.

About 23% of the College’s financial assets
(including cash, bank deposits with banks,
debt, equity securities and investments) are
denominated in USD, but it is considered that
the risk of movement in exchange rate between
the HKD and the USD is insignificant as the
HKD is currently pegged to the USD under
the linked exchange rate system adopted by
the Government of the Hong Kong Special
Administrative Region.

The following table shows the amounts of
financial assets (including cash, bank deposits
with banks, debt and investments) denominated
in various currencies at the balance sheet date:

(i) SMERPER

RERFHE AN AET - AERAEHENI
WEREEREETAARKNERRIEE - &
neEERSEMUIEE « 2T RARSEEN
SELFA -

FERBEURTREEEBENEREEANIG
ETMEERENESAIC—+= (B2ERE - 71
RIBTER - BB - REMRE) - EGaFEE
BT E AT B AT B 178 B B R TR B B FE R
ET  rBEREEER/RTHBBEREL
EBEFERK -

RF—-BRIHEERRRANSEEBREES
BAOEMEECEE (BERE - FHRRIRITHNE
M EBRMRE) ¢

2014 2013
Amount % of total Amount % of total
value of value of
financial financial
assets assets
=8 LHAERRE bt LARERE
Currency &g EHESE ENEaILL
HKD s 461,360 52 464,397 53
usD ESIn 202,647 23 209,525 24
RMB AR 210,690 24 195,189 22
Others Hith 5,610 1 4,914 1
100 100

880,307

874,025




About 24% of the College’s financial assets
are denominated in RMB, which is expected to
appreciate in the long run. As the percentages of
financial assets denominated in currencies other
than HKD, USD and RMB to the total financial
assets of the College was 1% as at 30 June
2014 (2013: 1%), exposure to foreign currency
risk is not significant.

(iii) Interest Rate Risk

The College has exposure to interest rate risk
through the impact of the rate changes on
interest bearing financial assets, including bank
deposits. The College manages exposure to
interest rate risk through spreading fixed-rate
interest bearing financial assets into different
tenures.

As at 30 June 2014, itis estimated that a general
increase/decrease of 100 basis points in bank
deposit interest rate, with all other variable held
constant, would increase/decrease the College’s
surplus for the year and the College’s net assets
at the balance sheet date by approximately
HK$7.1 million (2013: decreaselincrease the
College’s deficit for the year and increase/
decrease the net assets at the balance sheet
date by approximately HK$6.7 million). This
analysis has been determined assuming that
the change in interest rates had occurred at the
balance sheet date and had been applied to the
exposure to interest rate risk for bank deposits
in existence at that date.

(iv) Equity Price Risk

The College is exposed to equity price risk arising
primarily from equity investments classified as
trading securities and available-for-sale equity
securities (see note 12). The majority of these
investments are blue chip shares listed on the
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong and are included
in the Hang Seng Index. These investments
have been chosen based on their long term
growth potential. College management monitors
regularly the performance of the investments
to ensure its suitability as an investment for the
College.
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Based on their carrying amounts at 30 June 2014,
it is estimated that a 10% increase/decrease in
the fair values of the equity investments, with all
other variables held constant, would increase/
decrease the College’s surplus for the year by
approximately HK$12.05 million (2013: increase/
decrease the College’s surplus for the year by
approximately HK$13.05 million) and increase/
decrease the College’s net assets at the balance
sheet date by approximately HK$14.36 million
(2013: HK$15.14 million).

(v) Fair Value Measurement

(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

(i) Financial assets and liabilities measured at
fair value and Fair value hierarchy

The following table presents the fair value
of the College’s financial instruments
measured at the end of the reporting period
on a recurring basis, categorised into the
three-level fair value hierarchy as defined in
HKFRS 13, Fair value measurement. The
level into which a fair value measurement is
classified is determined with reference to the
observability and significance of the inputs
used in the valuation technique as follows:

* Level 1 valuations: Fair value measured
using only Level 1 inputs i.e. unadjusted
quoted prices in active markets for
identical assets or liabilities at the
measurement date

* Level 2 valuations: Fair value measured
using Level 2 inputs i.e. observable
inputs which fail to meet Level 1, and
not using significant unobservable
inputs. Unobservable inputs are inputs
for which market data are not availiable

* Level 3 valuations: Fair value measured
using significant unobservable inputs
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19.

30 June 2014 30 June 2013

Assets Subject to
Recurring Fair DisHEAREE

HBNEE Fair Value Level Fair Value Level
Value Measurements H AfEE BEEER AhEE BEELR
Available-for-sale ol SRR
Equity Securities
- Listed -k 23,050 1 20,848 1
Trading Securities U EEES 120,502 1 130,527 1
(if) Fair value of financial assets and liabilities (i) FURAEBEFIRNIEESERAE
carried at other than fair value
The carrying amounts of the College’s RIB—=FEA"FT—NEXA=1H 2k
financial instruments carried at cost or TUAREBEIIRNGTISEENEBZIRE
amortised cost are not materially different SHEHENABEELESAHE - SEINIE
from their fair values as at 30 June 2013 BELERAREBEMNT
and 2014 for which their carrying amounts
and fair value and the level of fair value
hierarchy are disclosed below:
30 June 2014 30 June 2013
Carrying Carrying
Amounts Fair Value Level Amounts Fair Value Level
IREEE NREE RAEEBR IREEE R[REE REEBR
Held-to-maturity Debt 17,486 17,729 1 23,332 23,463 1
Securities
FREAMH 14,042 14,043 2 29,147 29,421 2
BE#5=
There are no Level 3 measurements of financial REMBREENARREAS=SNGNFELR
assets and liabilities. During the years ended 30 BE #SIETS—NUERTSFS—=FxH=1H
June 2014 and 2013, there were no transfers IHFER  BREENBEBNEIESEEEE—R
between Level 1 and Level 2, or transfers into B AR RE  EASREEE=R - B8
or out of Level 3. The College’s policy is to B S 1 FE 3R B FESRTE SR S MR A 0 B (B 24
recognise transfers between levels of fair value N
WA ERIEERS -

hierarchy as at the end of the reporting period
in which they occur.

CAPITAL COMMITMENTS B EE
(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars) (AT THIR)

Capital commitments outstanding at 30 June 2014, not provided for in the financial statements, were as follows:

REF—MFAA=TH  REMBRRBHERIESREINMOT :

2014 2013
Contracted for [=%::¢9] 993 -
Authorised but not Contracted for EIBBENREL 14,753 10,000

15,746 10,000



20. OPERATING LEASE COMMITMENTS

21,

22.

(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

WETRERIE
(BT TTHIT)

At 30 June 2014, the total of future minimum lease payment under non-cancellable operating leases is as follows:

REF—MOFEAB=1H @ REFURRNEEEE - SREINSEAERBEHITNOT -

2014 2013
Within one year —FR 253 276
Two to five years —EREF 82 44

335 320

Operating lease charges for the year rFEERKEHEER 526 466
RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 21. BEEARS
Due to the not-for-profit nature of the College and HRTERIEIFETNE - HREGHREZKRETE -
the composition of the Board of Trustees (being AHBENMAHE  SEBRINGEEIREGHE
drawn from private, public organisations and EHRRETEER S RSt s s EASE D AS]
local churches), the College has received from HIIEER o IEARHIEERINES ¢ DR BT I B
time to time donations from its Trustee members, Bl A R R Rk E G B R SR 2 R AR -
key management and companies controlled or
significantly influenced by them. The receipts of
such donations have all been individually reported
to and approved in accordance with the financial
regulations of The Chinese University of Hong Kong
(the “University”) by the Board of Trustees and the
University Council.
All transactions relating to the purchases of ERERMEREFEBRED EERRE - MAERE
goods and services and capital projects involving EELTY Al AERKEE R ETNRERN
organisations in which a member of the Board of HIBERS  BELEKKRS & H2REABITHE
Trustees may have an interest are conducted during B R AR Bt 1T -
the normal course of business and in accordance
with the University’s financial regulations and normal
procurement procedures.
POSSIBLE IMPACT OF AMENDMENTS, NEW 22, R&E-—F-NEAA=+HALFESHHRCHEMG

STANDARDS AND INTERPRETATIONS ISSUED
BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE FOR THE YEAR
ENDED 30 JUNE 2014

Up to the date of issue of these financial statements,
the HKICPA has issued a number of amendments,
new standards and interpretations which are not yet
effective for the year ended 30 June 2014 and which
have not been adopted in these financial statements.
These include the following which may be relevant

to the College.
Effective for Accounting

Periods Beginning
On or After
1 January 2018

HKFRS 9 Financial
Instruments

The College is in the process of making an
assessment of what the impact of these amendments,
new standards and new interpretations which is
expected to be in the period of initial application.
So far it has concluded that the adoption of them is
unlikely to have a significant impact on the College’s
results of operations and financial position.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
B RS

TO THE BOARD OF TRUSTEES OF NEW ASIA COLLE

THE CHINESE UNIVERSITY OF HONG KONG
BEEPNABHEERRER

We have audited the financial statements of the Trustees of
New Asia College (the “College”) set out on pages 2 to 22,
which comprise the balance sheet as at 30 June 2014, and
the statement of comprehensive income and expenditure, the
statement of changes in funds and the cash flow statement for
the year then ended, and a summary of significant accounting
policies and other explanatory information.

THE BOARD OF TRUSTEES’ RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Board of Trustees is responsible for the preparation of
financial statements that give a true and fair view in accordance
with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards issued by the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and for such
internal control as the Board of Trustees determine is necessary
to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITY

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial
statements based on our audit. This report is made solely to
you, as a body, in accordance with Statue 12(7) of The Chinese
University of Hong Kong Ordinance (Cap. 1109), and for no other
purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards or accept
liability to any other person for the contents of this report.

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong
Standards on Auditing issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants. Those standards require that we
comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit
to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial
statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence
about the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements.
The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgement,
including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of
the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making
those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control
relevant to the entity’s preparation of the financial statements that
give a true and fair view in order to design audit procedures that
are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal
control. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of
accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates made by the Board of Trustees, as well as evaluating
the overall presentation of the financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient
and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

OPINION

In our opinion, the financial statements give a true and fair view
of the state of affairs of the College as at 30 June 2014 and of
its surplus and cash flows for the year then ended in accordance
with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards.

KPMG

Certified Public Accountants
8th Floor, Prince’s Building
10 Chater Road

Central, Hong Kong

16 October 2014
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THE TRUSTEES OF NEW ASIA COLLEG
THE CHINESE UNIVERSITY OF HONG K
BEREPNABHOERKRER
STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INC
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2014

HEE_T-NFRA=THLFE

(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars) (A&t HlR)

Note 2014 2013
FisE
Income KA
Interest and Investment Income M E NI E WS 3 3,869 4,279
Donations and Benefactions LY SEEEAN 4 29,759 26,050
Other Income EHAA 95 163
33,723 30,492
Expenditure 2 5
Learning and Research Bilf &%
Instruction and Research BERRR 555 547
Other Academic Services HAth# E AR5 180 92
Institutional Support EPeEhEnARE
Premises and Related Expenses EFAERERH 2,114 2,242
Student and General Education Services BER—MBAEEH 7,383 6,780
Other Activities HfthZ7#% 866 511
11,098 10,172
Surplus and Total Comprehensive TEERRE 22,625 20,320
Income for the Year AEES TS -

The notes set out on pages 7 to 22 form an integral part of these financial statements.

NERELEET+ -BZHEREMBRRC 5D -
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THE TRUSTEES OF NEW ASIA COLLEGE
THE CHINESE UNIVERSITY OF HONG KON
BRPXABHEERRET

BALANCE SHEET ZE&@ER

AS AT 30 JUNE 2014

—F-mFAASTH

(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars) (JAB#TFTHlR)

Note 2014 2013
FftEE
Non-Current Assets EREEE

Fixed Assets BEEE 7 787 567
Investments & 8 2,000 3,453
Other Receivables HithFEUWFRIE 500 500
3,287 4,520

Current Assets RENEE
Investments B’E 8 40,794 28,333
Accounts Receivable and Prepayments FEWIIRFA A FET FRIE 9 4,930 5,907
Cash at Bank and Time Deposits RITMEEER 10 75,217 62,757
120,941 96,997

Current Liabilities mENaE
Accounts Payable and Accruals FEFTIRFR N FERTE R 11 4,608 4,505
Provision for Employee Benefits EEEF S 14 31
4,622 4,536
Net Current Assets mENEERH 116,319 92,461
NET ASSETS BEFE 119,606 96,981
Restricted Funds EREX 116,780 92,983
Other Funds HtnBE 2,826 3,998

TOTAL FUNDS BExam 119,606 96,981

Approved and authorised for issue by the Board of Trustees on 16 October 2014
HEERRESN-_FT—NFE+A+NBERSEERILEIFRE

Charles Y. W. Leung #ifg
Chairman, ¥ Ji
Board of Trustees f& i &r

Wong Man Yin £ &

Member, #HE &)k B
Board of Trustees F#H &

The notes set out on pages 7 to 22 form an integral part of these financial statements.
SIEREtEE-+-HZMERAMIERERZ 8 -
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THE TRUSTEES OF NEW ASIA COLLEG
THE CHINESE UNIVERSITY OF HONG K
BRAPXABHEERRERT

STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN FUNDS &
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2014

BEE_T-NFERA=THLFE

(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars) (A&t HlR)

Restricted Funds

SEHESE
(Note PfizE6)
Donations
Capital and Endowment

Fund Benefactions Fund Total

EEES BREMER BAXES L

Balance at 1 July 2012 —E—-—FtA—BH%&8% 567 64,741 8,032 73,340

Surplus and total comprehensive EERBEBNEEZEILE - 11,377 8,266 19,643
Income for the year

Inter-fund Transfers BEEBZER - (92) 92 -

Balance at 30 June 2013 —E-=FXA=1TRHR%8% 567 76,026 16,390 92,983

Balance at 1 July 2013 —E-=FtHA—H&8 567 76,026 16,390 92,983

Surplus and total comprehensive FERBRNFEZE L (10) 20,774 2,523 23,287
Income for the year

Inter-fund Transfers EEREZ@EiR 230 (3,178) 3,458 510

Balance at 30 June 2014 —E—-MFEAA=1TREAR 787 93,622 22,371 116,780

The notes set out on pages 7 to 22 form an integral part of these financial statements.

SIERFELtEE—+"BZMEREMBRRC—557 -
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THE TRUSTEES OF NEW ASIA COLLEGE
THE CHINESE UNIVERSITY OF HONG KONG
BRPXABHEERRET

STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN FUNDS (CON
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2014

HE_FT-NFRA=THLFE

(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars) (IA&#&F7T5lR)

Other Funds

HitnZE
(Note FtzE6)

Donations General
and Endowment Total
Benefactions Fund Reserves Total Funds
BELER —MRErESE [RieE way EEES

Balance at 1 July 2012 —E-—FtR—H#&8% 1,556 1,278 487 3,321 76,661
Surplus and total FERBBMFEZEIE 646 - 31 677 20,320
comprehensive

Income for the year

Balance at 30 June 2013 =Z—=F5B=1H%&6% 2,202 1,278 518 3,998 96,981

Balance at 1 July 2013 —E-=FtHA—H&K 2,202 1,278 518 3,998 96,981

(Deficit)/Surplus and total FE(BE)BRBRFEERH (698) - 36 (662) 22,625
comprehensive Wk

Income for the year

Inter-fund Transfers EHER @R (510) - - (510) -

Balance at 30 June 2014 —ZF—MNEAXB=1H&R 994 1,278 554 2,826 119,606

The notes set out on pages 7 to 22 form an integral part of these financial statements.

SIERE tEE-+ A ZMEREHBERRC BT -
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THE TRUSTEES OF NEW ASIA COLLEGE
THE CHINESE UNIVERSITY OF HONG KONG
BREPNABHOERKRER

CASH FLOW STATEMENT BRERER

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2014

BEE_T-NFRA=THLFE

(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars) (JA&#¥FTHlR)

Note 2014 2013
PifEE
Operating Activities e iEe
Surplus for the year REERER 22,625 20,320
Adjustments for: HEEIER:
Depreciation e 10 -
Interest Income FEUTA (789) (680)
Dividend Income BEIA (1,690) (1,041)
Net Realised and Unrealised Gain BEZEEIR MR EIRMT S (1,390) (2,558)
on Investments
Operating Surplus before Changes in EELETEERIZKEERER 18,766 16,041
Working Capital
Decrease/(Increase) in Accounts Receivable FEWTIR A A FEAT TR RZ iR 2 (38 40) 1,028 (3,307)
and Prepayments
Increase in Accounts Payable FEFTIRFA M FER & F 2 18 1N 103 134
and Accruals
(Decrease)/Increase in Provision for & S a7 2 fim iz (R 2 A& 0 (17) 19
Employee Benefits
Net Cash Generated from Operating Activities REETHEERHAEEN 19,880 12,887
Investing Activities 19& RS
Decrease/(Increase) in Time Deposits with ERHREE =18 BT 2,054 (17,304)
Original Maturity over Three Months ERRZiRA (35 10)
Payment for Purchase of Fixed Assets BREEEE (230) -
Payment for Purchase of Investments BRRE (11,237) (8,257)
Interest Received ElFE 738 751
Dividend Received EREE 1,485 850
Proceeds from Redemption of Debt Securities WBBITABRESZHIE 1,875 3,507
by Issuer
Net Cash Used in Investing ARSI TR ERSR (5,315) (20,453)
Activities
Net Increase/(Decrease) in Cash and MERREEEY 2B/ (GRES) 14,565 (7,566)
Cash Equivalents
Cash and Cash Equivalents - Beginning of Year RERAEZEY-EVEH 22,349 29,915
Cash and Cash Equivalents - End of Year RERBREEEY-FRER 10

The notes set out on pages 7 to 22 form an integral part of these financial statements.

SIERFELtEE-+"BZMEREMBRERC 57 -
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THE TRUSTEES OF NEW ASIA COLLEGE
THE CHINESE UNIVERSITY OF HONG KONG
BRAPXABHEERKRED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FAISERRMIRE

BASIS OF PREPARATION

The financial statements of The Trustees of New
Asia College (the “College”) reflect the state of
affairs of all the funds of the College at 30 June
2014 and the College’s results and cash flows for
the year then ended. The assets of the College
are vested in The Board of Trustees of the College,
under the provisions of The Chinese University of
Hong Kong Ordinance.

These financial statements have been prepared
in accordance with all applicable Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”) (which
collective term includes all applicable individual
Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards, Hong
Kong Accounting Standards (“HKASs”) and
Interpretations) issued by the Hong Kong Institute
of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA”) and
accounting principles generally accepted in Hong
Kong.

The HKICPA has issued a number of new HKFRSs
and amendments to HKFRSs that are first effective
for the current accounting period of the College. Of
these, “HKFRS 13, Fair value measurement” is the
development relevant to the College’s Financial
Statements.

HKFRS 13 replaces existing guidance in individual
HKFRSs with a single source of fair value
measurement guidance. HKFRS 13 also contains
extensive disclosure requirements about fair value
measurements for both financial instruments and
non-financial instruments. To the extent that the
requirements are applicable to the College, the
College has provided those disclosures in note
13(e).

The College has not applied any new standard or
interpretation that is not yet effective for the current
accounting period (see note 15).

The measurement basis used in the preparation of
the financial statements is the historical cost basis
except otherwise stated in the accounting policies
set out below.

The preparation of financial statements in conformity
with HKFRSs requires management to make
judgements, estimates and assumptions that affect
the application of policies and reported amounts
of assets, liabilities, income and expenses. The
estimates and associated assumptions are based
on historical experience and various other factors
that are believed to be reasonable under the
circumstances, the results of which form the basis
of making the judgements about carrying values of
assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent
from other sources. Actual results may differ from
these estimates.

—_—
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The estimates and underlying assumptions are
reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to
accounting estimates are recognised in the period
in which the estimate is revised if the revision affects
only that period, or in the period of the revision and
future periods if the revision affects both current and
future periods.

A summary of the significant accounting policies
adopted by the College is set out below.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Fixed Assets

Fixed Assets, other than the art collection, are
stated in the balance sheet at cost less accumulated
depreciation and impairment losses, if any.

The art collection is stated at cost less impairment
losses, if any. The residual value of the art collection
is expected to be equal to or greater than the
carrying amount, therefore the art collection is not
depreciated.

The cost of an asset comprises its purchase price
and any directly attributable costs of bringing the
asset to its working condition and location for its
intended use. Where it can be clearly demonstrated
that subsequent expenditure on an asset has
resulted in an increase in its future economic benefit,
such expenditure is capitalised as an additional cost
of that asset.

Depreciation is calculated to write off the cost of fixed
assets, less their estimated residual value, if any,
using the straight line method over their estimated
useful lives as follows:

3-5years
3 years

Furniture and Equipment
Computer Equipment

Both the useful life of an asset and its residual value,
if any, are reviewed annually.

Gains or losses on disposal or retirement of a fixed
asset are determined as the difference between
the net proceeds and the carrying amount of the
fixed asset and are recognised in the Statement
of Comprehensive Income and Expenditure on the
date of retirement or disposal.
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(b)

Impairment of Fixed Assets

An impairment loss is recognised to the extent
that the carrying amount of an asset, or the cash-
generating unit to which it belongs, is more than its
recoverable amount. The recoverable amount of
an asset, or of the cash-generating unit to which it
belongs, is the greater of its fair value less costs to
sell and value in use. In assessing value in use,
the estimated future cash flows are discounted to
their present value using a pre-tax discount rate
that reflects current market assessments of the time
value of money and the risks specific to the assets.
An impairment loss is reversed if there has been a
favourable change in estimates used to determine
the recoverable amount.

Investments

The College’s policies for investments in securities
are as follows:

(i) Investments are recognised or derecognised
on the date the College commits to purchase/
sell the investments or they expire.

(i) Investments in securities held for trading are
initially stated at fair value plus transaction
cost. At each balance sheet date the fair
value is remeasured, with any resultant gain
or loss being recognised in the Statement of
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure.

(iii) Dated debt securities that the College has the
positive ability and intention to hold to maturity
are classified as held-to-maturity securities.
Held-to-maturity securities are initially stated at
fair value plus transaction costs. Subsequently,
they are stated in the balance sheet at
amortised cost less impairment loss.

Impairment loss for held-to-maturity debt
securities is measured as the difference
between the asset’s carrying amount and the
present value of estimated future cash flows,
discounted at the financial asset’s original
effective interest rate (i.e. the effective interest
rate computed at initial recognition of these
assets).

Z\
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(d)

(e)

If in a subsequent period the amount of an
impairment loss decreases and the decrease
can be linked objectively to an event occurring
after the impairment loss was recognised,
the impairment loss is reversed through the
Statement of Comprehensive Income and
Expenditure. A reversal of an impairment
loss shall not result in the asset’s carrying
amount exceeding that which would have
been determined had no impairment loss been
recognised in prior years.

Cash and Cash Equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash at bank
and on hand, demand deposits with banks and
other financial institutions, and short-term, highly
liquid investments that are readily convertible into
known amounts of cash and which are subject to an
insignificant risk of changes in value, having been

within three months of maturity at acquisition.

Employee Benefits

(i) Salaries, paid annual leave, housing allowances
and the cost to the College of non-monetary
benefits are accrued in the year in which
the associated services are rendered by
employees of the College.

(ii) Contract-end gratuity is payable on completion
of a contract appointment of not less than two
years. The gratuity, together with the total
amount of the College’s contributions to a
particular retirement scheme, will add up to
10% of the appointee’s basic salary drawn
during the contract period.

(iii) Contribution to defined contribution retirement
plan are recognised as an expense in the
Statement of Comprehensive Income and
Expenditure as incurred.

(iv) Termination benefits are recognised at the
earlier of when the College can no longer
withdraw the offer of those benefits and when
it recognises restructuring costs involving the
payment of termination benefits.

Provisions and Contingent Liabilities

Provisions are recognised for liabilities of uncertain
timing or amount when the College has a legal or
constructive obligation arising as a result of a past
event, it is probable that an outflow of economic
benefits will be required to settle the obligation and
a reliable estimate can be made. Where the time
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value of money is material, provisions are stated
at the present value of the expenditure expected
to settle the obligation.

Where it is not probable that an outflow of economic
benefits will be required, or the amount cannot be
estimated reliably, the obligation is disclosed as a
contingent liability, unless the probability of outflow
of economic benefits is remote. Possible obligation,
whose existence will only be confirmed by the
occurence or non-occurence of one or more future
events, are also disclosed as contingent liabilities
unless the probability of outflow of economic benefit
is remote.

Income Recognition

Provided it is probable that the economic benefits will
flow to the College and the income and expenditure,
if applicable, can be measured reliably, income is
recognised in the Statement of Comprehensive
Income and Expenditure as follows:

(i) Interest and Investment Income

Interest income is recognised as it accrues
using the effective interest method. Investment
income is recognised in the Statement of Com-
prehensive Income and Expenditure for the
changes in fair value of trading securities upon
re-measurement at each balance sheet date.

(i)  Dividend Income

Dividend income from listed securities is
recognised when the share price of the
investment goes ex-dividend.

(i) Donations and Benefactions

Donations and benefactions are recognised
in the Statement of Comprehensive Income
and Expenditure when the College becomes
entitled to the donations and benefactions and
it is probable that they will be received, which
is generally receipt of cash.
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(h)

Related Parties

(i) A person, or a close member of that person’s
family, is related to the College if that person:

(ii)

(1
(I
()

has control or joint control over the
College;

has significant influence over the College;
or

is a member of the key management
personnel of the College or the College’s
parent.

An entity is related to the College if any of the
following conditions applies:

0

(In

()

(V)

V)

(VD)

(Vi)

The entity and the College are members
of the same group (which means that
each parent, subsidiary and fellow
subsidiary is related to the others).

One entity is an associate or joint venture
of the other entity (or an associate or joint
venture of a member of a group of which
the other entity is a member).

Both entities are joint ventures of the
same third party.

One entity is a joint venture of a third
entity and the other entity is an associate
of the third entity.

The entity is a post-employment benefit
plan for the benefit of employees of either
the College or an entity related to the
College.

The entity is controlled or jointly controlled
by a person identified in (i).

Aperson identified in (i)(I) has significant
influence over the entity or is a member
of the key management personnel of the
entity (or of a parent of the entity).

Close members of the family of a person are those
family members who may be expected to influence,
or be influenced by, that person in their dealings
with the entity.
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3. INTEREST AND INVESTMENT INCOME FIE R IR B S
(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars) (JA&#&TF5517R)
2014 2013
Bank Interest Income HRITHBWA 663 526
Interest Income from Debt Securities BRESNE
Overseas Listed =3 ity ) - 45
Listed in Hong Kong EEE LN 35 33
Unlisted L 91 76
Dividends from Listed Equity Securities EHESER 1,690 1,041
Net Realised and Unrealised Gain HithiE 5 2 BB R ARERN 1,390 2,558
on Investments MesiEEE

3,869 4,279



DONATIONS AND BENEFACTIONS

EELEYNEEA
(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars) (A#EYTFT5lR)

2014 2013
Scholarships, Prizes and Bursaries  $328F - BIEBE NiEE 2,303 7,802
Capital Projects HiZl|H 21,363 194
Others Hith 6,093 18,054
29,759 26,050
EXPENDITURE X%
(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars) (AT THIR)
2014 2013
Learning and Research : Bilf R -
Instruction and Research BEB LT
Conference Expenses FREA 518 505
Student Helpers B4 e 37 42
555 547
Other Academic Services EL{th AR
Visiting Scholars FAREA 180 92
Institutional Support : SRR
Premises and Related Expenses BFLRBEAXRH
Repairing and Maintenance RE N HEE 2,114 2,242
Student and General Education Services BYEN—RBEEE
Student Financial Aids/Scholarships BLMRER/REE 5,440 5,402
Student/Extra-curricular Activities BaERINESN 1,498 1,041
Staff Cost and Benefit BT AR 97 88
Student Helpers B4 anE 149 161
Miscellaneous HIEZ N 199 88
7,383 6,780
Other Activities HAh=EFE
Gifts and Souvenirs BRELZm 74 57
Tea Reception and Banquet/Entertainment EB/FE 488 319
Miscellaneous HIEZH 304 135
866 511
11,098 10,172




6. NATURE AND PURPOSE OF FUNDS

(i) RESTRICTED FUND
Capital Funds

Capital Funds represent the balance of net
book value of the Fixed Assets.

Donations and Benefactions

Donations and Benefactions represent funds
received by the College from the Donors which
are used to support Scholarships, Student
Activities and Other College development
activities.

Endowment Funds

Endowment Funds represent donations
received by the College, usually with the
stipulation from the donors that the principal
amounts should remain intact in perpetuity or for
a defined time period for specific purposes.

(i) OTHER FUNDS
Donations and Benefactions

Donations and Benefactions represent funds
received by the College from the Donors which
are used for general College development
activities.

General Endowment Fund

General Endowment Fund represents donations
received by the College. The principal amounts
remain intact and is mainly used for generate
interest and investment income.

Reserves

Reserves mainly represent interest and
investment income generated from General
Endowment Fund.
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7. FIXED ASSETS EIR&E

(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars) (AT TTHIR)
Furniture
Art and
Collection Equipment Equipment  Total
i  FERRHE SR FEL
Cost 3% =]
At 1 July 2012 and S —_FtBA—HB& 567 437 1,004
30 June 2013 —E-—=FA=1TH#&%
Accumulated Depreciation e
At 1 July 2012 and S —_FtBA—HB& - 437 437
30 June 2013 —E-—=FA=1TH#&%
Net Book Value at 30 June 2013 —F—=F;xA=1HIREFE 567 - 567
Cost 5% =]
At 1 July 2013 —S—=FtHB—BH#%&& 567 437 1,004
Additions #m 128 96 230
At 30 June 2014 “ES—NENBA=TR&R 695 533 1,234
Accumulated Depreciation e
At 1 July 2013 “F—=F+tH—B#%&8& - 437 437
Charge for the Year REFEEIRE - 9 10
At 30 June 2014 —T-NEA=1TH#&HR - 446 447
Net Book Value at 30 June 2014 —F—MFE; A=+ HIREFE 695 87 787



INVESTMENTS &&
(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars) (A#EH#TFIT5IR)

2014 2013
Held-to-maturity Debt Securities, FEEIIHERES
at amortised cost R AT
Listed in Hong Kong EEELTH 1,437 1,453
Unlisted L 2,000 3,896
3,437 5,349
Trading Securities, at fair value AEERES ' ROnEBEINTR
Equity Securities listed in Hong Kong EEE LRSS 39,357 26,437
Total investments BERE 42,794 31,786
Less: Current Investments RRENEE
Equity Securities listed in Hong Kong TS LIRS 39,357 26,437
Listed Debt Securities EhizEEESs 1,437 1,896
40,794 28,333

Non-current Investments IERBNIZE 2,000 3,453

The fair value of held-to-maturity debt securities which were listed in Hong Kong and unlisted were HK$1,429,397
(2013 HK$1,433,523) and HK$2,033,800 (2013 HK$3,928,306) respectively at 30 June 2014.

RITZ—MEA=1H @ T8 L - FE LHRIE LRGSR HEEESZANEEDRIRENE1,429,397
7T (2013: 781%1,433,56237T) AiE#82,033,8007T (2013: ##83,928,3067T) -

ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE AND PREPAYMENTS FEWIRFR & FA(TFRIE
(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars) (AT T5R)

2014 2013

Amount due from The Chinese University B E B X AEIRIE 3,759 4,685
of Hong Kong

Accounts Receivable FEMSTHRTR 181 130

Prepayments and Other Receivables FETRRIE K ELAth FEULER 990 1,092

4,930 5,907

Accounts receivable and prepayments are expected to be recoverable or recognised as expenditure within
one year.

FEUSTIRFR R TR FRIR TR I — F AU B SRR B3 -

Note: The outstanding balance with The Chinese University of Hong Kong is unsecured, interest free and
has no fixed repayment terms.

MizE: AEERAFEPIABERIKRD @ ZIEARBHEISEER - R BLBREEEERGE -



10.

1.

12.

CASH AT BANK AND TIME DEPOSITS RIT R BHIER

(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)  (MA#E¥TFT5lR)
2014 2013
Cash at Bank RITEMR 713 84
Time Deposits EHIFER 74,504 62,673
Cash at Bank and Time Deposits inthe  EEABBERANETR 75,217 62,757
Balance Sheet EHRTER
Less: Time Deposits with Original Maturity i&: ZFEEEE =18 BHEHE (38,303) (40,408)
over Three Months (22
Cash and Cash Equivalents in the Cash IRERERANIRE
Flow Statement MIREZEEY 36,914 22,349
Cash and time deposits included the following amounts denominated in foreign currency:
RE IR TEREREE TIIIMERE AT
(Expressed in thousands) (F7T5m)
2014 2013
Renminbi RMB AREE 4,551 2,914
United States Dollars usb EyH 1,364 1,351
ACCOUNTS PAYABLE AND ACCRUALS (TR R FERt E A
(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)  (LAB#EFIT5Im)
2014 2013
Accounts Payable FEfTHRFR 3,647 3,639
Receipt in Advance FEWEERIE 961 866
4,608 4,505
CAPITAL MANAGEMENT +=. BXEME

The College is a not-for-profit organisation and
forms part of The Chinese University of Hong Kong.
The objective of the College is to complement the
University in the provision of a balanced and holistic
education. The College defines capital as including
various general and restricted funds balances. The
various funds represent the unspent balance of
donations, grants and income. These funds are
managed in accordance with the College’s financial
management procedures and the relevant funding
conditions, where applicable. The College’s primary
objective when managing capital is to safeguard the
College’s ability to continue as a going concern and
to maintain a strong financial base to support the
development of the College. To achieve the above
capital management objective, the College follows
guidelines on investment and financial management
as set out in note 13.

There has been no change in the College’s capital
management practices as compared to prior year.
The College is not subject to any externally imposed
capital requirement.
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13.

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS AND RISK
MANAGEMENT

The College’s financial instruments mainly include
bank deposits, debt securities and equity securities,
which are exposed to credit, interest rate, currency
and equity price risks. The risks on financial assets
are controlled in accordance with the investment
guidelines approved by the Investment Sub-
committee under the College’s Board of Trustees.
This is achieved through diversified asset allocation,
rules governing the selection and credit limits of
investment counterparties with reference to their
credit ratings and financial strength. The Investment
Sub-committee reviews investment strategies
and performance periodically to ensure that the
investment objectives and performance targets
are met. The Investment Sub-committee meets
periodically to manage and monitor risk exposures
associated with respective financial assets to ensure
that appropriate measures are implemented on a
timely and effective manner.

Credit Risk

The College’s credit risk is primarily attributable
to the investments in debt securities and bank
deposits. Management has a credit policy in place
and exposures to these credit risks are monitored
on an ongoing basis. The College places deposits
with major financial institutions with good credit
ratings.

The maximum exposure to credit risk is represented
by the carrying amount of each financial asset in
the balance sheet.

Interest Rate Risk

The College is exposed to interest rate risk primarily
arising from its bank deposits due to fluctuations in
the prevailing levels of market interest rates.

As at 30 June 2014, it is estimated that a general
increase/decrease of 100 basis points in fixed
deposit interest rates, with all other variables held
constant, would have increased/decreased the
College’s surplus for the year by approximately
HK$745,000 (2013: HK$627,000) and increased/
decreased the College’s net assets at the balance
sheet date by approximately HK$745,000 (2013:
HK$627,000). This analysis has been determined
assuming that the change in interest rate had
occurred at the balance sheet date and had been
applied to the exposure to interest rate risk for
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bank deposits in existence at that date, with an
assumption that fixed term instruments which expire
during the next reporting period will be rolled over
at the expiry of that term at the new market rate.

Foreign Currency Risk

The functional currency of the College is the Hong
Kong dollar. The College is exposed to currency risk
primarily arising from bank deposits and investments
that are denominated in United States dollars
(USD). Those assets and liabilities denominated
in currencies other than HKD and USD are not
material.

About 9% of the College’s financial assets (including
cash, bank deposits with banks, debt, equity
securities and investments) are denominated in
USD, but it is considered that risk of movement
in exchange rate between the HKD and the USD
is insignificant as the HKD is currently pegged to
the USD under the linked exchange rate system
adopted by the Government of the Hong Kong
Special Administrative Region.

The following tables show the amounts of financial
assets (including cash, bank deposits with banks,
debt and investments) denominated in various
currencies at the balance sheet date:

A~ SIS R
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(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)  (AB¥ETFITHIR)
2014 2013
Amount % of total Amount % of total
value of value of
financial financial
assets assets
£ HHRERE £ LEEME
Currency £ig ENESL ENESH
HKD s 100,321 85 77,036 82
UsbD ESTH 10,568 9 10,476 11
RMB ARHE 7,122 6 7,031 7
118,011 100 94,543 100

About 7% of the College’s financial assets are
denominated in RMB, which is expected to
appreciate in the long run. As no financial assets
denominated in currencies other than HKD, USD
and RMB as at 30 June 2014 (2013: nil), exposure
to foreign currency risk is not significant.
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(d)

Equity Price Risk

The College is exposed to equity price risk arising
from investments in equity securities listed on the
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong (see note 8). These
investments have been chosen based on their longer
term growth potential and are monitored regularly
for performance against expectations. At 30 June
2014, it is estimated than an increase/decrease of
10% in these securities’ market prices with all other
variables held constant, would have increased/
decreased the College’s surplus for the year by
approximately HK$3,936,000 (2013: HK$2,643,000)
and increased/decreased the College’s net assets
at the balance sheet date by approximately
HK$3,936,000 (2013: HK$2,643,000).

Fair Values Measurement

(i) Financial assets and liabilities measured at fair
value

Fair value hierarchy

The following table presents the fair value of
the College’s financial instruments measured
at the end of the reporting period on a recurring
basis, categorised into the three-level fair value
hierarchy as defined in HKFRS 13, Fair value
measurement. The level into which a fair value
measurement is classified is determined with
reference to the observability and significance
of the inputs used in the valuation technique
as follows:

* Level 1 valuations: Fair value measured
using only Level 1 inputs i.e. unadjusted
quoted prices in active markets for identical
assets or liabilities at the measurement
date;

* Level 2 valuations: Fair value measured
using Level 2 inputs i.e. observable
inputs which fail to meet Level 1, and not
using significant unobservable inputs.
Unobservable inputs are inputs for which
market data are not available;

* Level 3 valuations: Fair value measured
using significant unobservable inputs.

T\

R EEERE
FEREHNEEERERREEE RS LHNR

S (RHiEs) - EEELRERENRARENER
Bh HREZIEHES  MEFRRRFTSTESE -
E-F-MOFEAA=1tHETSEREMNED 1@
Bt 0 MEMERERSE - FERNZRGSIEMN
BLPOBB=ZENT=B TR (ZF—=F: W&
BIEATEHE=Tr) LFEESSIBMEAEDH
BBE=EBNAT=BATR CF—=F : BBTEAX
+THRE=F) -

NREERE
(i) DREEIIRNEHEEERER

AREEE

RIEEBUBMEENE130% " DBEERE, -
AREBEEENRAIZRRAMGENSECTE
SMNERMRET - GERAWT

- B ARBEUE—RRINBERIE
IRt MR EER B EEERHED
RACTHBEMIRE ;

- BIlR DREBENSETRAINEEREE B
REERN S B —RAINTRRENBB R ERF
IRRINERHE - TUBRENBERETS
RBERMIENR

- ESR ARBEMFITREGHNERNE
REHH -



(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

Assets Subject to

30 June 2014

(UABEETFTIIR)

30 June 2013

Recurring Fair HEAREE Fair Value Level Fair Value Level
Value Measurements AENEE NhEE BEER NREE REREMR
Trading Securities o EEES

- Listed -k 39,357 1 26,437 1

(i) Fair value of financial assets carried at other
than fair value

The carrying amounts of the College’s financial
instruments carried at cost or amortised cost are
not materially different from their fair values as at
30 June 2013 and 2014 except for the following
financial instruments, for which their carrying
amounts and fair value and the level of fair value
hierarchy are disclosed below:

(i) FUAREEFIRNHBEE

REFS—ZFRZF—NFXA=1H ' FER
ERFUAAEEIIRNIBZEEREBIRE
SHREHNAEELREADA - BEANIKREE
BERLAREEWT -

(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars) (AT ITHIR)
30 June 2014 30 June 2013
Carrying Carrying
Amounts Fair Value Level Amounts  Fair Value Level
IREEEE RREE REBR IREE5E RRBE REER
Held-to-maturity #EZEIHEH
debt securities BES
- Listed in -GEEE LT 1,437 1,429 1 1,453 1,434 1
Hong Kong
- Unlisted -JELET 2,000 2,034 2 3,896 3,928 2

There are no Level 3 measurements of financial
assets and liabilities. During the years ended
30 June 2013 and 2014, there were no transfer
between Level 1 and Level 2, or transfers into or
out of Level 3. The group’s policy is to recognize
transfers between levels of fair value hierarchy
as at the end of the reporting period in which
they occur.
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14.

15.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Due to the not-for-profit nature of the College and the
composition of the Board of Trustees (being drawn
from private and public organisations), the College
has received from time to time donations from its
Board of Trustee members, key management and
companies controlled or significantly influenced by
them. The receipts of such donations have all been
individually reported to and approved in accordance
with the financial regulations of the Chinese
University of Hong Kong (the “University”) by the
Board of Trustees and the University Council.

All transactions relating to the purchases of
goods and services and capital projects involving
organisations in which a member of the Board of
Trustees may have an interest are conducted during
the normal course of business and in accordance
with the University’s financial regulations and normal
procurement procedures.

POSSIBLE IMPACT OF AMENDMENTS, NEW
STANDARDS AND INTERPRETATIONS ISSUED
BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE FOR THE YEAR
ENDED 30 JUNE 2014

Up to the date of issue of these financial statements,
the HKICPA has issued a number of amendments,
new standards and interpretations which are not
yet effective for the year ended 30 June 2014 and
which have not been adopted in these financial
statements.These include the following which may
be relevant to the College:

Effective for
accounting periods
beginning on or after

HKFRS 9, Financial Instruments 1 January 2018

The College is in the process of making an
assessment of what the impact of these amendments,
new standards and new interpretations which is
expected to be in the period of initial application.
So far it has concluded that the adoption of them is
unlikely to have a significant impact on the College’s
results of operations and financial position.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
B BER S

TO THE BOARD OF TRUSTEES OF UNITED COLLEGE

THE CHINESE UNIVERSITY OF HONG KONG
BEEPXABHSERRER

We have audited the financial statements of the Board of Trustees
of United College (the “College”) set out on pages 2 to 25, which
comprise the balance sheet as at 30 June 2014, the statement
of comprehensive income and expenditure, the statement of
changes in funds and the cash flow statement for the year then
ended, and a summary of significant accounting policies and
other explanatory information.

THE BOARD OF TRUSTEES’ RESPONSIBILITY FOR
THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Board of Trustees is responsible for the preparation of
financial statements that give a true and fair view in accordance
with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards issued by the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and for such
internal control as the Board of Trustees determine is necessary
to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITY

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial
statements based on our audit. This report is made solely to
you, as a body, in accordance with Statue 12(7) of The Chinese
University of Hong Kong Ordinance (Cap. 1109), and for no other
purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards or accept
liability to any other person for the contents of this report.

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong
Standards on Auditing issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants. Those standards require that we
comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit
to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial
statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence
about the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements.
The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgement,
including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of
the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making
those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control
relevant to the entity’s preparation of the financial statements that
give a true and fair view in order to design audit procedures that
are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal
control. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of
accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates made by the Board of Trustees, as well as evaluating
the overall presentation of the financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient
and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

OPINION

In our opinion, the financial statements give a true and fair view
of the state of affairs of the College as at 30 June 2014 and of
its surplus and cash flows for the year then ended in accordance
with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards.

KPMG

Certified Public Accountants

8th Floor, Prince’s Building

10 Chater Road, Central, Hong Kong

22 October 2014
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THE UNITED COLLEGE ENDOWMENT FUN
THE BOARD OF TRUSTEES OF UNITED CO
THE CHINESE UNIVERSITY OF HONG KON
BRPXABHSERRETHSERES

STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOM
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2014 &Z

(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars) (IA#&#FTHIR)

Note 2014 2013
P
Income N
Interest and Investment Income BRI E WS 3 13,079 11,164
Donations and Benefactions LY SR 4 5,037 14,661
Others Hith 101 186
18,217 26,011
Expenditure ZiH 5
Learning and Research Bilf AR
Instruction and Research BERIRSE 1,818 2,090
Institutional Support SR EHENARTS
Premises and Related Expenses BFENEREZH 142 142
Student and General Education Services BER—BBESHE 9,722 12,506
Other Activities HhEF 1,074 1,358
12,756 16,096
Surplus for the Year REERR 5,461 9,915
ltem that may be Reclassified Subsequently to Hign SMoEERMRTE
Surplus or Deficit BIER
Changes in Fair Value of Available-for-Sale o[t HERARES QR (2,870) 18,391
Equity Securities BEZEE
Total Comprehensive Income for the Year  FEEZREINEHEEE 2,591 28,306

The notes set out on pages 7 to 25 form an integral part of these financial statements.
FHRELEE— TR RRC—ERMI -
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THE UNITED COLLEGE ENDOWMENT FUND
THE BOARD OF TRUSTEES OF UNITED COLL
THE CHINESE UNIVERSITY OF HONG KONG

BEEPXABHSERRETHSERES

BALANCE SHEET ZE&ER

AS AT 30 JUNE 2014 —F—NFB=1H

(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars) (MA&#&F7T5lR)

Note 2014 2013
(=
Non-Current Assets EREEE

Fixed Assets BEE&EE 8 3,902 4,016
Investments ®BE 9 215,324 218,194
219,226 222,210

Current Assets MENEE
Funds Held by The Chinese University ERREEDIAE 10 55,303 33,400

of Hong Kong A
Student Loans BEEm 11 266 315
Accounts Receivable and Prepayments FEWTIR R A FE T FRIE 12 5,723 5,374
Cash at Bank and Time Deposits RITMTEERTER 13 31,513 48,747
92,805 87,836

Current Liabilities REAE
Accounts Payable and Accruals FETIRFR R FEETE 14 1,456 2,109
Provision for Employee Benefits EEEF i 15 347 140
1,803 2,249
Net Current Assets MENEEEE 91,002 85,587
Total Assets Less Current Liabilities WEERTIAE 310,228 307,797

Non-Current Liability EREaE

Provision for Employee Benefits & S 125l 2 15 15 175
NET ASSETS BEEFH 310,213 307,622
Restricted Funds HRES 6 59,585 57,428
Other Funds HihE g 7 250,628 250,194
TOTAL FUNDS BEaiEEE 310,213 307,622

Approved and authorised for issue by the Board of Trustees on 22 October 2014
HMeERREGNR -_FT—NE+HA+ At ERBESRILHBRER

Thomas H.C. Cheung RIES
Chairman &
Board of Trustees i&R&&

Lina H.Y. Yan E§1558
Chairman &
Endowment Fund Committee E&EE5=

K.Y. Wong &§35
Member &5
Board of Trustees i&X&=

S.T. Wong &48%
Hon. Treasurer &¥&5)E
Endowment Fund Committee E&E 5=

The notes set out on pages 7 to 25 form an integral part of these financial statements.

SIERBELtEE-—+HARZMERTUBHRIR M -
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THE UNITED COLLEGE ENDOWMENT F
THE BOARD OF TRUSTEES OF UNITED
THE CHINESE UNIVERSITY OF HONG Ki
BEEPXABHSERRETHSERER
STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN FUNDS &
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2014 &

(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars) (BAE#FITHlR)

Restricted Funds

(Note 6)
SERHEE
(BftEE 7%)
Capital Funds  Donations Total
and
Benefactions
BEEE BB k]
Balance at 1 July 2012 === = of = Rl S 4,102 41,276 45,378
Total Comprehensive Income forthe Year FEZEINE (127) 12,177 12,050
Balance at 30 June 2013 “T-=FNA=TH#4ER 3,975 53,453 57,428
Balance at 1 July 2013 —E2-=FtH—B%4 3,975 53,453 57,428
Transfer from/(to) Statement L SNEIEAEEES (125) 2,282 2,157
of Comprehensive Income and
Expenditure
Transfer between Funds EEHZHEIR - - -
Balance at 30 June 2014 —T-mEAA=1H#EER 3,850 55,735 59,585

The notes set out on pages 7 to 25 form an integral part of these financial statements.
SIERE tEE-+ AR ZMERARMBRERZ 8
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Other Funds

(Note 7)
HihEE
(FtEE )
Capital General Investments Other Total Total
Funds Endowment Revaluation Reserves Funds
Funds Reserves
KEEL Hith
EEES BIEES f s B B4t
35 36,185 163,673 34,045 233,938 279,316
6 - 18,391 (2,141) 16,256 28,306
41 36,185 182,064 31,904 250,194 307,622
41 36,185 182,064 31,904 250,194 307,622
(28) - (2,870) 3,332 434 2,591
39 - - (39) - -
52 36,185 179,194 35,197 250,628

310,213
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THE UNITED COLLEGE ENDOWMENT FUND
THE BOARD OF TRUSTEES OF UNITED CO
THE CHINESE UNIVERSITY OF HONG KONG

BRI ABEAERREGHSSRES
CASH FLOW STATEMENT REHER

(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars) (MA&E#&F5517T)

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2014 EZE=

Note 2014 2013
BtEE
Operating Activities BEER
Surplus for the Year REERER 5,461 9,915
Adjustments for : FAEIER ¢
Depreciation e 153 155
Dividend Income R 2A (9,654) (9,255)
Net Realised and Unrealised Gains on FRREBEDIXARERIEEEZ (1,847) (1,798)
Trading and Other Securities from Funds EENHMESEIRAREIR
Held by The Chinese University of Hong s iE e
Kong
Interest Income FBYA (408) (111)
Foreign Exchange (Gain) / Loss BE 5o (W es) | B51E (1,170) 255
Operating Deficit before Changes EEEREIRIZKRESE (7,465) (839)
in Working Capital
Decrease / (Increase) in Student Loans EBA SR 1 (2h0) 49 (49)
Decrease in Accounts Receivable and FEMUIRFR R FEATFRIE Z iR 2 1,491 1,837
Prepayments
Decrease in Accounts Payable and FEfTIRFR S FEET B iR (653) (527)
Accruals
Increase in Provision for Employee EE1EF g 21Em 47 123
Benefits
Net Cash (Used In) / Generated from KEEE (FRA) | EEXZIREFH (6,531) 545
Operating Activities
Investing Activities wBEE
Payment for Purchase of Fixed Assets BREEERE (39) (34)
Dividend Received B E 9,655 9,134
Interest Received BIFE 414 108
Increase in Funds Held by The Chinese FERREBDPIAREFRIEZ (21,903) -
University of Hong Kong 10
Net Cash (Used in) / Generated from EEE) (FrA) | EX 2RSS (11,873) 9,208
Investing Activities
Net (Decrease) / Increase in Cash and Cash IRENIREZEWZ G 11Em (18,404) 9,753
Equivalents
Cash and Cash Equivalents - Beginning of Year IR&NIRESEEY) - V&L 39,312 29,559
Cash and Cash Equivalents - End of Year INENIREEEY) - FRER 13 20,908 39,312

The notes set out on pages 7 to 25 form an integral part of these financial statements.
NHRELEE— TR MR RRC—ERMI -
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THE UNITED COLLEGE ENDOWMENT FUND
THE BOARD OF TRUSTEES OF UNITED COLLEGE
THE CHINESE UNIVERSITY OF HONG KONG
BEEPXABHAERREGHSERES

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS E13&$RRHIsE

BASIS OF PREPARATION

The financial statements of The Board of Trustees
of United College (the “College”) reflect the state
of affairs of all the funds of the College at 30 June
2014 and the College’s results and cash flows for
the year then ended. The assets of the College
are vested in The Board of Trustees of the College,
under the provisions of The Chinese University of
Hong Kong Ordinance.

These financial statements have been prepared
in accordance with all applicable Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”) which
collective term includes all applicable individual
Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards, Hong
Kong Accounting Standards (“HKASs”) and
Interpretations issued by the Hong Kong Institute
of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA”) and
accounting principles generally accepted in Hong
Kong.

The HKICPA has issued a number of new HKFRSs
and amendments to HKFRSs that are first effective
for the current accounting period of the College.
Of these, “HKFRS 13, Fair value measurement” is
the development relevant to the College’s Financial
Statements.

HKFRS 13 replaces existing guidance in individual
HKFRSs with a single source of fair value
measurement guidance. HKFRS 13 also contains
extensive disclosure requirements about fair value
measurements for both financial instruments and
non-financial instruments. To the extent that the
requirements are applicable to the College, the
College has provided those disclosures in note
17(e).

The College has not applied any new standard or
interpretation that is not yet effective for the current
accounting period (see note 20).

The measurement basis used in the preparation of
the financial statements is the historical cost basis
except otherwise stated in the accounting policies
set out below.

The preparation of financial statements in conformity
with HKFRSs requires management to make
judgements, estimates and assumptions that affect
the application of policies and reported amounts
of assets, liabilities, income and expenditure. The
estimates and associated assumptions are based
on historical experience and various other factors
that are believed to be reasonable under the
circumstances, the results of which form the basis
of making the judgements about carrying values of
assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent
from other sources. Actual results may differ from
these estimates.

—

RRERE

BMEER( “SER REGHMBRRARIHAERM
BEESN"T-NFEAA=TAZMBIRR - MABE
ZBIEFENRERIRERE - FERRESEECE
ENRBEEEPIXARBHROIFFRY -

FABHRRERREE G ASRIGFIEBERRESE
TRy (BEMBREER) - EREEEREERNE
Bl (BEMBREEA) - (FESFTER) BEES
TR A RRNZRAEELBNERAIMER -

BEEDRHIASRG T RESERRISFHFEEER
ERNFEIRIETTEEMBRELEL > EPREEE
MBREENSE131% : AABEREHEAISRNME
IRIEERE -

BEMEHREERE 1 MRAE— 155 I BRI SR E
RIEEVHREERREEALEERENES - A
BRMBIRLEMB RN AREEEELERRZ
HUREEER - FERCKMEH LR ERE

RERIEBENSHFERARERAIFTHERI NG
B (RMBRRME=T) -

HEARBI RIS - BRERIINSRIBERP MR
5 BIMEEMAERER -

ERBIN BB BREEN MR HRERE - ERE(E
HATHEET « FHE N SR E RS BER AR S
WEE - B - WA - MG AEHERRERE
FERESIATZER TGRS ENRARERR - I
USRI S E R B EMIREE - EHE
B FRAEE ELhBAREISEFRENSS - MAREETAIEETTAE
HERCEREFER -

UC 7



UC 8

(a)

BASIS OF PREPARATION (Continued)

The estimates and underlying assumptions are
reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to
accounting estimates are recognised in the period
in which the estimate is revised if the revision affects
only that period, or in the period of the revision and
future periods if the revision affects both current
and future periods.

A summary of the significant accounting policies
adopted by the College is set out below.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
Fixed Assets

Fixed Assets are stated in the balance sheet at
cost less accumulated depreciation and impairment
losses.

The cost of an asset comprises its purchase price
and any directly attributable costs of bringing the
assets to its working condition and location for its
intended use. Where it can be clearly demonstrated
that subsequent expenditure on an asset has
resulted in an increase in its future economic
benefit, such expenditure is capitalised as an
additional cost of that asset.

Depreciation is calculated to write off the cost of
fixed assets, less their estimated residual value,if
any, using the straight line method over their
estimated useful lives as follows:

Buildings 40 years

Equipment, Furniture
and Fittings

3-5years

Shorter of useful
life or duration of
project

Equipment acquired for
Research Projects

Both the useful life of an asset and its residual
value, if any, are reviewed annually.
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(a)

(b)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
Fixed Assets (Continued)

An impairment loss is recognised to the extent
that the carrying amount of an asset, or the cash-
generating unit to which it belongs, is more than its
recoverable amount. The recoverable amount of
an asset, or of the cash-generating unit to which
it belongs, is the greater of its fair value less costs
to sell and value in use. In assessing value in use,
the estimated future cash flows are discounted to
their present value using a pre-tax discount rate
that reflects current market assessments of the
time value of money and the risks specific to the
assets. An impairment loss is reversed if there
has been a favourable change in estimates used
to determine the recoverable amount.

Gains or losses on disposal or retirement of a fixed
asset are determined as the difference between
the net proceeds and the carrying amount of the
fixed asset and are recognised in the Statement
of Comprehensive Income and Expenditure on the
date of retirement or disposal.

Investments

(i) Investments are recognised/derecognised on
the date the College commits to purchase/sell
the investments or they expire. Investments in
equity securities are initially stated at fair value
plus transaction costs.

(i) The equity securities held by the College are
not for trading purpose and are classified
as “available-for-sale equity securities”. At
each balance sheet date, the fair value is
remeasured, with any resultant gain or loss
being recognised in other comprehensive
income and accumulated separately in equity
in the fair value reserve, except for impairment
loss.

When there is objective evidence that available-
for-sale equity securities are impaired, the
cumulative loss that had been recognised
directly in the fair value reserve is reclassified
to the Statement of Comprehensive Income
and Expenditure. The amount of the cumulative
loss that is recognised in the Statement of
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure is
the difference between the acquisition cost
and the current fair value, less any impairment
loss on that asset previously recognised in
the Statement of Comprehensive Income and
Expenditure. Objective evidence of impairment
includes observable data that comes to
the attention of the College concerning the
underlying financial stability of the investee as
well as a significant or prolonged decline in the
fair value of an investment below its cost.
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2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
(b) Investments (Continued)

(iii)

Impairment losses recognised in the Statement
of Comprehensive Income and Expenditure in
respect of available-for-sale equity securities
are not reversed through the Statement of
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure.
Any subsequent increase in the fair value of
such assets is recognised directly in other
comprehensive income.

Funds placed with investment managers in
the name of The Chinese University of Hong
Kong comprise cash deposits, bonds and
equity investments managed by independent
investment managers. These funds are stated
at fair value and any change in the fair value
of the funds is recognised in the Statement
of Comprehensive Income and Expenditure.

(c) Cash and Cash Equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash at bank
and on hand, demand deposits with banks and
other financial institutions, and short-term, highly
liquid investments that are readily convertible into
known amounts of cash, which are subject to an
insignificant risk of changes in value, having been
within three months of maturity at acquisition.

(d) Employee Benefits

(i)

(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

Salaries, paid annual leave, housing
allowances and the cost to the College of
non-monetary benefits are accrued in the year
in which the associated services are rendered
by employees of the College.

Contract-end gratuity is payable on completion
of a contract appointment of not less than two
years. The gratuity, together with the total
amount of the College’s contributions to a
particular retirement scheme, will add up to
10% or 15% of the appointee’s basic salary
drawn during the contract period.

Contributions to defined contribution
retirement plans, including Mandatory
Provident Funds as required under the Hong
Kong Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes
Ordinance, are recognised as an expenditure
in the Statement of Comprehensive Income
and Expenditure as incurred.

Termination benefits are recognised at the
earlier of when the College can no longer
withdraw the offer of those benefits and when
it recognises restructuring costs involving the
payment of termination benefits.
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(e)

()

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
Provisions and Contingent Liabilities

Provisions are recognised for liabilities of uncertain
timing or amount when the College has a legal or
constructive obligation arising as a result of a past
event, it is probable that an outflow of economic
benefits will be required to settle the obligation and
a reliable estimate can be made. Where the time
value of money is material, provisions are stated
at the present value of the expenditure expected
to settle the obligation.

Where itis not probable that an outflow of economic
benefits will be required, or the amount cannot
be estimated reliably, the obligation is disclosed
as a contingent liability, unless the probability of
outflow of economic benefits is remote. Possible
obligations, whose existence will only be confirmed
by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more
future events, are also disclosed as contingent
liabilities unless the probability of outflow of
economic benefits is remote.

Income Recognition

Provided it is probable that the economic benefits will
flow to the College and the income and expenditure,
if applicable, can be measured reliably, income is
recognised in the Statement of Comprehensive
Income and Expenditure as follows:

(i) Interest and Investment Income

Interest and investment income is derived
from the time deposits held by the College
and funds held by The Chinese University of
Hong Kong, which includes investments in time
deposits, fixed rate certificates of deposits,
other debt securities, securities held for trading,
limited partnership investment and alternative
investments. Interest income is recognised
as it accrues using the effective interest
method. Investment income is recognised in
the Statement of Comprehensive Income and
Expenditure for the changes in fair value of
securities held for trading, limited partnership
investment and alternative investments upon
re-measurement at each balance sheet date.

(ii) Dividend Income

Dividend income from listed securities is
recognised when the share price of the
investment goes ex-dividend.

(iii) Donations and Benefactions

Donations and Benefactions are recognised
in the Statement of Comprehensive Income
and Expenditure when the College becomes
entitled to the donations and benefactions and
it is probable that they will be received, which is
generally receipt of cash.

= EEFEHER (@)

m~

EREHBEE
MRAMREFENSHRIBERIEERT - MIAH
LEHSHEBEN@NERING - ETAMEL TSR
EETR > AERME/ZFENBFETENRBEER
#fn - FRENMMTEER > GUTFEHZHHBIR
B -

MRSBEEVRMERINRATERRE - H2HR
FHBEREBRFELTENMGE  AREZEBRASE
B8 - BERINENCTEERERIFRS - EEERE
BABE-BERZIERREY  BERBRIKESH
MTEHIMEE - FRIERZEEETN ST EMHE(E -

WA R

REERROUTREGARA - MUATIRE - 58
e a] SEET R - AERESRETIIEEES
ESZRATEBIA -

(i) FBREER

T BRI E N SHEAERBITRHENFRREE
WX ARBRIEEL @ AEEHER - BEMXRE
MRS - HithfERES - UEEES  REGR
RENSBERE - FIBNAZUERRIRELIA
FEETHIRERD - REWHUTEERES - REGH
BRERSERETEERRRAEGMNARER
SIETAZTEIIZER -

(i) B2
LM BN A ERER S FRER

(iii) IBEE M ABE
BREEERRAERG R NE O sEIENAIEE
B - BEERWERER  E2EKRZRA
TEBAULA -



_UC12_

2.
(9)

(h)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Translation of Foreign Currencies

Foreign currency transactions during the year are
translated into Hong Kong dollars at the foreign
exchange rates ruling at the transaction dates.
Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in
foreign currencies are translated into Hong Kong
dollars at the foreign exchange rate ruling at the
balance sheet date. Exchange gains and losses
on foreign currency translation are dealt with in the
relevant fund accounts through the Statement of
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure.

Related Parties

(i) A person, or a close member of that person’s
family, is related to the College if that person:

(I)  has control or joint control over the
College;

(I)  has significant influence over the College;
or

(Il is a member of the key management
personnel of the College or the College’s
parent.

(i) An entity is related to the College if any of the
following conditions applies:

(I)  The entity and the College are members
of the same group (which means that
each parent, subsidiary and fellow
subsidiary is related to the others).

(I One entity is an associate or joint venture
of the other entity (or an associate or joint
venture of a member of a group of which
the other entity is a member).

() Both entities are joint ventures of the
same third party.

(IV) One entity is a joint venture of a third
entity and the other entity is an associate
of the third entity.

(V) The entity is a post-employment benefit
plan for the benefit of employees of either
the College or an entity related to the
College.

(V1) The entity is controlled or jointly controlled
by a person identified in (i).

(VIl) Aperson identified in (i)(l) has significant
influence over the entity or is a member
of the key management personnel of the
entity (or of a parent of the entity).

Close members of the family of a person are
those family members who may be expected to
influence, or be influenced by, that person in their
dealings with the entity.
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INTEREST AND INVESTMENT INCOME =~ NEREEWE

(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars) (AT THIR)
2014 2013
Net Realised and Unrealised Gains on FRREBDI X AEBMEEEZ 1,847 1,798
Trading and Other Securities from Funds EENHEMESEIRAREIR
Held by The Chinese University of Hong Kong s iEEE
Net Realised and Unrealised Exchange EERNREIRZERER 1,170 -
Gain from Time Deposits SMEE R iR U AR
Dividends from Listed Equity Securities FHEAESRE 9,654 9,255
Interest from Bank Deposits BITEME 408 111
13,079 11,164
DONATIONS AND BENEFACTIONS ~ EMERER
(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars) (BT THIR)
2014 2013
Scholarships, Prizes and Bursaries REF RENMEBE 2,915 11,848
Others Hith 2,122 2,813
5,037 14,661
EXPENDITURE A X
(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars) (BT THIR)
Staff Cost Operating  Depreciation Total
and Expenses
Benefits
BT
KAzl BERR e EEE]
Learning and Research Bilf RS
Instruction and Research BB 23 1,794 1 1,818
Institutional Support (Note 5.1)  EPRzEEBIBRIS (s H.—)
Premises and Related Expenses BFELEETE - 20 122 142
Students and General Education BEN—BHE 2,016 7,685 21 9,722
Services E=
Other Activities HihsEF 27 1,038 9 1,074
2,043 8,743 152 10,938
Total Expenditure #wEH 2,066 10,537 153 12,756




5. EXPENDITURE (Continued) f- ZH @)

2013
Staff Cost Operating  Depreciation Total
and Expenses
Benefits
BT HEH
KAEF EERR e ]
Learning and Research By &S
Instruction and Research BEB NS 19 2,070 1 2,090
Institutional Support (Note 5.1)  ERREBNIRFE(FieEH.—)
Premises and Related Expenses BFEREEZH - 19 123 142
Students and General Education BEN—BAE 3,790 8,697 19 12,506
Services B
Other Activities HAthEF# 114 1,232 12 1,358
3,904 9,948 154 14,006
Total Expenditure ot 3,923 12,018 155 16,096
5.1 Analysis of Operating Expenses on Institutional Support .-~ EREMRBNEERZS R
(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars) (ABEETFTTIIR)
2014 2013
Premises and Related Expenses BFRERERH
Renovation and Maintenance ENFR A2 N (E 20 19
Student and General Education Services BEN—BHBEER
Scholarships & Prize REZNERER 6,263 7,076
Student/Extra-curricular Activities B4 ERINER 1,388 1,560
Microcomputer Laboratory BEE 28 61
Miscellaneous I8 6 -
7,685 8,697
Other Activities HAthZE#
College Publications ERTIY 40 97
College Activities and Functions EhESE 735 751
Exchange Loss AR - 255
Miscellaneous IS 263 129
1,038 1,232
8,743 9,948




NATURE AND PURPOSE OF RESTRICTED
FUNDS

Capital Funds

Capital Funds represent the balance of net book
value of the Fixed Assets.

Donations and Benefactions

Donations and Benefactions represent funds
received by the College from the Donors which are
used to support Scholarships, Prizes and Bursaries
of the College.

NATURE AND PURPOSE OF OTHER FUNDS
Capital Funds

Capital Funds represent the balance of net book
value of the Fixed Assets.

General Endowment Funds

Endowment Funds represent donations received
by the College, usually with the stipulation from the
donors that the principal amounts should remain
intact in perpetuity or for a defined time period for
specific purposes.

Investments Revaluation Reserves

Investments Revaluation Reserve comprises the
cumulative net change in the fair value of available-
for-sale equity securities held at the balance sheet
date and is dealt with in accordance with the
accounting policies in note 2(b).

Other Reserves

Other Reserves represent the reserves generated
by the College from interest and investmentincome
which are used to support college activities, student
activities, programmes or projects of the College.
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FIXED ASSETS N~ BEREE
(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars) (AT THR)
Buildings  Equipment, Total
Furniture
and Fittings
FRAKE
BFEE Rzt B

Cost RAsE

At 1 July 2012 —SFS-"F+tH—H& 4,759 1,640 6,399

Additions =1 - 34 34

Disposals HE - (161) (161)
At 30 June 2013 —F-=F;xA=1H%8% 4,759 1,513 6,272
Accumulated Depreciation FHEHRE

At 1 July 2012 —FS-"F+tH—H& 674 1,588 2,262

Charge for the Year REEIRE 121 34 155

Written Back on Disposals HEZDE - (161) (161)

At 30 June 2013 —T-=FHA=1TR&R 795 1,461 2,256
Net Book Value at 30 June 2013 Z—ZF—=F;xB=1+HREZEE 3,964 52 4,016
Cost RAsE

At 1 July 2013 —S-=FtH—A%&% 4,759 1,513 6,272

Additions nE - 39 39

At 30 June 2014 —FE—EA=1TH%% 4,759 1,652 6,311
Accumulated Depreciation ZEHRE

At 1 July 2013 —F—-=FtHB—B#k 795 1,461 2,256

Charge for the Year REEIRE 121 32 153

At 30 June 2014 —F-mFEAA=1H%&R 916 1,493 2,409
Net Book Value at 30 June 2014 —ZB—M&E A= AIKEEE 3,843 59 3,902
INVESTMENTS h~ 8E
(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars) (BT TTHR)

2014 2013

Available-for-Sale Equity Securities o]t R ANE

at Fair Value ManEESIR

- Listed in Hong Kong -EEBLm 215,324 218,194




10.

1.

FUNDS HELD BY THE CHINESE UNIVERSITY OF
HONG KONG (“CUHK?” or the “University”)

T - FHRBEPIKE( “KB” )RIF

(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars) (ABEETFTHIR)
2014 2013
Funds Placed with Investment Managers UEBPIREZRER 10,083 9,180
in the name of CUHK BEBE NS IE
Fixed Income Assets in the name of UEBPYKEZEEZR 45,220 24,220
CUHK ERWAEEZIE
55,303 33,400
Note: s

(i) Funds held by the University are pooled with
other University funds for investment and
bank deposits arrangement in the name of
CUHK.

(ii) Funds placed with investment managers in the
name of CUHK are invested in financial assets
measured at fair value. According to the three-
level fair value hierarchy as defined in HKFRS
13, Fair value measurement, the funds are
categorised as Level 1, 2, and 3 by 50%, 4%
and 46% respectively (2013: 47%, 4%, and 49%
respectively).

Fixed income assets in the name of CUHK are
invested in financial assets carried at other
than fair value. According to the three-level fair
value hierarchy as defined in HKFRS 13, Fair
value measurement, the funds are categorised
as Level 1 and 2 by 3% and 97% respectively.

(i) FHRREEPXABRELEEMABEE—HUKES
RIERERRITERLF

(i) RhXABEZERERIREEM QS CRIERARILE
EUAREEFEMNMEEE - RIBEBMIERESEL
FE13E TARBEERE,  ANEVRERE R -F
ZIRRE=AR 0 BEE50% ~ 4%K%46% (2013 : 47%,
4%K49%)

M REBZREFNREBRAEEZREZHARIRETE
AURAEEFIRAMEEE - RIBEBUHISHRELER
FE13MF TARBERE,  AITERBERFE—BAE
—#% - BRIMG3%K97% ©

STUDENT LOANS +-— - BEER
(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars) (ABEETFTTHIR)
2014 2013
Student Emergency Loans BERSEM 81 81
Wong Fung Ling Student Loans ERVELEERM 30 30
Travel Loans for Non-Local Academic AR BB MREERETE 155 204
Activities Scheme

The student loans are expected to be recoverable
within one year.

266 315

BESRIRIEYTRAR —FARERE -



12. ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE AND PREPAYMENTS

T= - BKIRFR R FAITFRIE

(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars) (AT TTHIR)
2014 2013
Accounts Receivable FEUTIRTR 1,217 1,224
Prepayments FEfTFRIE 1,799 1,880
Amount due from The Chinese University PR E BRI RE 2,707 2,270
of Hong Kong (Note) RIE (PiEE)
5,723 5,374

The accounts receivable, prepayments and amount
due from The Chinese University of Hong Kong
are expected to be recoverable or recognised as
expenses within one year.

Note: The outstanding balance with CUHK is
unsecured and has no fixed repayment term.

13. CASH AT BANK AND TIME DEPOSITS

FEWUIRTR ~ TRTRRIE R BN E B XA BIRIBHITRAR —F
RO ERRZE -

Hizt: AERAEFEPIABNERKD @ BRERBER
R IREE RIEHAIR

+= - RITREBHMER

(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars) (A BT TTHIR)
2014 2013
Cash at Bank RITTEM 58 12
Time Deposits EHITFER 31,455 48,735
Cash at Bank and Time Deposits in the BEBSRERANEITR 31,513 48,747
Balance Sheet EHER
Less: Time Deposit with Original Maturity W FREEBR=EA (10,605) (9,435)
over Three Months HIERRFM
Cash and Cash Equivalents in the HRERERAMIRE
Cash Flow Statement RIREEEY 20,908 39,312
Included in time deposits is the following amount RITEHRERERE TIMIMNERENIEEE :
denominated in the following foreign currency:
(Expressed in thousands) (AFRI5I7R)
2014 2013
Pounds Sterling (“GBP”) REE 800 800



14.

15.

16.

ACCOUNTS PAYABLE AND ACCRUALS

T - EfRRRESER

(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars) (ABEEFTHIR)
2014 2013
Accounts Payable FE(TIRTR 375 539
Receipt in Advance TEWFRIE 1,053 1,567
Accruals FEstE&ER 28 3
1,456 2,109

The accounts payable and accruals are expected
to be settled within one year or are payable on
demand.

PROVISION FOR EMPLOYEE BENEFITS

FEfTIRTR N FE R B R TR IR — F A EE IR E R
=t e

TH - BEEFIER

(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars) (AT TTHIR)
2014 2013
Contract-end Gratuity HimbiE 281 200
Other Employee Benefits HitnfES1E7F 81 115
362 315

Payable F&fT

Within 1 year R—FR 347 140
After 1 year R—F% 15 175
362 315

CAPITAL MANAGEMENT

The College is a not-for-profit organisation and forms
part of The Chinese University of Hong Kong. Itaims
to offer a balanced and holistic education with rich
college life to students in supporting their personal
growth and development. The College defines
capital as including various general and restricted
funds balances. The various funds represent the
unspent balance of donations, grants and income.
These funds are managed in accordance with the
College’s financial management procedures and the
relevant funding conditions, where applicable. The
College’s primary objective when managing capital
is to safeguard the College’s ability to continue as
a going concern and to maintain a strong financial
base to support the development of the College. To
achieve the above capital management objective,
the College sets guidelines on investment and
financial management. For funds with specific
purpose, they will mainly be placed in funds held
by The Chinese University of Hong Kong (Note 10),
whereas funds invested in blue chip equity securities
are reserved for general use.

There has been no change in the College’s capital
management practices as compared to prior year.
The College is not subject to any externally imposed
capital requirement.

T~ EXER

FEREMBRELBPXABHIEFTIERE - 5k
NRERRRBERHTERTENAFTNEENR
EEE - WEfbPIMRRLER - ERNERTERE
E—RESNERESE - MAANER - #HEER
HARIMNEERIAAESEER - EEESER
BERNMBERBRNKEE - FAEREEESNE
BB EREREREREEERBRENTEIR
R ERNER - REZILCEN - SiRHlE T80
HIRE R BEENIES| - EREEIETHNEE
hXARBRIAGET) - MEBREZRAESNES
AIRE—MRAE -

FERNENERBRGHNESHEETHER - 5k
R BINEREMNERRE -



17.

(a)

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS AND RISK
MANAGEMENT

The College’s financial instruments mainly include
bank deposits, equity securities and funds held
by The Chinese University of Hong Kong, which
are exposed to credit, interest rate, currency and
equity price risks. The risks on financial assets
are controlled in accordance with the investment
guidelines approved by the Endowment Fund
Committee under the College’s Board of Trustees.
This is achieved through diversified asset allocation,
rules governing the selection and credit limits
of investment counterparties with reference to
their credit ratings and financial strength. The
Endowment Fund Committee reviews investment
strategies and performance periodically to ensure
that the investment objectives and performance
targets are met. An investment sub-committee
under the Endowment Fund Committee meets
periodically to manage and monitor risk exposures
associated with respective financial assets to
ensure that appropriate measures are implemented
on a timely and effective manner.

Credit Risk

The College’s credit risk is primarily attributable
to bank deposits. Management has a credit policy
in place and exposures to these credit risks are
monitored on an ongoing basis. The College places
deposits with major financial institutions with good
credit ratings. The credit risk associated with the
funds held by the Chinese University of Hong
Kong is considered to be low. The College has no
significant concentration of credit risk, with exposure
spread over a number of counterparties.

The maximum exposure to credit risk is represented
by the carrying amount of each financial asset in
the balance sheet.
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17.

(b)

(c)

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS AND RISK
MANAGEMENT (Continued)

Interest Rate Risk

The College is exposed to interest rate risk primarily
arising from its time deposits due to fluctuations in
the prevailing levels of market interest rates.

As at 30 June 2014, it is estimated that a general
increase/decrease of 100 basis points in fixed
deposit interest rate, with all other variables
held constant, would increase/decrease the
College’s surplus for the year and net assets at the
balance sheet date by approximately HKD315,000
(2013: HKD487,000). This analysis has been
determined assuming that the change in interest
rate had occurred at the balance sheet date and had
been applied to the exposure to interest rate risk for
short-term deposits in existence at that date, with an
assumption that fixed term instruments which expire
during the next reporting period will be rolled over
at the expiry of that term at the new market rate.

Currency Risk

The College’s foreign currency risk exposure mainly
arises from a GBP time deposit.

As at 30 June 2014, the percentage of financial
assets denominated in currencies other than HKD
to total assets is 3.4% (2013: 3.0%). The College
considers the effect of currency risk on the financial
statements not material.

Though the funds held by the University are also
invested in debt and equity securities and bank
deposits denominated in United States dollars,
management does not consider it necessary to
hedge the exposure on United States dollars given
that the Hong Kong dollars are currently pegged to
the United States dollars under the linked exchange
rate system adopted by the HKSAR Government.
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17.

(d)

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS AND RISK
MANAGEMENT (Continued)

Equity Price Risk

The College is exposed to equity price risk arising
primarily from available-for-sale equity securities. All
of these investments are blue chip shares listed on
the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong and are included
in the Hang Seng Index. These investments have
been chosen based on their longer term growth
potential. Management monitors regularly the
performance of the investments to ensure their
suitability as investments for the College.The equity
price risk related to funds held by the University is
managed by professional managers through their
own risk management and assessment policies.
The investment managers’ investment strategies are
governed by the University’s investment and asset
allocation guidelines. The College also monitors the
risk exposure by reviewing periodic reports from the
custodians and investment managers.

As at 30 June 2014, it is estimated that a general
increase/decrease of 10% in these securities’
market prices, with all other variables held
constant, would increase/decrease the College’s
net assets by approximately HKD21,816,000 (2013:
HKD22,062,000).

1+t - EMIAREREE (8)
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17.

(e)

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS AND RISK
MANAGEMENT (Continued)

Fair Values Measurement

Financial assets and liabilities measured at fair
value and fair value hierarchy

The following table presents the fair value of the
College’s financial instruments measured at the
end of the reporting period on a recurring basis,
categorised into the three-level fair value hierarchy
as defined in HKFRS 13, Fair value measurement.
The level into which a fair value measurement
is classified is determined with reference to the
observability and significance of the inputs used
in the valuation technique as follows:

e Level 1 valuations: Fair value measured using
only Level 1 inputs i.e. unadjusted quoted
prices in active markets for identical assets or
liabilities at the measurement date

* Level 2 valuations: Fair value measured using
Level 2 inputs i.e. observable inputs which
fail to meet Level 1, and not using significant
unobservable inputs. Unobservable inputs are
inputs for which market data are not available.

* Level 3 valuations: Fair value measured using
significant unobservable inputs

(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

++t - ESRIAKEREE (§)

%~

AREERE
RanBEEFIRNAZEEREBRAREERE

REEEUBREENE 1R " DREEE, -
ARBEEFENRZRBEANMEGENSIRZTE
EMMERMREE - BEARBIWT :

- B DABEEUE—ENEERETE - BIR
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HIRE

- B ARBEEUBETRNEIEREE - BIARGER
SR RAINTRRENHBE R ERATFTHEE
MEEHE - TURRANHBE RIS RAERHN
iz

- BER DABEUTTHEEFINEERER
AT

(ABEEFTIR)

30 June 2014 30 June 2013
Assets Subject to
Recurring Fair MEAREE Fair Value Level Fair Value Level
Value Measurement RTENEE AREE FEER NREE FERA
Available-for-sale Equity o it R AT
Securities
- Listed -k 215,324 1 218,194 1

There are no Level 3 measurements of financial
assets and liabilities. During the year ended 30
June 2014 and 2013, there were no transfers
between Level 1 and Level 2, or transfers into or
out of Level 3. The College’s policy is to recognise
transfers between levels of fair value hierarchy as at
the end of the reporting period in which they occur.

FERKBEAF=BHAFELABENTEE
ENERE #B#ETFTNFEATT—=F/XA=1+
HILFER @ MBEERERNERIEES R
HSE TR  AEANEHE=R - FEMK
MIBERZN ER B R RRBE AR EERER
Rl -



18.

19.

CAPITAL COMMITMENTS

(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

Capital commitments outstanding at 30 June 2014,
not provided for in the financial statements, are as
follows:

T\~ BEAERIE
(ABEFTIIR)

REF—MEFAB=TH » REMBRRERERL
ERREDTWMT -

2014 2013

Authorised but not Contracted for

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Due to the not-for-profit nature of the College and
the composition of the Board of Trustees (being
drawn from private and public organisations),
the College has received from time to time
donations from its Board of Trustees members,
key management and companies controlled or
significantly influenced by them. The receipts of
such donations have all been individually reported
to and approved in accordance with the financial
regulations of the Chinese University of Hong Kong
(the “University”) by the Board of Trustees and the
University Council.

All transactions relating to the purchases of
goods and services and capital projects involving
organisations in which a member of the Board of
Trustees may have an interest are conducted during
the normal course of business and in accordance
with the University’s financial regulations and
normal procurement procedures.

IS EELREL 1,309 1,246
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POSSIBLE IMPACT OF AMENDMENTS, NEW
STANDARDS AND INTERPRETATIONS ISSUED
BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE FOR THE YEAR ENDED
30 JUNE 2014

Up to the date of issue of these financial statements,
the HKICPA has issued a number of amendments,
new standards and interpretations which are not
yet effective for the year ended 30 June 2014 and
which have not been adopted in these financial
statements. These include the following which may
be relevant to the College:

Effective for
accounting periods
beginning on or after

HKFRS 9, Financial Instruments 1 January 2018

The College is in the process of making an
assessment of what the impact of these amendments,
new standards and new interpretations which is
expected to be in the period of initial application.
So far it has concluded that the adoption of them is
unlikely to have a significant impact on the College’s
results of operations and financial position.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
B ABEHR S

TO THE BOARD OF TRUSTEES OF SHAW COLLEGE

THE CHINESE UNIVERSITY OF HONG KONG
BEAPXAXBEXERRET

We have audited the financial statements of the Trustees of Shaw
College (the “College”) set out on pages 2 to 24, which comprise
the balance sheet as at 30 June 2014, and the statement of
comprehensive income and expenditure, the statement of
changes in funds and the cash flow statement for the year then
ended, and a summary of significant accounting policies and
other explanatory information.

THE BOARD OF TRUSTEES’ RESPONSIBILITY FOR
THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Board of Trustees is responsible for the preparation of
financial statements that give a true and fair view in accordance
with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards issued by the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and for such
internal control as the Board of Trustees determine is necessary
to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITY

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial
statements based on our audit. This report is made solely to
you, as a body, in accordance with Statue 12(7) of The Chinese
University of Hong Kong Ordinance (Cap. 1109), and for no other
purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards or accept
liability to any other person for the contents of this report.

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards
on Auditing issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants. Those standards require that we comply with ethical
requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether the financial statements are free from
material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence
about the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements.
The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgement,
including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of
the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making
those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control
relevant to the entity’s preparation of the financial statements that
give a true and fair view in order to design audit procedures that
are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal
control. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of
accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates made by the Board of Trustees, as well as evaluating
the overall presentation of the financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient
and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

OPINION

In our opinion, the financial statements give a true and fair view
of the state of affairs of the College as at 30 June 2014 and of its
surplus and cash flows for the year then ended in accordance
with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards.

KPMG

Certified Public Accountants

8th Floor, Prince’s Building

10 Chater Road, Central, Hong Kong

16 October 2014
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THE TRUSTEES OF SHAW COLLEGE
THE CHINESE UNIVERSITY OF HONG
BRPXADERXERRET
STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE IN
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2014

BE_T-NFAA=+THLFE

(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars) (MA&4F7T5lR)

Note 2014 2013
FiEE
Income WA
Interest and Investment Income MBI E WS 3 8,807 8,680
Donations and Benefactions =LY SE =R 4 5,575 16,949
Other Income B A 403 551
14,785 26,180
Expenditure Z i 5
Learning and Research Siig SRR
Other Academic Services EL{th B EB AR S 176 407
Institutional Support ERREHENRRTS
Management and General [ S e E ] 133 80
Premises and Related Expenses BFAEREZH 4,219 7,790
Student and General Education Services BEN—BBEER 4,116 4,842
Other Activities HthES55 280 101
8,924 13,220
Surplus and Total Comprehensive Income for  AEFERBNAFEDH 5,861 12,960
the Year W as

The notes set out on pages 7 to 24 form an integral part of these financial statements.
NEREtEE-+NEZMFARMERIRZ 35



THE TRUSTEES OF SHAW COLLEGE
THE CHINESE UNIVERSITY OF HONG KONG
BRAPXADEXERRER

BALANCE SHEET ZE&E®

AS AT 30 JUNE 2014

—E-mERA=1H

(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars) (IA&4F7T5lR)

Note 2014 2013
FiEE
Non-Current Asset ERBEE

Fixed Assets ETE&EE 8 496 422
496 422

Current Assets mEEE
Investments BE 9 6,267 4,865
Funds Held by The Chinese University of ERREBPXAE 10 136,552 131,655

Hong Kong ELE]
Student Loans BEEm 1 518 562
Accounts Receivable FEUSTIRTR 12 50 93
Payment in Advance FAfTFRIE 220 -
Cash at Bank and Time Deposits RIT R EHTER 13 10,369 10,248
153,976 147,423

Current Liabilities mEas
Accounts Payable and Accruals FEfTIRFR A FERHE 14 1,722 936
Provision for Employee Benefits & S 185 S 19 25
1,741 961
Net Current Assets MEEEEE 152,235 146,462
Total Assets Net of Current Liabilities BEERRSERE 152,731 146,884

Non-Current Liability JEREEE

Provision for Employee Benefits B S8 % - 14
NET ASSETS BESHE 152,731 146,870
Restricted Funds HHES 6 151,829 146,336
Other Funds HihEE 7 902 534
TOTAL FUNDS =t 152,731 146,870

Approved and authorised for issue by the Board of Trustees on 16 October 2014
BRERRESN-_FT—NF+A+NBEREEERILEIFRSE

Clement Fung }&JKi8 Chairman, ¥&E
Board of Trustees &=

Hamen Fan S &% Hon. Treasurer, 332 5]&
Board of Trustees ==

Chan Chi Fai [i&] Member, Z5
Board of Trustees iXE&

The notes set out on pages 7 to 24 form an integral part of these financial statements.

SIERFELtEE-+NEZMEREM BRI —57 -
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THE TRUSTEES OF SHAW COLLEGE
THE CHINESE UNIVERSITY OF HONG K
BRAPXADGRXERRET
STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN FUNDS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2014
BE_FT-MFAA=THLEER

(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars) (IA#E#FT5liR)

Restricted
Funds
EREE
Capital Endowment  Other Total
Funds Funds Restricted
Funds

EEES: H#EFE: HthERAES #FE

(Note 6)
(PffzE6)
Balance at 1 July 2012 “T—_FtA—H#&8R - 96,476 37,950 134,426
Transfers from the Statement of BEREEFERZR 367 5,133 7,854 13,354
Comprehensive Income and
Expenditure
Inter-fund Transfers BB ER - 500 (1,944) (1,444)
Balance at 30 June 2013 —F-=FXA=1+H%ER 367 102,109 43,860 146,336
Balance at 1 July 2013 _T—=FtRA—BH#& 367 102,109 43,860 146,336
Transfers (to)/from the Statement of & (E)BZEIZER (103) 4,750 846 5,493
Comprehensive Income and
Expenditure
Inter-fund Transfers ESRCEIR 196 - (196) -
Balance at 30 June 2014 —F-MEXA=T AR 460 106,859 44510 151,829

The notes set out on pages 7 to 24 form an integral part of these financial statements.
NEREtREE=TNE MR IERRC—E5



THE TRUSTEES OF SHAW COLLEGE

THE CHINESE UNIVERSITY OF HONG KON
BAPIADRRERRET

STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN FUNDS &%
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2014

E-B-NFAA=THLEEE

(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars) (A% T5lR)

Other
Funds
HithEE
Capital Reserves Total Total
Funds Funds
BEEEE R wE BEIRE
(Note 7)
(PisE7)
Balance at 1 July 2012 “F-"F+tH—B%&8 75 (591) (516) 133,910
Transfers (to)/from the Statement of ®(E)BZEEWEZER (20) (374) (394) 12,960
Comprehensive Income and
Expenditure
Inter-fund Transfers B ER - 1,444 1,444 -
Balance at 30 June 2013 —T-=%xA=1H#&H% 55 479 534 146,870
Balance at 1 July 2013 “S—=FtHA—RH#%&& 55 479 534 146,870
Transfers (to)/from the Statement of (ZE)BZEIZR (19) 387 368 5,861
Comprehensive Income and
Expenditure
Inter-fund Transfers HEMZEIR - - - -
Balance at 30 June 2014 —S—MENB=1 R4 36 866 902 152,731

The notes set out on pages 7 to 24 form an integral part of these financial statements.
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THE TRUSTEES OF SHAW COLLEGE

THE CHINESE UNIVERSITY OF HONG KONG
BARAPXADEXERRET

CASH FLOW STATEMENT REFRER

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2014
BE_FT-MFAA=THLEER

(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars) (JA#E#FT5lR)

Note 2014 2013
FifEE
Operating Activities reER
Surplus for the Year TEEBRER 5,861 12,960
Adjustments for: FAEIEE
Depreciation e 122 53
Net Realised and Unrealised Gains on Trading BEENHMESERMRER (8,209) (7,760)
and Other Securities s
Interest Income from Bank Deposits TITERFE (226) (163)
Net Realised and Unrealised Exchange Losses/(Gains) B &R &R &I ZIME L iRESIE/ 118 (291)
from Bank Deposits (U58)
Dividend Income RERBUA (490) (466)
Operating (Deficit)/Surplus before Changes in SEETEERIZEE(BE) (2,824) 4,333
Working Capital BER
Decrease in Student Loans BEOMZED 44 110
(Increase)/Decrease in Accounts Receivable EENE MR Z (EI0)/ R (190) 30
Increase in Accounts Payable and Accruals FEFTIRFA A FESTE R 238N 786 90
(Decrease)/Increase in Provision for Employee 1B S8 E R (R AE (20) 23
Benefits
Net Cash Generated from/(Used in) Operating Activities #&%;EENES/(FRF)ZIREFEE (2,204) 4,586
Investing Activities BEEH
Payment for Purchase of Fixed Assets EREEEE (196) (400)
Increase in Time Deposits with Original Maturity FAERBIR =18 A EHTER (239) (6,282)
over Three Months ZIEhn
Payment for Purchase of Listed Securities BRLmE (902) -
Proceeds from Sales of Listed Securities HE EHESFREMIE - 387
Decrease in Funds Held by The Chinese University ERN BB ABRIEZED 3,066 1,403
of Hong Kong
Dividend Received EIEE 236 190
Interest Received ElFE 239 116
Net Cash Generated from/(Used in) Investing Activities $%& EEIESE/(FRR)ZHEFE 2,204 (4,586)

Net Decrease in Cash and Cash Equivalents RENMREEEYMZRHD
Cash and Cash Equivalents - Beginning of Year RERIREEEY - FHHER
Cash and Cash Equivalents - End of Year RERIREEEY - FERER 13

The notes set out on pages 7 to 24 form an integral part of these financial statements.
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THE TRUSTEES OF SHAW COLLEGE

THE CHINESE UNIVERSITY OF HONG KONG
BAPXABRXERRET

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BASIS OF PREPARATION

The financial statements of The Trustees of Shaw
College (the “College”) reflect the state of affairs of
all the funds of the College at 30 June 2014 and
the College’s results and cash flows for the year
then ended. The assets of the College are vested
in The Board of Trustees of the College under the
provisions of The Chinese University of Hong Kong
Ordinance.

These financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with all applicable Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”), which collective
term includes all applicable individual Hong
Kong Financial Reporting Standards, Hong Kong
Accounting Standards (“HKASs”) and Interpretations
issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants (“HKICPA”) and accounting principles
generally accepted in Hong Kong.

The HKICPA has issued a number of new HKFRSs
and amendments to HKFRSs that are first effective
for the current accounting period of the College. Of
these, the following developments are relevant to
the College’s financial statements:

* HKFRS 12, Disclosure of Interests in Other Entities
* HKFRS 13, Fair Value Measurement

HKFRS 12, Disclosure of Interests in Other Entities

HKFRS 12 brings together into a single standard
all the disclosure requirements relevant to an
entity’s interests in subsidiaries, joint arrangements,
associates and unconsolidated structured entities.
The disclosures required by HKFRS 12 are generally
more extensive than those previously required by
the respective standards. To the extent that the
requirements are applicable to the College, the
College has provided those disclosure in notes16(e).

HKFRS 13, Fair Value Measurement

HKFRS 13 replaces existing guidance in individual
HKFRSs with a single source of fair value
measurement guidance. HKFRS 13 also contains
extensive disclosure requirements about fair value
measurements for both financial instruments and
non-financial instruments. To the extent that the
requirements are applicable to the College, the
College has provided those disclosures in notes
16(e).
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The College has not applied any new standard or
interpretation that is not yet effective for the current
accounting period (see note 18).

The measurement basis used in the preparation of
the financial statements is the historical cost basis
except otherwise stated in the accounting policies
set out below.

The preparation of financial statements in conformity
with HKFRSs requires management to make
judgements, estimates and assumptions that affect
the application of policies and reported amounts
of assets, liabilities, income and expenses. The
estimates and associated assumptions are based
on historical experience and various other factors
that are believed to be reasonable under the
circumstances, the results of which form the basis
of making the judgements about carrying values of
assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent
from other sources. Actual results may differ from
these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are
reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to
accounting estimates are recognised in the period
in which the estimate is revised if the revision affects
only that period, or in the period of the revision and
future periods if the revision affects both current and
future periods.
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(a)

A summary of the significant accounting policies
adopted by the College is set out below.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
Fixed Assets

Fixed Assets are stated at cost less accumulated
depreciation and impairment losses.

The cost of an asset comprises its purchase price
and any directly attributable costs of bringing the
assets to its working condition and location for its
intended use. Where it can be clearly demonstrated
that subsequent expenditure on an asset has
resulted in an increase in its future economic benefit,
such expenditure is capitalised as an additional cost
of that asset.

Depreciation is calculated to write off the cost of fixed
assets, less their estimated residual value, if any,
using the straight line method over their estimated
useful lives as follows:

Equipment, Furniture, 5 years
Fixtures and Fittings
Computer Equipment 3 years

Both the useful life of an asset and its residual value,
if any, are reviewed annually.

An impairment loss is recognised to the extent
that the carrying amount of an asset, or the
cash-generating unit to which it belongs, is more
than its recoverable amount. The recoverable
amount of an asset, or of the cash-generating
unit to which it belongs, is the greater of its fair
value less costs of disposal and value in use. In
assessing value in use, the estimated future cash
flows are discounted to their present value using a
pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market
assessments of the time value of money and the
risks specific to the assets. An impairment loss is
reversed if there has been a favourable change
in estimates used to determine the recoverable
amount.

Gains or losses on disposal or retirement of a fixed
asset are determined as the difference between
the net proceeds and the carrying amount of the
fixed asset and are recognised in the Statement
of Comprehensive Income and Expenditure on the
date of retirement or disposal.
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(b)

(c)

(d)

Investments

(i) Investments in securities held for trading are
classified as current assets and are initially
stated at fair value. At each balance sheet date
the fair value is remeasured, with any resultant
gain or loss being recognised in the Statement
of Comprehensive Income and Expenditure.

(i) Funds placed with investment managers in
the name of The Chinese University of Hong
Kong comprise bonds and equity investments
managed by independent investment managers.
These funds are stated at fair value and
any change in the fair value of the funds is
recognised in the Statement of Comprehensive
Income and Expenditure.

(iii) Investments are recognised/derecognised on
the date the College commits to purchase/sell
the investments or they expire.

Cash and Cash Equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash at bank
and in hand, demand deposits with banks and
other financial insitutions, and short-term, highly
liquid investments that are readily convertible into
known amounts of cash, which are subject to an
insignificant risk of changes in value, having been
within three months of maturity at acquisition.

Provisions and Contingent Liabilities

Provisions are recognised for liabilities of uncertain
timing or amount when the College has a legal or
constructive obligation arising as a result of a past
event, it is probable that an outflow of economic
benefits will be required to settle the obligation and
a reliable estimate can be made. Where the time
value of money is material, provisions are stated
at the present value of the expenditure expected
to settle the obligation.

Where it is not probable that an outflow of economic
benefits will be required, or the amount cannot be
estimated reliably, the obligation is disclosed as a
contingent liability, unless the probability of outflow
of economic benefits is remote. Possible obligations,
whose existence will only be confirmed by the
occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more future
events, are also disclosed as contingent liabilities
unless the probability of outflow of economic
benefits is remote.

- &

() HERFEENESRERESRBEERTERY
RUARBEAR - ESEFEH - BEEFRE
HARBEESWENRGE  SREOEMIESES
B R AR o

(i) UEEBPXABZEZEFRIREEM AT CHNAEE
BESRERES - BEMBEULREETIT
HAnBEEAEMINSFEEIEZEIHERA -

(iii) IRENERRIREERSFRAEREEN L &L
EIRENZIREIRR A BRIMIT -

RERBAEEEY
REMRESEVEFBRITERRIEE - FRRET
MEAM A FSHRBRERER - MEIERIRE MRS
WIREIEE  EEEERUNUNRSRERENNRE
BHENFARZNEEZIERE)  TEBAEL=
ERREI -

#REABEE
MRBEMEBENSHRBEENHESE - MTEH
LEYRLEERaNERING - Ao{EH O sERfGE
ko FERG/ZFEABETSENRRFEER -
EREHEBNEEREATE  AIRUERZHN
REERE

MRBEBENHBNERINRZTREMERE - NE2RE
HERHAELISENMGE - IREZEERAETE
& - BEIRINR T MR R A MEECIKEE - F—
EXSEEHEERERATEREMEHNTREE
EWMER  BUNBEBERRAIKE @ RIFLEEN DR
H AT REMEARIE



(e)

(f)

Income Recognition

Provided it is probable that the economic benefits will
flow to the College and the income and expenditure,
if applicable, can be measured reliably, income is
recognised in the Statement of Comprehensive
Income and Expenditure as follows:

(i) Interest and Investment Income

Interest and investment income is mainly derived
from Funds held by The Chinese University
of Hong Kong, which includes investments
in time deposits, fixed rate certificates of
deposits, other debt securities, securities held
for trading, limited partnership investment and
alternative investments. Interest income is
recognised as it accrues on time deposits and
fixed rate certificates of deposits using the
effective interest method. Investmentincome is
recognised in the Statement of Comprehensive
Income and Expenditure for the changes
in fair value of securities held for trading,
limited partnership investment and alternative
investments upon re-measurement at each
balance sheet date.

(i) Dividends

Dividend income from listed securities is
recognised when the share price of the
investment goes ex-dividend.

(iii) Donations and Benefactions

Donations and Benefactions are recognised
in the Statement of Comprehensive Income
and Expenditure when the College becomes
entitled to the donations and benefactions and
it is probable that they will be received.

Translation of Foreign Currencies

Foreign currency transactions during the year are
translated into Hong Kong dollars at the foreign
exchange rates ruling at the transaction dates.
Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in
foreign currencies are translated into Hong Kong
dollars at the foreign exchange rate ruling at the
balance sheet date. Exchange gains and losses
on foreign currency translation are dealt with in the
relevant fund accounts through the Statement of
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure.
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(9)

(h)

Employee Benefits

(i) Salaries, paid annual leave, housing allowances
and the cost to the College of non-monetary
benefits are accrued in the year in which
the associated services are rendered by
employees of the College.

(i) Contract-end gratuity is payable on completion
of a contract appointment of not less than two
years. The gratuity, together with the total
amount of the College’s contributions to a
particular retirement scheme, will add up to
10% or 15% of the appointee’s basic salary
drawn during the contract period.

(iii) Contribution to defined contribution retirement
plan are recognised as an expense in the
Statement of Comprehensive Income and
Expenditure as incurred.

(iv) Termination benefits are recognised at the
earlier of when the College can no longer
withdraw the offer of those benefits and when
it recognises restructuring costs involving the
payment of termination benefits.

Related Parties

(i) A person, or a close member of that person’s
family, is related to the College if that person:

()  has control or joint control over the
College;

(1) has significant influence over the College;
or

(Il is a member of the key management
personnel of the College or the College’s
parent.

(ii) An entity is related to the College if any of the
following conditions applies:

(I)  The entity and the College are members
of the same group (which means that each
parent, subsidiary and fellow subsidiary is
related to the others).

(I One entity is an associate or joint venture
of the other entity (or an associate or joint
venture of a member of a group of which
the other entity is a member).

(Il1) Both entities are joint ventures of the same
third party.

(IV) One entity is a joint venture of a third entity
and the other entity is an associate of the
third entity.

(V) The entity is a post-employment benefit
plan for the benefit of employees of either
the College or an entity related to the
College.
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(V1) Theentity is controlled or jointly controlled (V) BRI E()Frdt A TR

by a person identified in (i). i o
(VIl)  Aperson identified in (i)(I) has significant (VI) RGN ATHBBREEEATE

influence over the entity or is a member
of the key management personnel of the AB o
entity (or of a parent of the entity).

HERZMIE(NHEBHIE) NERREE

Close members of the family of a person are those BARERKRERE2IETERMMEEAERNRS
family members who may be expected to influence, b OREEEZZAASNSHEEMRERS -

or be influenced by, that person in their dealings
with the entity.

INTEREST AND INVESTMENT INCOME FERIGE WS
(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars) (ABEETFTTHIR)

2014 2013
Net Realised and Unrealised Gains on BEENHMEHFERMRERI 166 554
Trading and Other Securities THiFEE
Net Realised and Unrealised Gains on ERREBEPXABMEEECEER 8,043 7,206
Trading and Other Securities from Funds ~ REfthFE5EIR AR SRS IFEE
Held by The Chinese University of Hong
Kong
Dividends from Listed Securities rhEERE 490 466
Interest Income from Bank Deposits RITERRIE 226 163
Net Realised and Unrealised Exchange EERARERZIMEHIR(ESE)/ (118) 291
(Losses)/Gains from Bank Deposits W zs
8,807 8,680
DONATIONS AND BENEFACTIONS EELEYSEEEN
(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars) (BT TTHIR)
2014 2013
Scholarships, Prizes and Bursaries BES . IEENIES 3,842 3,042
College and Student Development Fund EmRNEBELEREES 1,733 13,907
5,675 16,949




EXPENDITURE %

(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars) (AT TTHIR)
Staff Cost Operating Total
and Benefits Expenses
BT E
KeAER EiERX FEEE]
Learning and Research: Biig RERR -
Other Academic Services HAth# 2R - 176 176
- 176 176
Institutional Support (Note 5.1): E BN AR TS (PfEE5.1):
Management and General EEN—RREIR - 133 133
Premises and Related Expenses BFAEERH - 4,219 4,219
Students and General Education Services EB4HN—RBEER 513 3,603 4,116
Other Activities HhEFE - 280 280
513 8,235 8,748
Total Expenditure for 2014 —T-MFEAZH 513 8,411 8,924
Learning and Research: Bilf R -
Other Academic Services H{th#EBARTS 227 180 407
227 180 407
Institutional Support (Note 5.1): EREBIARTE (FIEE5.1):
Management and General EEN—MREIE - 80 80
Premises and Related Expenses EFAERERH - 7,790 7,790
Students and General Education Services B4R —HEER 1,556 3,286 4,842
Other Activities HfthZE7% - 101 101
1,556 11,257 12,813
Total Expenditure for 2013 S FETE 1,783 11,437 13,220




5.1 Analysis of Operating Expenses on Institutional Support EfRHBIRFEVEEREZ S

(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars) (AT ITHIR)
2014 2013
Management and General BB R—HREIE
General Insurance REGE 11 27
Depreciation e 122 53
133 80
Premises and Related Expenses BFREE%H
Repair and Maintenance HIZERIRE 4,219 7,790
4,219 7,790
Students and General Education Services BEN—RBEER
Scholarship and Prizes IREBE NS 2,465 2,424
Student Activities B4ED) 1,138 862
3,603 3,286
Other Activities HhEFE
Miscellaneous HIE 280 101
280 101
8,235 11,257




NATURE AND PURPOSE OF RESTRICTED
FUNDS

Capital Funds

Capital Funds represent the balance of net book
value of the Fixed Assets.

Endowment Funds

Endowment Funds represent donations received
by the College, usually with the stipulation from the
donors that the principal amounts should remain
intact in perpetuity or for a defined time period for
specific purposes.

Other Restricted Funds

Other Restricted Funds represent the unspent
balance of funds donated for the development
of the College. In addition, the Funds also
comprise the unspent balance of donations which
support student scholarships, bursaries and
development.

NATURE AND PURPOSE OF OTHER FUNDS

Capital Funds

Capital Funds represent the balance of net book
value of the Fixed Assets.

Reserves

Other Reserves represent the unspent balance of
funds generated from college activities.
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8. FIXED ASSETS [EE&E

(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)  (MAZB#EFTT5IR)

Computer Equipment, Total
Equipment Furniture,
Fixtures and
Fittings
a2~ HREM
E RE wEE
Cost A E
At 1 July 2012 —F—=-FtH—H 275 371 646
Additions 1&hn 85 315 400
Disposals HE (22) - (22)
At 30 June 2013 —E—=FA=1THz&H% 338 686 1,024
Accumulated Depreciation HFHreE
At 1 July 2012 S —FtHA—BHz#EsR 259 312 571
Charge for the Year REEIRE 17 36 53
Written Back on Disposal HEREER (22) - (22)
At 30 June 2013 —E—=FBA=1THz&ER 254 348 602
Net Book Value at 30 June 2013 =F—=FXA=1HIREERE 84 338 422
Cost 3% =]
At 1 July 2013 _F—=%FtH—H 338 686 1,024
Additions 1 75 121 196
Disposals HE (11) - (11)
At 30 June 2014 —FOFERB=1THZ&ER 402 807 1,209
Accumulated Depreciation HFHire
At 1 July 2013 “S—=FtRA—Hxz#H 254 348 602
Charge for the Year NEEITE 43 79 122
Written Back on Disposal HERER (11) - (11)
At 30 June 2014 —E—MEARA=1THZ &R 286 427 713
Net Book Value at 30 June 2014 Z=—F—N&FB=+HIRAZFE 116 380 496
9. INVESTMENTS BE
(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars) (AEEETFTTHIR)
2014 2013
Current investments MENEE
Trading Securities, at Fair Value EEES  BRnBEIITR
Equity Securities, Listed in Hong Kong EEE LHHEARE 5,082 3,800
Unit Trusts, Listed in Hong Kong EEE LTNENERES 1,185 1,065
6,267 4,865




10. FUNDS HELD BY THE CHINESE UNIVERSITY OF HONG KONG (“CUHK” or the “University”)
FHRREEPIKRE( “XEB” )FIE
(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars) (AT TTHIR)

1.

12.

2014 2013

Funds Placed with Investment Managers MEBOIXAKBERER 39,734 34,740
in the name of CUHK BREEM IS ZMIE

Marketable Investments in the name of UEBPIXRKBIRER 4,929 5,263
CUHK BEASHEZNIE

Fixed Income Assets in the name of WEBPIAEBZEZEZN 91,889 91,652
CUHK EEWAEBEZTAIE

136,552 131,655

Note: Funds held by the University are pooled with other University funds for investment and bank deposits

arrangement in the name of CUHK.

Funds placed with investment managers and marketable investments in the name of CUHK are
invested in financial assets measured at fair value. According to the three-level fair value hierarchy
as defined in HKFRS 13, Fair value measurement, the funds are categorised as Level 1, 2, and 3 by
56%, 3% and 41% respectively (2013: 54%, 3% and 43% respectively).

Fixed income assets in the name of CUHK are invested in financial assets carried at other than
fair value. According to the three-level fair value hierarchy as defined in HKFRS 13, Fair value
measurement, the funds are categorised as Level 1 and 2 by 3% and 97% respectively.

BffE: FRREED X ASBREHEMABE S —HURBARIERENRITENSHE -
MEBPXARBERENREEEREMASIREERSZMERRHRREEUAAEEENMIEEE - IR
BEEVBREENE 1M "AABERE,)  ZRERRESE—NRB - BETRAINE=RE - 25
1556% ~ 3%K2 41% (2013 : 54% > 3%K43%) °
DMEBPXARBEREREEWNAEERARKREETUARBEIIRNUZEEE - RESEBUEERS
FAIE131% T AREERE ) - ZIERRERE —RRIREZRE - DRIGE3%KIT%

STUDENT LOANS BEEM

(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars) (ABEETFITHIR)

2014 2013

Student Loans Outstanding RNEEZBEEM 663 701

Impairment Provision for Overdue Student Loans 34 EFrisi A% 5 (145) (139)

518 562

ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE += -~ BKIRER

Accounts receivable is expected to be recoverable FEWIRFATERA R —FERIE] -

within one year.



13.

14.

15.

CASH AT BANK AND TIME DEPOSITS

RITREMER

(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)  (MAB#ETF7T5IR)
2014 2013
Time Deposits in the Balance Sheet EEAERANTHER 10,369 10,248
Less: Time Deposits with Original Maturity i&: TZFiA 2B =18 A EL
over Three Months = (10,369) (10,248)
Cash and Cash Equivalents in the Cash IRERERANIRE
Flow Statement MIREEEY - -
Time deposits included the following amount denominated in the following foreign currency:
RITEHEREETIIUIMNEBEMNEE
(Expressed in thousands) (BAFHz5l7R)
2014 2013
Renminbi AR 8,300 8,110

ACCOUNTS PAYABLE AND ACCRUALS

Accounts payable and accruals include payables
to students from overseas on student exchange
programme.

CAPITAL MANAGEMENT

The College is a not-for-profit organisation and forms
part of The Chinese University of Hong Kong. The
College aims to provide general education and
development activities for University students. The
College defines capital as including various general
and restricted funds balances.

The various funds represent the unspent balance
of donations, grants, and income. These funds are
managed in accordance with the College’s financial
management procedures and the relevant funding
conditions, where applicable.

The College’s primary objective when managing
capital is to safeguard the College’s ability to
continue as a going concern and to maintain a
strong financial base to support the development
of the College.

To achieve the above capital management objective,
the College follows guidelines on investment and
financial management as set out in note 16.

There has been no change in the College’s capital
management practices as compared to prior year.

The College is not subject to any externally imposed
capital requirement.
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16.

(a)

(b)

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENT AND RISK
MANAGEMENT

The College’s financial instruments mainly include
bank deposits, studentloans, accounts receivable,
equity securities and funds held by the University,
which are exposed to credit, interest rate, foreign
currency and equity price risks. The risks on
financial assets are controlled in accordance with
the investment guidelines approved by the Finance
Committee under the College’s Board of Trustees.
This is achieved through diversified asset
allocation, rules governing the selection and credit
limits of investment counterparties with reference
to their credit ratings and financial strength. The
Finance Committee reviews investment strategies
and performance periodically to ensure that the
investment objectives and performance targets
are met. A sub-committee under the Finance
Committee meets regularly to manage and monitor
risk exposures associated with respective financial
assets to ensure that appropriate measures are
implemented on a timely and effective manner.

Credit Risk

The College’s exposure to credit risk is primarily
attributable to bank deposits and funds held by
the University. For funds held by the University,
the risk is managed by the University’s financial
management policies and practices.

The College places deposits with major financial
institutions with good credit ratings.

Credit risk associated with student loans and
accounts receivable is immaterial to the College
and all doubtful receivables are adequately
provided for.

Interest Rate Risk

The College is exposed to interest rate risk
primarily arising from its bank deposits due to
fluctuations in the prevailing levels of market
interest rates.
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(c)

As at 30 June 2014, itis estimated that a general
increase/decrease of 100 basis points in bank
deposit interest rate, with all other variables
held constant, would increase/decrease the
College’s surplus for the year by approximately
HK$104,000 (2013: increase/decrease by
approximately HK$102,000) and increase/
decrease net assets at the balance sheet date by
approximately HK$104,000 (2013: increased/
decreased by HK$102,000). This analysis has
been determined assuming that the change in
interest rates had occurred at the balance sheet
date and had been applied to the exposure to
interest rate risk for bank deposits in existence
at that date, with an assumption that fixed
term instruments which expire during the next
reporting period will be rolled over at the expiry
of that term at the new market rate.

Foreign Currency Risk

The functional currency of the College is the
Hong Kong dollar (“HKD”). The College’s
monetary assets and liabilities are denominated
mainly in HKD while those denominated in other
currencies are not material. Though the funds
held by the University are also invested in debt
and equity securities denominated in United
States dollars, as the HKD is pegged to the USD,
the College considers the risk of movements in
exchange rates between the HKD and the USD
to be insignificant. About 7% (2013: 7%) of the
College’s financial assets are denominated in
RMB, which is expected to appreciate in the long
run. As there is no financial assets denominated
in currencies other than HKD, RMB and USD as
at 30 June 2014 (2013: nil), exposure to foreign
currency risk is not significant.
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(d)

(e)

Equity Price Risk

The College is exposed to equity price risk arising
from equity and unit trust investments listed in Hong
Kong, both classified as trading securities (see
note 9). The Finance Committee and investment
sub-committee of the College closely monitor the
risk of each of the investments to ensure their
suitability as investments for the College. The equity
price risk related to funds held by the University is
managed by professional managers through their
own risk management and assessment policies.
The investment managers’ investment strategies are
governed by the University’s investment and asset
allocation guidelines. The College also monitors the
risk exposure by reviewing periodic reports from the
custodians and investment managers. At balance
sheet date, if the prices of the respective equity
instruments had been 5% higher/lower, with all
other variables held constant, the College’s surplus
for the year would have increased/decreased by
approximately HK$1,120,000 (2013: increased/
decreased by HK$966,000) as a result of the
changes in fair value of listed equity securities.

Fair Values

All financial instruments are carried at amounts
not materially different from their fair values as at
30 June 2014 and 30 June 2013. Fair values of
trading securities are based on quoted bid prices at
the balance sheet date. Fair values of funds held by
the University are based on market value quoted by
external fund managers at the balance sheet date.

According to HKFRS 13, Fair value measurement,
the College is required to present the fair value of
the College’s financial instruments measured at the
end of the reporting period on a recurring basis,
categorised into the three-level fair value hierarchy.
The level into which a fair value measurement
is classified is determined with reference to the
observability and significance of the inputs used in
the valuation technique as follows:

*  Level 1 valuations: Fair value measured using
only Level 1 inputs i.e. unadjusted quoted prices
in active markets for identical assets or liabilities
at the measurement date

Level 2 valuations: Fair value measured using
Level 2 inputs i.e. observable inputs which
fail to meet Level 1, and not using significant
unobservable inputs. Unobservable inputs are
inputs for which market data are not available.

*  Level 3 valuations: Fair value measured using
significant unobservable inputs
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At 30 June 2014, the only financial instruments of the
College carried at fair value were trading securities of
HK$11,196,000 (2013: HK$10,128,000) listed on the
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong. These instruments
fall into Level 1 of the fair value hierarchy described
above. During the years ended 30 June 2014
and 2013, there were no Level 3 measurements
of financial assets and liabilities, and no transfer
between Level 1 and Level 2, or transfers into or
out of Level 3. The College’s policy is to recognise
transfers between levels of fair value hierarchy as
at the end of the reporting period in which occur.

Included in the above trading securities, the College
holds interests in a tracker fund that the College does
not consolidate. The purpose of the tracker fund is
to generate investment income for the College.

The table below sets out the interests held by the
College in the tracker fund. The maximum exposure
to loss is the carrying amount of the financial asset
held.

#=F—MFEAA=1H  TERFENE—AD
REEFIRNERTERETERZM LHNETE
BES  ERSFsNEERBE—T B —ThEAX
Fr (ZF—=F: BE—FT—+=BN\Fx) - 1R
BUAEARBEERNESR @ FERNEMTRE
RER— - BE"F-—NFLR=FT—=F A=+
HILFER - MBEERBENERAE=HN
BRARBEARBENIBEF —REE R EE
% SEARBHE=R - ERNBERENRERB
ERERRPR LA BEREBRA < ENER -

BEENLEEESR  EREEMRKBSHE
EEENERD - ZEESNENERERRIURE
WA -

UF—BRILERFEEREESHNER - 78T
ERERANEXEEEMEENIREE

Carrying Amount Included in

Tracker Fund Number of Approximate Financial Assets at Fair Value
Class Fund Total Net Assets through Profit or Loss
BEEE B2EE HEEE EFRESAN L REE
$8RI HE #E SR R E ENIREE
HKD’million HKD’thousand
BEET FET
Equities B 1 55,854 1,185
Total #wam 1 55,854 1,185

Note: The above tracker fund is a passive investment
only, the College has no control of, influence on or
financial support to the fund.

The College can redeem the above tracker fund
by selling the shares through Hong Kong Stock
Exchange.
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17. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

18.

Due to the not-for-profit nature of the College and the
composition of the Board of Trustees (being drawn
from private and public organisations), the College
has received from time to time donations from its
Board of Trustees members, key management and
companies controlled or significantly influenced by
them. The receipts of such donations have all been
individually reported to and approved in accordance
with the financial regulations of The Chinese
University of Hong Kong (the “University”), by the
Board of Trustees and the University Council.

All transactions relating to the purchases of
goods and services and capital projects involving
organisations in which a member of the Board of
Trustees may have an interest are conducted during
the normal course of business and in accordance
with the University’s financial regulations and normal
procurement procedures.

POSSIBLE IMPACT OF AMENDMENTS, NEW
STANDARDS AND INTERPRETATIONS ISSUED
BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE FOR THE YEAR
ENDED 30 JUNE 2014

Up to the date of issue of these financial statements,
the HKICPA has issued a number of amendments,
new standards and interpretations which are not yet
effective for the year ended 30 June 2014 and which
have not been adopted in these financial statements.
These include the following which may be relevant
to the College:

Effective for
accounting periods
beginning on or after

HKFRS 9, Financial Instruments 1 January 2018

The College is in the process of making an
assessment of what the impact of these amendments,
new standards and new interpretations which is
expected to be in the period of initial application.
So far it has concluded that the adoption of them is
unlikely to have a significantimpact on the College’s
results of operations and financial positions.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
bi RV 2 e S

TO THE COMMITTEE OF OVERSEERS OF MORNINGS

THE CHINESE UNIVERSITY OF HONG KONG
BEEPXABREERMRES

We have audited the financial statements of Morningside
College (the “College”) set out on pages 2 to 17, which
comprise the balance sheet as at 30 June 2014, the statement
of comprehensive income and expenditure and the statement
of changes in funds for the year then ended, and a summary of
significant accounting policies and other explanatory information.

THE COMMITTEE OF OVERSEERS’ RESPONSIBILITY
FOR THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Committee of Overseers of the College is responsible for
the preparation of financial statements in accordance with the
basis of preparation and accounting policies set out in note 1
to the financial statements and for such internal control as the
Committee of Overseers determines is necessary to enable the
preparation of financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITY

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial
statements based on our audit. This report is made solely to you,
as a body, in accordance with our agreed terms of engagement,
and for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility
towards or accept liability to any other person for the contents
of this report.

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong
Standards on Auditing issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants. Those standards require that we
comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit
to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial
statements are free from material misstatement.

An auditinvolves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence
about the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements.
The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgement,
including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of
the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making
those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control
relevant to the entity’s preparation of the financial statements
in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion
on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. An audit also
includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies
used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made by
the Committee of Overseers, as well as evaluating the overall
presentation of the financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient
and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

OPINION

In our opinion, the financial statements of the College as at
30 June 2014 have been prepared, in all material respects, in
accordance with the basis of preparation and accounting policies
as set out in note 1 to the financial statements.

KPMG

Certified Public Accountants
8th Floor, Prince’s Building
10 Chater Road, Central, Hong Kong

23 October 2014

IRBED (U TR THA ) EFEAVENE"HEEFEHLERE
EfR( “BEER" RESNMBERE  HHMBERREER"F N
FARA=TEMNEERRRESEZHILFTENEENSRTIES
2x - MREZESHHRAEREMMEEEE -

REEMUBBRARENET

RESARERENUBRRME - RRERNSBERERM
BREK  ULMBRREEERRERMBR]MLENARIE
#l - EM B RRTFEER RN ERM BN E A FHRERL

HEETRE(E
FMNNEERREBHMNBHAHZSFUBRRELEER - ™8RS
EEARERETRE - RIS - BMNREETTRERM
A - HIMFARAREENAST  HEAEMATETNRE
BEEE-

BMERBEEESLSHEGH (FEETER) ETET - E
LERRZEREMETERRSE - WREILNITE - UGEREN
BRRESIFEEMEAEREIL -

B R ITER NERGRM SRR SR RINEEHNER

BiE - FEEMEFTURNZEENRFIET - SUETAAIREREENRE
RMEH M BRRFEEAERBRNER - T EZSEREER -

%SRS ERRER U ERRAANARRES - UERTHEEN
2R - EEMLFSHEERNANEFNETRNRRER -
E AT ERE SRR BRN S EE R EH SR AR
BEMY - WATEMBRRNBEIRGR -

HMHEE - BAFESNSEHEERRENEEMSHMANENE
RIZHER -

ER
BMRS  BERR-F—MNF A=t HZMBRIRCRESH
BERRME - RRERE RS BERER

EEMEFHASEHER
HZESEAT
HEPREITE 109
KFAE8IE

—F-MF+A=+=H



MORNINGSIDE COLLEGE

THE CHINESE UNIVERSITY OF HONG
HFHEPIXABREER

STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INC
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2014

HE_F-NFAA=THLFE

(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars) (JAFE#&TF5517)

Note
FisE 2014 2013
Income A
Government Subvention BATERN 2,964 2,720
Interest and Investment Income FERIGTEWA 3 10,136 6,906
Donations and Benefactions TP NE=E 4 250 27,807
Matching Grants BosifEBnE 128 13,612
Other Income ELAITA 5 5,661 5,758
19,139 56,803
Expenditure 2 6
Institutional Support EeaHEnARTS
Premises and Related Expenses BFMEEZH 540 386
Student and General Education Services BEN—RBESEH 12,635 11,304
Other Activities HAth B 593 719
13,768 12,409
Surplus and Total Comprehensive REFEEREBRN 5,371 44,304
Income for the Year EEME

The notes set out on pages 6 to 17 form an integral part of these financial statements.
NEREANEETtEZMERAHBERKRZ B -
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MORNINGSIDE COLLEGE
THE CHINESE UNIVERSITY OF HONG KONG
BRI ABREER

BALANCE SHEET EE& &R

AS AT 30 JUNE 2014

—2-mERA=1H

(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars) (JA&#&Ft5lR)

Note 2014 2013
P&

Non-Current Asset ERBEE

Fixed Assets BEEEE 9 65 -
Current Assets mENEE
Funds Held by The Chinese ERREBPXAE 10 132,249 126,593
University of Hong Kong B
Accounts Receivable FEUSTIRTR 11 24 125
132,273 126,718
Current Liabilities mEaE

Accruals FERTER - 64
Deposits Received BwE 337 304
Provision for Employee Benefits EE1EF % 12 744 72
1,081 440
Net Current Asset RENEEFE 131,192 126,278
Total Assets Less Current Liabilities WEERTIAs 131,257 126,278

Non-Current Liability FEREaE
Provision for Employee Benefits B 518+ i 12 14 406
NET ASSETS BEEFH 131,243 125,872
Restricted Funds HRESE 36,028 32,206
Other Funds HitES 95,215 93,666
TOTAL FUNDS B4R 131,243 125,872

Approved and authorised for issue by the Committee of Overseers on 23 October 2014

REERREENR-_F—MEF+AT+=AIELERERILIHERR

Gerald Lok-chung Chan PR#5 Chairman, &

Committee of Overseers PREA S

Leonie Man-fung Ki #0328l Vice-Chairman, BIEE

Committee of Overseers FREA S

The notes set out on pages 6 to 17 form an integral part of these financial statements.
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MORNINGSIDE COLLEGE

THE CHINESE UNIVERSITY OF HONG

BEEPNABRESR

STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN FUNDS &
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2014

HE_T-NFAB=+THLFE

(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars) (JA&#TFT5liR)

Balance at 1 July 2012

Transfer from/(to) the Statement
of Comprehensive Income and
Expenditure

Balance at 30 June 2013

Balance at 1 July 2013

Transfer from/(to) the Statement
of Comprehensive Income and
Expenditure

Inter-fund Transfer In/(Out)

Balance at 30 June 2014

—F-"FtA—H

BE/(E)ZHEMZEER

—F—=%5xA=1H

“F—=FtA—H
4HER

BE/I(B)ZEBRZR

EE/EER

—T-mFENA=1H

Restricted
Funds

EHEE

(Note 7)

(PFfiEE 7)

Other
Restricted
Endowment  Funds Hostel Capital

Funds H#h=FH Reserves Fund Total
BrES BEE BEkkE BHEED e
2,494 1,382 1,353 2 5,231
25,913 (396) 1,460 (2) 26,975
28,407 986 2,813 - 32,206
28,407 986 2,813 - 32,206
2,867 (1,183) 948 (13) 2,619
- 1,125 - 78 1,203
31,274 928 3,761 65 36,028

The notes set out on pages 6 to 17 form an integral part of these financial statements.

NEREANEETLEZMERTMBRR M -



Other

Funds
HithB &
(Note 8)
(PfizE 8)
UGC
Matching
Operation Block Grants
Funds Grant HEDAEE Total
RERE BREBE fnE HEE
6,582 799 68,866 76,247
1,320 32 16,067 17,419
7,902 831 84,933 93,666
7,902 831 84,933 93,666
(676) 320 3,108 2,752
(1,125) - (78) (1,203)
6,101 1,151 87,963 95,215

Total Funds
B4

81,478

44,394

125,872

125,872

5,371

131,243

MC5
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MORNINGSIDE COLLEGE

THE CHINESE UNIVERSITY OF HONG KONG
BEPXABREER

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
BATEER R MIE

1.

BASIS OF PREPARATION

The financial statements of Morningside College (the
“College”) reflect the state of affairs of all the funds
of the College at 30 June 2014 and the College’s
results for the year then ended. These non-statutory
financial statements have been prepared solely for
the information of, and use by the Committee of
Overseers.

These financial statements have been prepared
based on the accounting policies set out below
which are consistent with the recognition and
measurement criteria of the applicable Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”) which
collective term includes all applicable individual Hong
Kong Financial Reporting Standards, Hong Kong
Accounting Standards (“HKASs”) and Interpretations
issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants (“HKICPA”).

The HKICPA has issued a number of new HKFRSs
and amendments to HKFRSs that are first effective
for the current accounting period of the College.
Of these, “HKFRS 13, Fair value measurement” is
the development relevant to the College’s Financial
Statements.

HKFRS 13 replaces existing guidance in individual
HKFRSs with a single source of fair value
measurement guidance. HKFRS 13 also contains
extensive disclosure requirements about fair value
measurements for both financial instruments and
non-financial instruments. To the extent that the
requirements are applicable to the College, the
College has provided those disclosures in notes 10
and 14.

The College has not applied any new standard or
interpretation that is not yet effective for the current
accounting period (see note 16).

The measurement basis used in the preparation of
the financial statements is the historical cost basis
except as otherwise stated in the accounting policies
set out below.

The preparation of financial statements requires
management to make judgements, estimates and
assumptions that affect the application of policies
and reported amounts of assets, liabilities, income
and expenditure. The estimates and associated
assumptions are based on historical experience
and various other factors that are believed to be
reasonable under the circumstances, the results of
which form the basis of making the judgements about
carrying values of assets and liabilities that are not
readily apparent from other sources. Actual results
may differ from these estimates.

—_—

RRER

REER( “SER IRESHMBERRARISER
FREEERZFT—NFXA=+THZHBMRR - UK
BEZHIFENREE - MEEERESEHRED
2EMNEA -
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RERN (FEMBHREED) ZEENFAEREND
TR @ EMEEEREERANER (FEMBRE
=) - (FESRER) BEESTMAGRRNE
BLEELRNSIRAIMER -
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B (REBImRMET 16)
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2.
(a)

The estimates and underlying assumptions are
reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to
accounting estimates are recognised in the period
in which the estimate is revised if the revision affects
only that period, or in the period of the revision and
future periods if the revision affects both current and
future periods.

A summary of the significant accounting policies
adopted by the College is set out below.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
Fixed Assets

Fixed Assets are stated in the balance sheet at
cost less accumulated depreciation and impairment
losses.

The cost of an asset comprises its purchase price
and any directly attributable costs of bringing the
assets to its working condition and location for its
intended use. Where it can be clearly demonstrated
that subsequent expenditure on an asset has
resulted in an increase in its future economic benefit,
such expenditure is capitalised as an additional cost
of that asset.

Depreciation is calculated to write off the cost of fixed
assets, less their estimated residual value,if any,
using the straight line method over their estimated
useful lives as follows:

Computer Equipment 3 years

Equipment, Furniture 3 -5years

and Fittings

Both the useful life of an asset and its residual value,
if any, are reviewed annually.

An impairment loss is recognised to the extent
that the carrying amount of an asset, or the
cash-generating unit to which it belongs, is more
than its recoverable amount. The recoverable
amount of an asset, or of the cash-generating
unit to which it belongs, is the greater of its fair
value less costs of disposal and value in use. In
assessing value in use, the estimated future cash
flows are discounted to their present value using
a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market
assessments of the time value of money and the
risks specific to the assets. An impairment loss is
reversed if there has been a favourable change
in estimates used to determine the recoverable
amount.

¢
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(b)

(c)

(d)

Gains or losses on disposal or retirement of a fixed
asset are determined as the difference between
the net proceeds and the carrying amount of the
fixed asset and are recognised in the Statement
of Comprehensive Income and Expenditure on the
date of retirement or disposal.

Investments

Funds placed with investment managers in the
name of The Chinese University of Hong Kong
(“CUHK” or the “University”) comprise cash
deposits, bonds and equity investments managed
by independent investment managers. These funds
are stated at fair value and any change in the fair
value of the funds is recognised in the Statement
of Comprehensive Income and Expenditure.

Provisions and Contingent Liabilities

Provisions are recognised for liabilities of uncertain
timing or amount when the College has a legal or
constructive obligation arising as a result of a past
event, it is probable that an outflow of economic
benefits will be required to settle the obligation and
a reliable estimate can be made. Where the time
value of money is material, provisions are stated
at the present value of the expenditure expected
to settle the obligation.

Where itis not probable that an outflow of economic
benefits will be required, or the amount cannot
be estimated reliably, the obligation is disclosed
as a contingent liability, unless the probability of
outflow of economic benefits is remote. Possible
obligations, whose existence will only be confirmed
by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more
future events, are also disclosed as contingent
liabilities unless the probability of outflow of
economic benefits is remote.

Income Recognition

Provided it is probable that the economic benefits
will flow to the College and the income and
expenditure, if applicable, can be mea